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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors [the “Directors”, each a “Director”) of FY Financial
[Shenzhen] Co., Ltd. [the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), collectively
and individually, accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange [the "GEM Listing
Rules’] for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material aspects and
not misleading or deceptive; and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.

BERBAERXZMBRAB (BT ) GEMHNEE

GEMIWES - IRFPHEATRHK—E LTINS BEATELBREMERRIFEHTHL
ATRFERERERR - EERENATERTHERENZEQANEERR  YELBE
BRAFNZERSFHRERE -

HRGEMLET AR BEAFT/NELF  HGEMEBENES AREBRNBEXMEREE 2ES
AZBANT S KB AR  RFELREEICEMEENRESSARREBEENTS

BERX G RGEITBER NI R TEI A RENABT TR E - R ERL 2 TR 1 3%
KIEMRE - IR T BT & B AR & 2 55317 58 70 A2 T 2 4 2 A (Rr B % 5 I 28 T
SIBENE IR A B E AT ©

A& AV E R BB TGEMEE % £ A([GEM_ETRR )i T8 - 5 He R B 6 E R
BEHE CRIN)RIDERAG]([EXRE]  FERENELA  [FEE)EIER - AL FIHE
F(EE| En—5EE)FERABENENZRLEFIFEZEET - FEFEIEL—
DEEEHE BB KEIRHRIEE ARSI ENEEER T B EE T %
BREIHGEA D - AWEERFEFER  CRASHAHRE XA FE RN ELRE -



CONTENTS B &

2 Corporate Information

NAE|EF

b  Five Years Financial Summary
EFEHBHE

6 Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

8  Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE ERE &

19 Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
B EELSREEERE

26 Corporate Governance Report
EEERRSE

4 Report of the Directors
EEeWmE

59 Report of the Supervisory Committee
EFEEWES

62  Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - g hERRS

101 Independent Auditor’'s Report

MR Gk
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
RERSFEVBRR
108 - Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
fre 2 EBER
109 - Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
iR e BRSO ER
111 - Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
frERREER
113 - Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEREMER
119 - Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B RaR T



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRJER

NAME OF COMPANY

FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

STOCK CODE

08452

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Weng Jianxing

Ms. Gong Xiaoting

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Peng Qilei

Ms. Liu Jing

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Liu Shengwen

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Bing

Mr. Sun Luran

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Chairman)
Mr. Hon Leung
Mr. Liu Shengwen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Hon Leung
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony

NCIEY

2IRBERECRIDRNDER AR

RAD 5%

08452

B

BITEE
FHE(EF)
BERERt

FHITEE
ZHRLE
L g

SR+ (FA20234E3 B30 BHE)

BUHFHITEE
BEERE
FESITA
2Rt

EEg

RBERFE(ERF)
ISt

BEREES

BEREE(ER)
FESRITA
BIFr et

REEES

FEEE(ER)
L Enb it
HERLE

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4Eg & B E CEI) XD BER AT



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRJE R

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Shengwen (Chairman)
Mr. Hon Leung
Mr. Peng Qilei

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Li Peng

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Gong Xiaoting (Appointed on 9 August 2022)

Mr. Wong Wai Chiu (Appointed on 24 February 2022)
Ms. Xie Ying (Resigned on 30 May 2022)

Ms. Ng Wing Shan (Resigned on 24 February 2022)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Weng Jianxing
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu (Appointed on 24 February 2022)
Ms. Ng Wing Shan (Resigned on 24 February 2022)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 201, Block A

No. 1 Qianwan First Road

Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Cooperation Zone
Shenzhen, Guangdong

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building,
No. 128 Xinzhou 11th Street,
Futian District

Shenzhen, Guangdong

The PRC

FHEES

BIFF S (EE)
SRR
EHELEL

BREME
&S it

BENAIWE

BEEE L+ (R20226F8 AR ERT)
EEBEE(R202262 A24 A EER(E)
HBAZ £ (722022455 A30H BHT)
S A (7202242 A 24 B ELE)

RREAE
PR

EEMBEA (A20226E2 A24BEET)
R+ (FA2022462 A 24 A BHE)

AfRER

REEARKEME(THE])
BERA XY™
AERBE1ER
AT/E— B 155

AFR201 =

PEARER

H

ERA
RYmiEA R
TN —H11285%
HHAEI1603E

2022 ANNUAL REPORT £EE #4

3



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.fyleasing.com
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As to Hong Kong law
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If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the
entities, companies or legal entities incorporated in the PRC and
their English translations in this annual report, the Chinese names
shall prevail. The English translations of the Chinese names
of such entities, companies or legal entities are provided for
illustration purposes only.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AENBERE

Summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities and equity for the ~ NEBPNBEREMKEENESE  BE  BER

last five financial years is set out below: ERBENT :
RESULTS E4
For the years ended 31 December
BZ12A3MALFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 20214 20204 20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTRE AR¥TR ARETR AR®TR

Revenue e 29,502 43,095 103,844 152,631 155,529

(Loss)/profit before income  BRFTISELA]

tax (E518), &7 (38,753) 20,236 5,909 48,716 54,627
Income tax credit/(expense]  FiiSBiE R, (BI) 6,268 (5,305) (2.670) (12,455) (14,424)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN(EE), & F (32,486) 14,931 3,239 36,061 40,203
Basic (loss)/earnings BREXR(EE),

per share (RMB]) BI(ARKETT) (8.18) 0.04 0.01 0.10 0.11

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED @A kR REmE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December
#R128318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT AR®TR AR%®TR AR%®TR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE

Total assets BERE 511,630 553,156 914,055 1,405,572 1,470,194
Total liabilities BEAE 60,944 77,569 454,790 931,579 1,014,296
Total equity T AERE 450,685 475,587 459,265 473,993 455,898
Non-controlling interests FEPERR A 11,619 — = - L
Equity attributable to RRFRERFTFEA

equity holders of JEE =

the Company 439,066 475,587 459,265 473,993 455,898

2022 ANNUAL REPORT £E#f4% B
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”] of directors (the "Directors”)
of FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”], | present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”] for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the "Reporting
Period") to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)").

In 2022, as China experienced frequent occurrence of the novel
coronavirus ("COVID-19") epidemic (the "Epidemic”] in multiple
locations, the prevention and control of the Epidemic has been
normalized. Impacted by the Epidemic, the downward pressure on
China’s economy continued to increase, and inadequate demand,
rising costs and operational difficulties of market entities were more
apparent. The year 2022 was also a critical year for the development
of the finance leasing industry. It was under structural adjustment
due to the adjustment of market regulatory policies by issuing
new regulatory requirements for finance leasing in terms of due
diligence, leased assets management and funds investment. Under
the hit of the Epidemic and the gradual tightening of regulation on the
finance leasing industry, the Group’s finance leasing business and

factoring business were restricted to a great extent.

In 2022, the Group effectively identified and evaluated risk assets
by adopting multiple measures, including strengthening risk
management and overdue assets collection efforts, and formulating
countermeasures and treatment plans according to local conditions,

so as to ensure the safety of the Company’s assets and equities.

In 2022, the Group has been exploring opportunities, and made
attempts in operating lease business for 5G base stations ("56
Business”) and energy storage business, which diversified the
Group’s business while expanding the Group’s revenue streams and

enhancing return on the Shareholders’ value.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREWE

Looking forward, the overall outlook for the industry and business
environment in which the Group operates remains grim. Although
the easing Epidemic has brought a sign of recovery, the number of
infections still changed and the ongoing outbreak is likely to continue
to affect the finance leasing industry. In addition, the rapid rise in
interest rates triggered by the US Federal Reserve, the tightening
global supply chain and the Russia-Ukraine conflict are also
dampening the global economy. Given the increasing risk in financial
defaults due to uncertainties in the business recovery of small-and
medium-sized enterprises ("'SMEs”), the Group will continue to adopt
prudent financial management and cost control, reduce investment
in finance leasing business and continue to identify appropriate
business and investment opportunities to diversify its revenue
structure. Moreover, the Group will continue to strengthen its risk
management and overdue assets collection efforts to ensure the

safety of the assets and equities of the Company.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our
employees for their dedication and express my gratitude to the

Shareholders and our customers.

Li Peng
Chairman
30 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WO

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In 2022, in the face of the increasingly complicated and
challenging international environment, multiple outbreaks of
the Epidemic in China and other unexpected factors, China
effectively coordinated the Epidemic prevention and control
with economic and social development, with the service sector
economy running under pressure and generally continuing
its recovery trend, with GDP reaching RMB121 trillion, up 3%

year-on-year.

With the implementation of the Interim Measures for
the Supervision and Administration of Financial Leasing
Companies, the domestic financial leasing business is still
being in the stage of improvement, adjustment and adaptation.
Financial leasing companies pay more attention to compliance
management and improving risk management capabilities. In
addition, due to the severe international environment and the

spread of the domestic Epidemic, SMEs had a slower recovery.

In 2022, the Group actively responded to the impact of the
Epidemic and risk challenges, adopted prudent financial
management and cost control measures, and actively sought
suitable business and investment opportunities. The Group's
financial leasing business mainly focuses on providing financial
and consulting services for SMEs, involving customers from
FMCG, electronics, alternative energy, medical, transportation
and machinery parts processing industries. Given that overdue
accounts receivable from customers caused by the Epidemic,
the Group made corresponding impairment provisions
for certain financial lease accounts receivable during the

Reporting Period.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4Eg & B E CEI) XD BER AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERENERES

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the total revenue realized by the
Group was approximately RMB29.50 million, a year-on-year
decrease of 31.55%; the net loss recorded was approximately
RMB32.49 million, a year-on-year decrease of 317.62%.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
and advisory business and trading operation business in the
PRC. During the Reporting Period, the management of the
Company has been seeking opportunities, and developed new
businesses in other fields such as 5G Business and energy
storage business, so as to diversify the Group’s businesses,
reduce and diversify the potential risk of only developing and
focusing on the finance leasing industry, as well as expand
the Group’s revenue sources and increase the returns for the
Shareholders.

Financial and advisory business principally comprises finance
leasing, factoring services and advisory services. During
the Reporting Period, the Group strictly implemented the
project review process, while continued to improve the risk
management and internal control procedures to reasonably
control financing costs, so as to minimize the impact of the
Epidemic and create optimal returns for the Shareholders. In
addition, the Group also implemented various measures to
conduct effective identification and assessment on risk assets,
enhance risk management and overdue assets collection, and
develop responsive measures and solutions in line with specific
circumstances, aiming to safeguard the assets and the equities

of the Company.

The trading operation business comprises primarily provision
of medical equipment to customers. During the Reporting
Period, the Group, as usual, continued to establish good
cooperative relations with medical equipment suppliers and
distributors. The Group also strengthened client screening to

strictly manage asset quality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WO

In view of the prospects of the 5G industry and the resilience
of China's state-owned telecom operators as customers,
the Group extends its existing financial leasing business
to 5G Business. During the Reporting Period, 5G Business
mainly focused on marketing, team building and standardized
management. In terms of marketing, the Company actively
capitalized the market opportunities of 5G Business through
actively expanding the base station site market of telecom
operators in Guangdong to provide bulk base site leasing
and maintenance services to telecom operators, where
satisfactory results were gradually achieved. In terms of team
building, teams for effective operation management system,
financial system and legal system have been established, and
team system and team building culture have been formed,
both of which are to create a good growth environment for
employees and to provide more opportunities for employees’
learning and display of their talents. In terms of standardized
management, by focusing on deepening implementation
and strengthening internal control, the Company further
strengthened the enterprise management system and process,
and implemented and gradually strengthened every step of the
system, couple with building of a solid safety foundation for

escorting for the Company’s business development.

Energy storage business is mainly conducted by Jiangsu Anshi
Commercial Energy Storage System Co., Ltd.* [T &k Z b5
fHEERF AR A7) ("Jiangsu Anshi”), a joint venture company
established by a subsidiary of the Company and other partners.
During the Reporting Period, Jiangsu Anshi has completed
the construction of a professional and efficient platform
for operation and management, technology research and
development, supply chain and production and manufacturing,
and established a standardized and modular commercial
energy storage system. In addition, Jiangsu Anshi has planned
a production base for energy storage products, and completed
the first-phase construction and production. Furthermore,
Jiangsu Anshi has also extended its footprints in industrial and
commercial parks, new energy, communications, charging

piles and other industries, and expanded its business scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

lll. PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the overall economy and the operations of the
Group are still full of challenges. The Group will continue to
improve its asset safety management capability, and focus on
implementing a comprehensive and dynamic risk management
system and optimizing its prudent management system, in
order to ensure the long-term and stable development of the
Group and create the best value return for the Shareholders.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue to implement prudent
financial management and cost control, reduce investment
in the finance leasing business, identify appropriate business
and investment opportunities, promote the diversification of
income structure, reduce and disperse the potential risks of
only developing and focusing on the finance leasing industry,
and at the same time expand the income sources of the Group's

business to enhance the equity value of the Shareholders.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB29.50 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 31.55% from approximately RMB43.10 million for the
same period of last year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to

the revenue reduction in financial leasing service, factoring service.

GROSS PROFIT

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s gross profit amounted
to approximately RMB12.59 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 63.36% compared to approximately RMB34.36 million
for the same period of last year. The decrease in gross profit was

mainly due to the decrease in total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WO

COST OF SALES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales amounted
to approximately RMB16.91 million, representing a increase
of approximately 93.48% compared to approximately RMB8.74
million for the same period of last year. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in sales costs of energy storage business

during the Reporting Period.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

During the Reporting Period, the Group's other income and gains
amounted to approximately RMB10.84 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 33.42% from approximately RMB16.28
million for the same period of last year. The decrease was mainly due
to a decrease of tax refund, and a decrease in change of fair value in
financial assets at FVTPL.

OPERATING EXPENSES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s operating expenses
amounted to approximately RMB5.81 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 7.34% from approximately RMB6.27
million for the same period of last year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the adjustment of corporate strategy to optimize the
Group’'s organization structure and the decrease in number of the

sales personnel within the Group.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s administrative expenses
amounted to approximately RMB19.94 million, representing an
increase of approximately 18.90% from approximately RMB16.77
million for the same period of last year. The increase was mainly due
to the increase in the Company's intermediary fees and the increase

in the provision for other receivables risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s provision for impairment
loss on accounts receivable was approximately RMB38.25
million, representing an increase of approximately 420.41% from
approximately RMB7.35 million for the same period of last year. The
increase in impairment loss on accounts receivable was due to the

increased provision rate.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the Reporting Period, the Group's income tax credit
was approximately RMB6.27 million, representing decrease of
approximately 218.08% from income tax expense was approximately
RMB5.31 million for the same period of last year. The decrease was

primarily attributable to the decrease in profit before income tax.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income and expenditure during the Reporting Period
were principally denominated in RMB and most of the assets and
liabilities during the Reporting Period were also denominated in
RMB. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any
material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its operations resulting
from the fluctuation in exchange rate and no hedging transaction or

forward contract arrangement was made by the Group.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

During the Reporting Period, there was no material change in the
Group's funding and treasury policies. The Group had a sufficient
level of cash and banking facilities for the conduct of its operation in

the normal course of business.

BWRIERERR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WO

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

RBEETREFER

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A3MALEE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB RMB

AR®E T ARYT

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERBEEMNRSEEY 182,949,195 148,349,236

Net cash generated from operating activities #&& EE)FTSIR S F5E 108,282,764 300,548,181
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE(FTAR),/ 5

investing activities HeFEE (74,707,998) 29,527,611
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEBFS(FTA)

financing activities HE P 1,025,193 (323,747,993)

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents at end of year of
the Group was approximately RMB182.95 million, as compared with
approximately RMB148.35 million, as at 31 December 2021.

During the Reporting Period, net cash generated from operating
activities was approximately RMB108.28 million (2021: RMB300.55
million); net cash used in investing activities was approximately
RMB74.71 million (2021: net cash generate from investing activities
was approximately RMB29.53 million]; net cash generate from
financing activities was approximately RMB1.03 million (2021: net
cash used in financing activities was approximately RMB323.75

million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately RMB337.49 million (31 December 2021: RMB444.75
million); The Group's current ratio is approximately 6.44 (2021: 8.60).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not have bank borrowings
(2021: nill.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD. B & ECEI)IRH ERA

R2022F12A31H  AEBFRBRERAEEE
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e —

323.75B&TT) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any asset charges
(2021: nill.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 48 employees (2021: 32
employees], and employee expenses amounted to RMB10.42
million {2021: RMB10.66 million). Salaries, bonuses and benefits of
employees and Directors are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual

employees and Directors.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

As at 12 April 2022, Zhuhai Fuyin Yunlian Investment Management
Co., Ltd.*("FY Yunlian”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
Mr. Zheng Deging, Ningbo Airport Logistics Development Co., Ltd.*
and Nanjing Anshi Energy Management Consulting Partnership
(Limited Partnership]* entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "JV Agreement’), pursuant to which the parties have agreed
to establish a joint venture company, Jiangsu Anshi, in the PRC.
Pursuant to the JV Agreement, FY Yunlian shall contribute RMB13.20
million, accounting for 60% of the equity interest in Jiangsu Anshi.
Jiangsu Anshi is principally engaged in the provision of high-quality
new commercial energy storage systems and application solutions
to enterprise customers. For details, please refer to the Company’s

announcement dated 12 April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material acquisition

or disposals during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group’s investment strategy or significant investments include:
1) investments that would enable the Group to indirectly engage in
the industries with rapid development momentum and broad market
prospects, which will bring investment returns and revenue to the
Group; and 2] investments that would enable the Group to explore

potential business cooperation opportunities.

HLEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WO

Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P.*

On 22 June 2021, FY Yunlian, a subsidiary of the Company, and other
partners entered into a limited partnership agreement to establish
a fund (the "Fund”, namely Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye
Investment Fund, L.P.*]. Pursuant to the agreement, FY Yunlian
shall contribute RMB30.00 million (the “Contribution”) to the Fund.
Upon completion of contribution, approximately 28.27% of the total
capital commitment of the Fund was owned as to FY Yunlian. As at 31
December 2022, the Contribution represented approximately 5.86%
of the Group's total assets, and among the Contribution, RMB15.00
million was paid and RMB15.00 million remained unpaid. For details,

please refer to the Company’'s announcement dated 22 June 2021.

The Fund mainly invests in unlisted enterprises in artificial
intelligence, new generation information technology, bio-medicine,
intelligent manufacturing and other fields, sectors or industries. In
China, these industries are regarded as sunrise industries with rapid

development momentum and broad market prospects.

As at 31 December 2022, the FVTPL of the Group’s investment in the
Fund was RMB13.94 million, representing approximately 2.73% of
the Group's total asset. Details of the investment and performance of
the Fund during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16(b] to the

consolidated financial statements.
Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd*.

On 10 May 2021 and 30 September 2021, FY Yunlian, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into two subscription agreements with
Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd*. ("Shanghai KYMS").
Pursuant to the subscription agreements, FY Yunlian shall subscribe
12,626,262 shares of Shanghai KYMS at a total subscription price of
RMB 49,999,997.52. Upon completion of two subscriptions, the Group
owned 20.81% equity interest in Shanghai KYMS. As at 31 December
2022, the total subscription price represented approximately 9.77%
of the Group’s total assets and was fully paid. For details, please
refer to the Company’'s announcements dated 10 May 2021, 31 May
2021 and 30 September 2021 and circular dated 22 December 2021.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD. B & ECEI)IRH ERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERENERES

Shanghai KYMS is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability, and is listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
(2B EERMHOEREFS of the PRC [stock code: 831423). It is
principally engaged in the leasing of serviced offices and provision
of supporting value-added services. The Project of Shanghai KYMS
enjoys an advantageous geographical location. It is mainly located in
the downtown area with convenient transportation such as Shanghai
and Beijing, and a few are located in the core area of the sub-center,
with operational management area over 150,000 sq.m.. As China’s
strong economic development in the post-Epidemic era, the Company

expects a steady recovery in the operations of Shanghai KYMS.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has the significant influence
to participate in the Shanghai KYMS's operating and financial policies
with the power to appoint one director out of the board of Shanghai
KYMS under the articles of associates of Shanghai KYMS, the
financial assets at FVTOCI become associates since 31 December
2022. Details of the investment performance during the Reporting
Period in respect of Shanghai KYMS are set out in note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*

On 29 August 2022, FY Yunlian (a subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a limited partnership agreement with the other partners to
inject capital to Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Enterprise
(Limited Partnership)* ("Beijing Shuncheng Fund"). Pursuant to the
agreement, FY Yunlian shall invest a total of RMB30.00 million (the
“Beijing Shuncheng Contribution”] in Beijing Shuncheng Fund. After
the capital injection into Beijing Shuncheng Fund, the contribution
represented approximately 9.9% of the total capital commitment to
the Beijing Shuncheng Fund. As at 31 December 2022, the Beijing
Shuncheng Contribution represented approximately 5.86% of the
Group's total assets and was fully paid. For details, please refer to

the Company’s announcement dated 29 August 2022.

Beijing Shuncheng Fund achieves investment returns through
investing in the fields of medical equipment, medical services and
other health related fields focusing on unlisted companies. The
medical devices and health-related fields will have plenty of potential
for growth as in China, these industries are regarded as sunrise
industries with rapid development momentum and broad market

prospects.

EERGEER KRB I EREEAT -
W B 2B A/ R DR RS LW (R
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£ H2022F 1283188 ZERAFEFAL
fhE2EBRAZ CREEKBHE QR - B LEFHR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE WO

As at 31 December 2022, the FVTPL of the Group’s investment in
the Beijing Shuncheng Fund was RMB29.97 million, representing
approximately 5.86% of the Group's total asset. Details of the
investment and performance during the Reporting Period in
respect of Beijing Shuncheng Fund are set out in note 16(c] to the

consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold any significant

investments during the Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Group did not

have any specific plans for material investments or capital assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Group
had capital commitments amounted to RMB632,670 which was

contracted for but not yet incurred (2021: nil).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
reviewed the annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period
and agreed to the accounting principle and practices adopted by the

Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMBO0.013 per share).

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD. B & ECEI)IRH ERA
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEAEREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Peng (Z=[) (“Mr. Li”), aged 59, is the chairman of the Board,
general manager, executive Director, chairman of the nomination
committee and compliance officer of the Company. He was appointed
as a Director on 28 September 2012. He also holds directorships or
senior management positions in several members under the Group.
Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Law from Peking University
in the PRC in July 1984. Mr. Li has extensive legal knowledge and
years of experience in corporate management. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a partner of Tian Yuan Law Firm (RITERIE#EFR).
From September 2012 to May 2014, Mr. Li served as a director in
China Lihe Company Limited (I& KRB BMR AT, a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000532). Since July
2018, Mr. Li served as an independent non-executive director in
Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd. (/&R HEE
Bt BPR2AF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600819).

Mr. Weng Jianxing ($Z ) (“Mr. Weng”), aged 45, is an executive
Director and risk management director of the Company. He also
holds directorships or senior management positions in several
members under the Group. He was appointed as a Director on ¢ June
2016. Mr. Weng obtained his bachelor’s degree in transportation,
master’'s degree in corporate management and doctor’'s degree in
business administration from Changsha Transportation Institute (&
W 22i@E ), Changsha University of Science & Technology (K32
T KZ] and Central South University (fFEIAZ2) in the PRC in June
2002, June 2005 and November 2011, respectively. Mr. Weng has
more than eight years of experience in financial products and risk
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Weng was a product
manager in Credit Orienwise Group Ltd. [ EIFEIE B REB RS
BMRAF]) and a risk control manager of CIMC Financial Leasing
Company Limited (R & FEREER AR
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

% EEREAEEERE

Ms. Gong Xiaoting (E ) (“Ms. Gong”), aged 40, is an executive
Director, chief financial officer, secretary of the Board and a joint
company secretary of the Company. She also holds directorships or
senior management positions in various members of the Group. She
was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021. In addition, she is the
daughter of Mr. Gong Liang who owns 45% equity interest in Beijing
Municipality Dayuan Tiandi Property Development Co., Ltd. (3t
MRS AR ME M ERZE B AR ("Dayuan Tiandi), a substantial
Shareholder of the Company. Ms. Gong obtained her bachelor’s
degree from Ohio State University in June 2005 and her master’s
degree from University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign in May 2007.
Ms. Gong qualified as a certified public accountant under The Illinois
Public Accounting Act in the State of Illinois in September 2008. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Gong served as a senior auditor at KPMG
LLP and an investment manager at Ningbo Shanshan Co., Ltd. (2%
2R BR AR (‘Shanshan”), a former substantial Shareholder,
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600884).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Peng Qilei (ZHIZ) ("Mr. Peng”), aged 59, is a non-executive
Director and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021. Mr. Peng
is currently a senior management of Dayuan Tiandi and its several
related companies. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor of engineering
degree in automatic mechanics from Taiyuan Institute of Machinery
(KERE#MEPT) in 1983, and a master of engineering postgraduate
degree from the School of Vehicles Engineering of Beijing Institute
of Technology (Gt RIB T REEH TFEEFT) in 1994. He has extensive
experience in the fields of engineering and management, and
served as the general manager at Beijing Longxin Communication
Cables Co., Ltd. HERBEEBIEEH AR AF). Since December 2020,
Mr. Peng has been serving as an executive partner of Zhuhai Mingrun

Guangju Technology Industry Investment Enterprise (Bx/&88EE/E
PHRERRE TR
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEAEREEEREE

Ms. Liu Jing (218 (“Ms. Liu”), aged 53, is a non-executive Director
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021.
Ms. Liu currently serves as a senior executive at Dayuan Tiandi and
various related companies of Dayuan Tiandi. Ms. Liu obtained her
bachelor’'s degree from Beijing University of Chemical Technology
HEFR{ETRE) in 1991. Ms. Liu has extensive experience in the
field of accounting and was as a financial staff at Beijing Haiyu
Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd. (3t /8 E L& A R]), Beijing Zhongyu
Decoration and Renovation Products Co., Ltd. (3t A FEEARZE R
fmABR A A]) and Ruicheng Hotel (3 AJEJE).

Ms. Tong Fangyan (2% ) (“Ms. Tong”) (resigned on 30 March
2023), aged 39, is a non-executive Director of the Company. She
was appointed as a Director on 8 October 2021. Ms. Tong obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management science from China Agricultural
University and a master’'s degree in technology economics and
management from Chinese Academy of Sciences in 2005 and
2008, respectively. Ms. Tong has extensive experience in the fields
of capital markets, finance, investments and investment bank.
She currently serves as the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Yuanlong Investment Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* (E/8REERE LR

(528) BMRZAF]) and a director of Shanghai Huimao Financing
Leasing Co., Ltd.* (L/BEXREREBR AR, She used to work
at the corporate development and finance department of CITIC

Securities Company Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony E& 1) (“Mr. Fung”), aged 54, is an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 April 2017. Mr. Fung currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of KWG Living Group Holdings
Limited (& =& EEBIZRAR AT, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3913), and an independent
non-executive director of Zhong An Group Limited [(REZSEHFR
2A]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 672). Mr. Fung was admitted as a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"] in
October 2001 and September 2005, respectively. Mr. Fung obtained
his bachelor’s degree in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in October 1992. Mr. Fung has extensive experience in
accounting and corporate finance. He successively served as a staff
accountant, semi senior accountant, senior accountant and manager
in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and a director of Winsmart Consultants
Limited (SAB I E R AR A F]). Besides, from January 2008 to
August 2010, Mr. Fung was the vice president of NagaCorp Limited
(& FRIERAER AT, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange [stock code: 3918]; from January 2011 to July 2014, he was
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Zall Development
(Cayman) Holding Co., Ltd. (FRZER (L) ERERAF]), now
known as Zall Smart Commence Group Ltd. (FREEBEBREGRA
Al), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2098); from July 2014 to April 2017, he was the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (T
LR BBRAR]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange [stock code: 0295); from May 2017 to 30 December 2022,
he was the chief financial officer of Beijing Enterprises Urban
Resources Group Limited (¥ &REE AR A F), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3718];
and from June 2017 to October 2021, Mr. Fung was an independent
non-executive director of S&P International Holding Limited (%
SEBRA7A], a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1695).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEAEREEEREE

Mr. Hon Leung (8%) (“Mr. Hon"), aged 40, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 April 2017. Mr. Hon is an independent non-executive
director of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (R El#% &k
EEEHBR AT, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1226). Mr. Hon qualified as a certified public
accountant by the HKICPA in November 2012. Mr. Hon obtained his
bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of
Hong Kong in November 2007. Mr. Hon has extensive experience
in accounting. He served as an audit manager in KPMG and as a
financial manager in King & Wood Mallesons. In February 2015, Mr.
Hon founded William Hon & Co., an accounting firm, where he has

been responsible for general management.

Mr. Liu Shengwen (2] 3X) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 46, is an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the audit committee and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 April 2017.
Mr. Liu is a partner of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants Shenzhen
Branch and serves as an independent director of Shenzhen Tech
and Ecology & Environment Co., Ltd. (RYITTEELEIRIER D E
fR/27]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300197). Mr. Liu qualified as a certified public valuer and an
accountant by China Appraisal Society (Bl & EFHEHHE) and The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants of the PRC in May
2000 and February 2000, respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a master’s
degree in software engineering from Yunnan University (Ef A
2) in the PRC in June 2012. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in
accounting. He worked at several accounting firms. Mr. Liu was the
deputy director of Baker Tilly China Certified Public Accountants
Shenzhen Branch and the deputy director of Beijing Tianyuanquan
Accounting Firm (At R RE 2 &5HAIFEH5FT) Shenzhen Branch.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

% EEREAEEERE

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaodong (B3R (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 50, was appointed as
a Supervisor and elected as the representative of the Shareholders
on 11 August 2015, and was subsequently appointed as the chairman
of the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory
Committee”] on 12 May 2021. Since July 2003, he has been the chief
financial officer of Dayuan Tiandi, a property developer, where he
has been responsible for the financial management of that company.
Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Tianjin Normal
University (KZRMEAE) in the PRC in July 2001,

Mr. Liu Bing (£2/££) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 50, was appointed as an
employee representative Supervisor of the Company on 7 July
2015. Mr. Liu obtained a graduation certificate in audit from Hunan
University of Commerce [#E#2Fc) in the PRC in June 1995. In
addition, he obtained a price appraiser qualification certificate from
the Personnel Department of Hunan Province (4 AZEE) in
the PRC in April 2001. In December 2011, Mr. Liu also became a
non-practising member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu was
the deputy office director in Linli Development Reform and Price
Bureau (B2 B RMEWER), the head of the audit department
of Shenzhen Shidu Industrial Company Limited (FEIITH i EE
% BPR2AF]), a risk manager in Shenzhen Zhongkezhi Financing
Guarantee Company Limited and the manager of the department of

risk management in Shenzhen Wanfeng Weiye Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (RIITTEEEERBREEZRER AR
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEAEREEEREE

Mr. Sun Luran () (“Mr. Sun”), aged 30, was appointed as a
Supervisor on 12 May 2021. During the period from 12 April 2016 to
12 May 2021, he was a Director of the Company taking an advisory
role in the Board in view of his knowledge in finance, understanding
in the capital and financial market and financial risk management,
which will assist the Board in evaluating and improving the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. He joined
Shenzhen Shanhuitong as a risk control manager in May 2016 and
has been involved in risk management related work shortly after his
graduation from the University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom
in June 2014 and March 2016, where he received his bachelor’s
degree in business management and master’s degree in finance,

respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Peng (Z=[8), for details of Mr. Li Peng’s biography, see

“Executive Directors” above.

Mr. Weng Jianxing (§##), for details of Mr. Weng Jianxing’s

biography, see “Executive Directors” above.

Ms. Gong Xiaoting (B }E), for details of Ms. Gong Xiaoting's

biography, see “Executive Directors” above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of

the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate
governance to its success and sustainability. The Company is
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance
practices as an essential component of high quality and has
introduced corporate governance practices appropriate to the
operation and growth of its business. The Company has applied the
principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)

as contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in the opinion of the Board,
the Company has complied with all code provisions set out in Part 2
of the CG Code, save and except for the deviation from code provision
C.2.1.

Presently, the Company does not have a position with the title “chief
executive officer”. The role of general manager of the Company is
to carry out the duties of a chief executive officer. Mr. Li Peng is the
chairman of the Board and the general manager of the Company.
Since Mr. Li Peng has demonstrated suitable management and
leadership capabilities along with his thorough understanding of
the Group’s business since his appointment as a Director and the
general manager of the Company in 2012 and 2015, respectively,
the Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman of the
Board and general manager of the Company in Mr. Li can facilitate
the execution of the Group’s business strategies and maximizes the
effectiveness of its operations. In addition, as all major decisions are
made in consultation with the members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors offering independent perspectives, the Board is of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers within the Board. The Board shall nevertheless
review its structure from time to time to ensure that appropriate

action is being taken as and when appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPOSITION AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consisted of nine Directors,
comprising three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors

and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the Reporting Period and up to

the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Weng Jianxing

Ms. Gong Xiaoting

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Peng Qilei

Ms. Liu Jing

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Liu Shengwen

The powers and duties of the Board include, but are not limited to
convening general meetings, reporting the Board's work at general
meetings, implementing the resolutions passed at general meetings,
determining the Group's business and investment plans, formulating
its annual financial budgets and final reports, formulating proposals
for profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of the
Company’'s registered capital as well as exercising other powers,
functions and duties as conferred by the articles of association of the

Company (the “Article of Association”).
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Gong Xiaoting and Mr. Wong Wai
Chiu have been appointed as the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Gong Xiaoting is the executive Director, chief financial
officer of the Company and secretary of the Board. Mr. Wong Wai
Chiu is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited and assists Ms. Gong Xiaoting in company
secretarial affairs. Mr. Wong is a fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, a fellow of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom, a member of CPA Australia, a member of the
Hong Kong Trustee Association and a Certified Trust Practitioner.
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu’s primary company contact person is Ms. Gong

Xiaoting.

During the Reporting Period, both Ms. Gong Xiaoting and Mr.
Wong Wai Chiu have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established three Board committees (the "Board
Committees”), namely the Audit Committee, the nomination
committee (the "Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) on 25 April 2017.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony, Mr. Hon Leung and Mr.
Liu Shengwen. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Fung Che Wai
Anthony, who is the independent non-executive Director with the
appropriate professional qualifications. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include (but are not limited to) assisting the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Group, overseeing the audit process, developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, performing duties in relation to corporate
governance function under code provision A.2.1 of Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held four
meetings to review the quarterly financial results announcement
and report for the three months ended 31 March 2022; the interim
financial results announcement and report of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2022; the quarterly financial results
announcement and report for the nine months ended 30 September
2022; and the annual financial results announcement and report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 as well
as significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, and the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, being
Mr. Li Peng and two independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Hon Leung and Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Li Peng, the chairman of the Board.
The primary function of the Nomination Committee include (but are
not limited to): (i) to assess and recommend to the Board suitable
persons for appointment as Directors, Board Committee members,
chief executive and senior management positions; [ii] in the case of
persons for appointment as independent non-executive Director,
to assess whether the person meets the criteria of independent
non-executive Director as may be defined in the GEM Listing Rules,
and also to perform the annual assessment; [iii) to recommend
to the Board the succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman, chief executive and senior management; and (iv) to
ensure that all Directors receive appropriate continuous training

programmes.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to (i) review the structure, size and composition of
the Board; (ii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors to determine their eligibility; (i) review the

diversity policy of the Board; and (iv] review the nomination policy.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one non-executive
Director, being Mr. Peng Qilei and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Liu Shengwen and Mr. Hon Leung. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Shengwen. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but are
not limited to): (i) to review annually and recommend to the Board
the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors, chief
executive and senior management; (ii] to oversee the performance
evaluation of the executive Directors, chief executive and senior
management and recommend to the Board their remuneration
packages, promotions, specific adjustments in remuneration and/
or reward payments, if any; (iii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to ensure
that the level of remuneration for non-executive Directors are linked
to their level of responsibilities undertaken and contributions to
the effective functioning of the Board; (iv] to review the terms and
conditions of service of the executive Directors, chief executive and
senior management including their total remuneration package for
market competitiveness; and recommend changes to the Board
whenever necessary; and (v) to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee considers factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and

desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to review the remuneration package of the Directors
(including non-executive Directors] and senior management and the

remuneration policy of the Company.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive
Directors is to enable the Company to reflect their individual
performance by a reasonable remuneration package. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, performance and other
benefits. Remuneration of the independent non-executive Directors
mainly includes the director’s fee which is a matter for the Board
to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the

independent non-executive Directors and their experience.

The Group provides employees and Directors with fair and equitable
remuneration and benefits based on individual performance,
experience and market benchmarks. The Group have formulated
a set of employee performance appraisal mechanisms and makes
appropriate salary adjustments every year according to employee

performance to reduce the loss of talent.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no share incentive

schemes.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
Committees meetings and general meetings of the Company held

during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:
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Audit Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Name of Director BEEps BEEg EHRZEES REZEE FHZEEE BRAE
Mr. Li Peng & bt 12/12 = 1/1 = 2/2
Mr. Weng Jianxing SrRESE 12/12 = = S 2/2
Ms. Gong Xiaoting BEREFLT 12112 - - - 2/2
Mr. Peng Qilei THRsE 12/12 = - 11 2/2
Ms. Liu Jing it 12/12 = = = 2/2
Ms. Tong Fangyan 2F PR+ 12112 - - = 2/2
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony BERESE 12112 44 1/1 - 2/2
Mr. Hon Leung Bk 12/12 4/4 11 11 2/2
Mr. Liu Shengwen BIAEE 12112 44 = 1/1 2/2
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, each Director participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh his/her

knowledge and skills, details of which are summarised as follows:

ESFEBIIRERER

RBEHR  SEFM2ETHETRER - U#
R KBRS A R - FRIBSbR T

Reading

materials
regarding updates
of new rules and

regulations

RERBRHRAR
Name of Director EEpE ER BRI ER
Mr. Li Peng g4 v
Mr. Weng Jianxing HEEEE 4
Ms. Gong Xiaoting BEEE L+ v
Mr. Peng Qilei THRESESE %
Ms. Liu Jing Bl +
Ms. Tong Fangyan LFEPEL L v
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony BEREEE v
Mr. Hon Leung Fon 4
Mr. Liu Shengwen BIFA X EE

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors and supervisors (the Supervisors”]
of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made to
all the Directors and the Supervisors, and all the Directors and the
Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of

Conduct throughout the Reporting Period.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Group at all times met the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirms all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance

with the independence guidelines.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledged its responsibility of preparing the financial

statements for the Reporting Period of the Company.

The Board is responsible for the clear and fair assessment for
the quarterly, interim and annual reports and other disclosures
according to the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The senior management has provided the Board with
all necessary explanations and information for the Board to make
an implementation assessment of the Company’s financial data and

position and for the Board’s consideration and approval.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the

Reporting Period is set out as follows:

Type of services Amount of fees (HK$)
Audit services 1,430,000
Non-audit services 397,281
Total 1,827,281
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control
measures, the Company understands its duties under the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance [the "SFO"),
and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
inside information. The Company abides by the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC"], and has developed
a complete system of internal procedures and information
disclosure policy for processing and publication of information in
order to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate disclosure
of relevant information to the public and regulatory authorities.
The Company is required to disclose inside information as soon as
reasonably practicable in accordance with the SFO and the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the SFC. The Company also included in its information disclosure
polices a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. The Board will determine further escalation and
appropriate handling the dissemination of inside information.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to have a well
diversified Board by considering a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises nine Directors,
covering different genders and has a broad age distribution and
a diverse mix of age, background, knowledge and skills. As at 31
December 2022, the Board had 3 female members out of the total ¢
Board members, accounting for one-third of the Board. The Board
targets to maintain at least two female representation and will
consider to appoint more female Directors in the future should there
are suitable candidates. The Nomination Committee considers that,
appropriate balance has been struck among the Board members in
terms of gender, skills, experience and perspectives. The Company
will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff
at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have a pipeline of
female senior management and potential successors to the Board in
the future.
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Age Gender Education Background
3 i33] BEER
Accounting/
Finance/
Economic
g3t/
30-45 46-60 Male Female Legal &R/ Management  Others
Name of Directors ~ EBH#% NZF45H  L6Z60R b g e &E i Rt
Li Peng 31k v 4 v
Weng Jianxing SRE v v 4
Gong Xiaoting L 4 4 v
Peng Qilei B2 4 v v
Liu Jing 24 4 4 v
Tong Fangyan 251 4 v v
Fung Che Wei, Anthony 15352 v v 4
Liu Shengwen Ehipe 4 4 v v
Hon Leung B 4 v v

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Directors take decisions objectively in the joint interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. The Board has delegated to the
general manager of the Company, and through him, to the senior
management of the Company the authority and responsibility for
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition,
the Board has established Board committees and has delegated to
these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees
are set out in section headed “Board Committees” in this annual

report.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of

the Company are delegated to the management.

All the Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professional skill to

the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

In compliance with code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code which
became effective on 1 January 2022, the Board has resolved to
adopt a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, to ensure
independent view and input are available to the Board. The Board
Independence Evaluation Mechanism includes various measures to

ensure independent views and input are available to the Board.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent
non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence
on the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
Each independent non-executive Director is required to provide an
annual confirmation of his/her independence to the Company and the
nomination committee of the Company is responsible to assess the
independence of each independent non-executive Director at least

annually.
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All the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate
and express their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in order to
make informed decisions. All Directors have full and timely access
to all the information of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent
non-executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors at

least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director
will be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and
abstain from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the
relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no material interest in the matter should

attend the relevant Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the Board
Independence Evaluation Mechanism is effective in ensuring that
independent views and input are provided to the Board during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

All the Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer. The Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board
regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to

perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors in relation to legal proceedings against the

Directors.

EREF(BRBUINMTES) BB FERERR
BHEFSEBIRERENER  YABEE

AEBEEEE  WEFELABRE - 2BREFY

Tiﬁl&h% SARBIPAER N Al e 2R
ERATESRBEIEXER - LRARRETHR

;'§%$$@ﬁ%%°

EESFEBELEFRNIBEEMEER2ENBEN
TR EMITESRITEH - FmEMERE RS
g o

EREEAEBBANNESERINEEDFE

Mz  HEAEREFERAMERERARE
R o HEB BTGRP EFE R

ZRE - AT ANRBRERVEEAR - RE
BEEPAG REBEALREEANZENBIIE
HITESRLFEIRESEES -

EXTeEEFERAE  BE2022F12A3181EF
B BEEeBV M EEAERURRAEZESE SR
HBINBRESR -

FIEESERARRRERAVBITRE - BTERER
FOERR - WHMEMBHRIG AR R B R BER MM 51T
= bEEARATABERESAREENRIRAA
ARA PRI BB R E A R B AAHE LA
EEENS D RBBTARANEE - EFERAE
EEAARARRRERARE mMEFSTHEMNSE
EERTHHARBANEERAIEL ZER

ARRERIt A EFRENAERRLFEENE
ERERBRRE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT F[E R4

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions.
During the Reporting Period, the Board has discharged the following

corporate governance duties:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and the senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable

to employees and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual

report of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Reporting Period, the Group is committed to maintaining
comprehensive risk management and internal control systems that
enhance the Company’s overall strategy and promote the Company’s
risk control capabilities while addressing various risks, including
credit risks, liquidity risks, interest risks, operational risks and
legal compliance risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has implemented a comprehensive and effective risk management
system with stringent procedures and measures in place, including

multi-level assessments and approval processes.

The Company has set up an internal audit department to analyze
and evaluate the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems. The results of internal audits and reviews will be reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Within the scope of review on
internal control, no significant control defects have been found. The
review results have been reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board.
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The Board oversees and manages the overall risks associated with
our operations. During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. The Board considered the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate in all material
aspects in both design and operations. The Board oversees the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each
year to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly

complied with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the Reporting Period, all departments conducted regular
internal control evaluation to identify risks with potential impact
on the Group’'s business and other aspects including major
operational and financial procedures, regulatory compliance and
information security. The risk assessment results and the proposed
internal control measures have been submitted to the senior
management and the general manager of the Company for review
and approval. The senior management and the general manager of
the Company are also responsible for supervising the effectiveness
of implementation and future execution of the risk control

measurement.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

During the Reporting Period, The Board has adopted a
whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing Policy”]. The purpose
of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a culture of compliance,
ethical behaviour and good corporate governance across the Group;
and (i) promote the importance of ethical behaviour and encourages
the reporting of misconduct, unlawful and unethical behavior. The
nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the
Audit Committee or the company secretaries. No incident of fraud
or misconduct that have material effect on the Group’s financial
statements or overall operations for the year ended 31 December
2022 has been discovered. The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed

annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’'s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables the Shareholders and investors to make the best investment

decisions.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at "www.fyleasing.com”, where extensive
information and updates on the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices

and other information are available for public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests

to the Company as follows:

Address: Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building, No. 128 Xinzhou 11th
Street, Futian District Shenzhen, Guangdong The PRC

Email: jgzx(@fyleasing.com

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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The Board welcomes views of the Shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might
have with the Board or the management directly. Board members
and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the

meetings to answer any questions raised by the Shareholders.

The Board has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy
and its effectiveness was confirmed. With the continuing Epidemic
situation, the manner of engagement with the Shareholders will be

scrutinised from time to time.
Shareholders’ Rights to Propose Resolutions

When the Company convenes a general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee, or the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding more than 3% of the total number of shares of the Company
shall have the right to propose resolutions. Shareholders individually
or jointly holdings 3% or more of the shares of the Company may
submit ad hoc proposals in writing to the convener of the general
meeting 10 days before the convening of the general meeting. The
convener shall issue a supplemental notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the
contents of the ad hoc proposals. If the ad hoc proposal does not
comply with Article 59 of the Articles of Association according to
the view of the convener after his/her reviewing and the convener
decides not to include this ad hoc proposal into the agenda, the
convener shall issue a notice for not including this ad hoc proposal
into the agenda within two days and specify the reasons; and at the
same time, the convener shall make explanation at this general
meeting, and make announcement on the content of ad hoc proposal
and the explanation of the convener and as well as the resolutions of

general meeting after general meeting.

Except for circumstances provided in the above paragraph, the
convener, after issuing the notice and announcement of the general
meeting, shall neither revise the proposals stated in the notice of

general meetings nor add new proposals.
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If a notice of general meeting does not specify the proposed
resolutions or does not comply with Article 59 of the Articles of
Association, no voting for resolutions shall be carried out at the

general meeting.
Shareholders’ Right to Requisite a Meeting

Shareholders requesting an extraordinary general meeting or the

Shareholders class meeting shall abide by the following procedures:

(a) Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
of shares of the Company are entitled to request the Board
in writing to convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
Board shall, in accordance with the requirements of laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within 10 days upon

receipt of the request.

(b) If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, it shall issue a notice of convening the extraordinary
general meeting within five days after the date of the resolution
of the Board. Any changes made to the original proposal in
the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders. If the
Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting,
or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal,
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
of the shares of the Company are entitled to request the
Supervisory Committee in writing to convene an extraordinary

general meeting.

(c) If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, it shall issue a notice of
convening the extraordinary general meeting within five
days upon receipt of the proposal. Any changes made to the
original proposals in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant
Shareholders. If the Supervisory Committee does not issue
the notice of general meeting within the prescribed period, it
shall be deemed as the Supervisory Committee not convening
and not holding the extraordinary general meeting. Then the
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
the shares of the Company for more than 90 consecutive days

are entitled to convene and hold the meeting themselves.
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POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The Company has adopted a dividend policy to provide the Board
with a guidance to the Board on whether to declare and distribute
dividends. In order to keep sufficient reserves for the future
development of the Company, the Board will appraise its dividend
policy based on the operations and earnings, cash flow, financial
position, capital and other reserve requirements and surplus,
contractual restrictions and its overall financial conditions and any
other conditions or factors that the Board considers relevant, so as
to determine or recommend dividends for any financial year and also
the number, amount and form of dividends paid. Any final dividend for

a financial year will be subject to the Shareholders” approval.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

There was no amendment to the Articles of Association during the

Reporting Period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FERHE

The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors for the

Reporting Period to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance leasing,
factoring, advisory services and customer referral services and the
supply of medical equipment in the PRC. The Group is also involved

in other areas, such as 5G Business and energy storage business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Reporting Period, the aggregated sales of the Group to
the top five customers accounted for 58.34% (2021: 33.57%) of the
total income of the Group, and the sales of the Group to the largest
customer accounted for 36.18% (2021: 13.31%).

For the Reporting Period, the aggregated purchases of the Group
from the top five suppliers accounted for 69.83% (2021: 100.00%) of
the total purchases of the Group, and the purchases of the Group

from the largest supplier accounted for 62.76% (2021: 39.20%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, their respective
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital
had any interest in any of the top five customers or suppliers of the

Group.

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note

32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EFMARBRREENHEHANESTS RS -

ETEXK
AEBEZEPEREREBERE  R2E - HiH
R RESEN R RAERERE - AEERE

Hip W RERFAE S - A5G RIHREHETS -

FREFRHKEER

R|ER - AEBRRAREFIEHNBEESE
fRARE BB A B958.34% (20214 : 33.57% ) A
EERRAZFIEHMHEER536.18% (20214 :
13.31%) °

RIREEA - AEERAAHRERSELRRELE
(G E B EIRE R 69.83% (20214 : 100.00%) &
REBRSAEEREDRBREL62.76%(2021
£ :39.20%) °

RHBEHAR - EF RESAZETHEASHNE
=P ABER AR B 5% A £ B BITRA A E A AR
*E%EE$EIE’J£ﬁ%J5iT¥Ef?ﬁEP%&EEH%

o

BX

FEMBERE

AREz ERME
32

DREHNGA M REME

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4Eg & B E CEI) XD BER AT



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The annual results highlights of the Group for the Reporting Period
and the latest five financial years are set out on page 5 of this annual

report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 108 to 268

of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period
and a discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 7 of this annual
report. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of
the Group for the Reporting Period is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 18 of this
annual report. The review and discussion therein form part of this

Report of the Directors.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in this annual report and details of reserves distributable to
the Shareholders are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at
31 December 2022 was RMB80.83 million.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The H Shares were successfully listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 23 May 2017 (the "Listing Date”]). The Company issued an
aggregate of 89,840,000 H Shares by way of public offering. From the
Listing Date to the date of this annual report, there was no change in

the share capital of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend a payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB0.013).

As at the date of this annual report, there is no arrangement that a

Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s listed

securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under Rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules

during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed herein, there were
no contracts of significance (i) in relation to the Group's business
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules] or any of its
subsidiaries; or (ii] for provision of services to the Group by a

controlling shareholder or any or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the Reporting Period and up to

the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Weng Jianxing

Ms. Gong Xiaoting

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Peng Qilei

Ms. Liu Jing

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Liu Shengwen

As Ms. Tong Fangyan intends to devote more time to her other
personal affairs, she has resigned as a non-executive Director with
effect from 30 March 2023.

According to the Articles of Association, all the Directors shall
be elected by the general meeting for a term of three years, and
are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms. Each of the
Directors (including the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors) was either appointed or re-elected at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 12 May 2021 or appointed
at general meeting to the expiration of the term of the third session

of the Board Committee (as the case may be).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors, the Supervisors and
the senior management of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior

Management” in this annual report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’
INFORMATION

There is no change in the Directors” and Supervisors’ information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1]) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (for those
appointed or re-elected at the Company's annual general meeting
held on 12 May 2021] or for a term commencing from the date of the
general meeting at which his/her appointment was approved to the
expiration of the term of the third session of the Board/Supervisory

committee (as the case may be).

The Company has not entered into/executed any service contract/
letter of appointment with any Director or Supervisor which is not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND SERVICE
CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors, the Supervisors or their respective associated
entities had a material interests, directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance (except
service contracts] concerning the business of the Group subsisted as
at 31 December 2022 or entered into with the Company or any of its

controlling companies or subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Group is a party and whose objects are to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and
the management of the Group is currently in force and was in force
throughout the Reporting Period. Throughout the Reporting Period,
the Company has maintained appropriate directors and management
liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liabilities,
including liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and the management of the Group arising from or incidental to the

execution of duties of his/her offices.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or

existed, during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the Reporting Period, details of the remuneration of the
Directors, the Supervisors and the five highest paid individuals of
the Company are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Emoluments paid or payable to members of the senior management

of the Company were within the following band:
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AB

of individual(s)

AB

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

No Director, Supervisor or senior management had waived or had

agreed to waive any emoluments during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS® AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors and Supervisors
had any interest in any business which was in competition or was
likely to compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group
which would be required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing

Rules..

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or in existence during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities

of the Company.

BANK BORROWINGS AND THE MATURITY PROFILE OF
BORROWINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Group does not have bank

borrowings.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its ordinary course of
business, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk, operational
risk and legal and compliance risk. The Group carries out risk
management with the support for sustainable development of the
business and enhancement of the Group's value as the strategic
objectives, and has established and continually improved a

comprehensive risk management system.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and
operating in compliance with the laws and integrity through abidance
by relevant laws and regulations, industry regulations and business
ethics. For the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has not been a party to any material legal,
arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Company was not
aware of any pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative
proceedings against the Company or any of the Directors which could
have a material adverse effect on the Group's operations or financial

condition.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, to the best of the information,
knowledge and belief of the Directors after making all reasonable
enquiries, the Company was not involved in any legal litigation or

arbitration of material importance in which it served as a defendant.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As a financial service provider, the Group is not involved in business
that will generate air, water and land pollutions which are regulated
by the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous
waste was produced by the Group in its course of business for
the Reporting Period. The Group complies with the relevant laws
and regulations in environmental protection and impact on the

environment has always been a major focus of the Group.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The Group
pursues this business approach by managing the business prudently

and executing management decisions with due care and attention.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 35 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. None of the related party transactions are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM

Listing Rules.
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DONATION

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Reporting Period (2021: nil).

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group's relationship with its employees, customers
and suppliers are set out in the "Environmental, Social and

Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing Shareholders in proportion to their

shareholdings.

PENSION SCHEME

According to applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Company
has made contributions to the social security fund for its employees
based on a certain percentage of salaries standard. The Company
makes and accrues contributions on a monthly basis to the pension
plans, which are mainly sponsored by the related government
authorities that are responsible for the pension liability to retired
employees. Under such plans, the Company has no other significant
legal or constructive obligations for retirement benefits beyond the

said contributions, which are expensed as incurred.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As from 31 December 2022 to the date of this annual report, no

significant events have occurred.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of the auditor of the Company in the past

three years.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

Interests and short positions held by substantial Shareholders
and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons or corporations (other than the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had the following
interests or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

BERE

FERRRHEMALTRAR TR RIEEER
HHRRERRIAR

R2022F12A31H  BMESFTRA - AT ALk
EE(FEE - EERARRIREITEHABRIN AR
NI RARRERR (D R A T 5 B ERN A D AR
BESREGAIEIBEETUFENZ LM
ZIETRBORE

Name of Shareholder

RREW/ 12

Class of shares

R85

Nature of interest

BEE

Number of
shares Number of
interested in shares

Dayuan Tiandi ?

KR
Mr. Zhao Dehua ("Mr. Zhao) ?
HEEEE((HEE]Y

Mr. Gong Liang "Mr. Gong)

Jot

G

ARELE(EEE]

Shenzhen Zhonglian Financial
Holding Investment
Development Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen Zhonglian']

AR EEREERAR AT
(PRYIREE )

Domestic shares

RER

Domestic shares

NERK

Domestic shares

RER

Unlisted foreign
shares

S LMINER

Domestic shares

RER

Beneficial owner

ESBAA

Interest of a controlled

corporation

REEEnES

Interest of a controlled

corporation

REEEnES

Beneficial owner

EalAA

Beneficial owner

the relevant interested in

class of the total share

shares of capital of

the Company the Company "
RARQF  Percentage RARF  Percentage
HEERRGT  (approximate) RAZES  (approximate)
B AAk  BEREN ED
ReG#AN (#4) REGHAN (#5)
80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
5,000,000 (L) 4.17% 5,000,000 (L 1.39%
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Number of
shares
interested in

Number of
shares

the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company " the Company "
RARE  Percentage RARE  Percentage
HEERRGT  (approximate) RAZES  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Class of shares  Nature of interest BRERN Balt BAEREN Balt
RRE®/ /4 el BHME o EL (##4) RoEE (##4)
Hainan Mujing Chengyuan Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
Technology Partnership shares corporation
(Limited Partnership] FEMINER REEE R
("Mujing Chengyuan') ©
BERSTNRRARLE Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) 417% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
(BRAR) ([ RRHIE])Y corporation
NER REEENER
Mr. Gong Changjiu Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
shares corporation
BRALEN FEMINER REEENER
Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) £17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
corporation
NER REEENER
Mr. Xu Dongsheng ("Mr. Xu"] ¥ Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
shares corporation
TRALE(TFFEE])S FEMINER REEENER
Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) 417% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%

RER

corporation

REEENES
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Number of
shares Number of
interested in shares
the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company " the Company "
RARF  Percentage RART  Percentage
HEERRGT  (approximate) RAZES  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Class of shares  Nature of interest BRERN Balt BRERN BAlt
RREW/#E RER BEitE kpgam (B%) Rpgan (B4)
Beijing Youke Yu Technology Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
Development Co., Ltd. shares
("Youke Yu") ¥
FTRENENRERER AT F EmoMER ERERA
(MERE])w
Beijing Xinmao Licheng Trading Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
Co., Ltd. ("Xinmao Licheng") shares corporation
FREXUKEERRAT F EmoMERR REFENER
(@RI )Y
Mr. Guo Lidong ("Mr. Guo’] “ Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
shares corporation
HULFE(THELEW F EmoMERR REFENER
Mr. Yan Wenge ("Mr. Yan") Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
shares corporation
EXERE(REEW FELEMINER REEE S
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Number of
shares Number of
interested in shares
the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company " the Company "
RARE  Percentage RARE  Percentage
HEERRGT  (approximate) RAZES  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Class of shares  Nature of interest BRERN Balt BAEREN Balt
RRE®/ /4 el BHME o EL (##4) RoEE (##)
Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 32,340,600 (L) 21.63% 32,340,600 (L) 9.00%
Trading Co., Ltd. ® shares
IRERRAEERRARE FEMINER ERBAA
Ms. Wu Yue © Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 32,340,600 (L) 21.63% 32,340,600 (L) 9.00%
shares corporation
Az L FEmINER REEENER
KKC Capital Limited H shares Investment manager 9,408,000 (L) 10.47% 9,408,000 (L) 2.62%
Hi KA
KKC Capital SPC - H shares Beneficial owner 9,408,000 (L) 10.47% 9,408,000 (L) 2.62%
KKC Capital High Growth Fund HR EafEEA
Segregated Portfolio
A Plus Capital Management Limited ~ H shares Investment manager 9,318,000 (L) 10.37% 9,318,000 (L) 2.59%
Hi& RELE
Tiger Capital Fund SPC - H shares Beneficial owner 9,318,000 (L) 10.37% 9,318,000 (L) 2.59%
Tiger Global SP HR ERERA
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Notes:

(1

(2]

(3

(4]

(5]

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares. As
at 31 December 2022, the Company issued a total of 359,340,000
shares, including 120,000,000 domestic shares, 89,840,000 H
shares and 149,500,000 unlisted foreign shares.

Dayuan Tiandi is owned as to 55% by Mr. Zhao and 45% by Mr.
Gong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhao and Mr. Gong are deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Dayuan Tiandi.

Shenzhen ZhongLian is owned as to 90% by Mujing Chengyuan and
10% by Mr. Gong Changjiu. Mujing Chengyuan is in turn owned as
to 51% by Mr. Gong Changjiu and 49% by Mr. Xu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Gong Changjiu and Mr. Xu are deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Shenzhen ZhongLian.

Youke Yu is owned as to 20% by Mr. Guo and 80% by Xinmao
Licheng. Xinmao Licheng is in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo and
50% by Mr. Yan. By virtue of the SFO, Xinmao Licheng, Mr. Guo and
Mr. Yan are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Youke
Yu.

Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng Trading Co., Ltd. is wholly owned
by Ms. Wu Yue. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Wu Yue is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng
Trading Co., Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were

not aware of any other person or corporation which had any interest

or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Mt -

(1)

(2]

(3]

(4]

(5]

Bk £ XA EE S -

FR[ J#EZA FRBHEIFE ° R2022124
31H - KL aJ4E 7T 7 359,340,000 A2 17
E175120,000,00008 A AL ~ 89,840,000/ HfZ K
149,500,0008% FF £ 50 & & ©

A SEX Iy /88 7 £ K B 55 4 23 FI EB 55% K
45% ° RIFEZ RENFG) - #EERE L
WA SEX M FFE AR D B s ©

FINEHAERNBHIEEZTRASES G
90% % 10% * Ik KB H 5 KA k£ HEF
LD FIEE1%R49% ° RIFFZE A E F
B+ BERASEERFAEWEBRFYFH 7
BRI H s o

BRI A Sk £ HEHZE TS B A 20% K
80% - [fj 2% 3k A ZP 5E 4 B2 = 5% £ 55 Bl HE
HE0%R50% o IRIRFFHFRAEEG - BiX 7
B - EiEE BRI E W ABRER EFBHAR
R R o

AR ERBAEEERAFRRG L+ 2B
B EERRBEGEN - RO LEWEBR
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Interests and short positions held by Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules (which shall be
deemed to apply to the Supervisors to the same extent as it applies to

the Directors).

By Order of the Board
FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Li Peng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC, 30 March 2023
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EHRQ WS

In 2022, the Supervisory Committee executed its supervising function
earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests of the Shareholders
and the Company and carried out its work in a diligent and proactive
manner pursuant to the provisions of the Company Law of the PRC,
the Articles of Association, the rules of procedures of the Supervisory
Committee and the GEM Listing Rules.

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Zhu Xiaodong. Mr. Liu Bing and Mr. Sun Luran. The chairman of the

Supervisory Committee is Mr. Zhu Xiaodong.

I.  MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee held
four meetings in total. Such meetings were held in compliance
with the requirements of relevant regulations and the Articles
of Association and with proper service of notice and quorum.
Major matters considered and reviewed by the Supervisory

Committee include:

o Review of the annual report of 2021, the first quarterly
report, the interim report and the third quarterly report
for 2022.

J Review of the financial budget plan for 2021, the
resolution on profit and dividend distribution plan for
2021 and the financial budget proposal for 2022.

J Considering and approving the work report of the

Supervisory Committee for 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, members of the Supervisory
Committee attended and observed all general meetings and
Board meetings in accordance with laws and monitored
the matters considered at the Board meetings and general
meetings and the compliance with laws and regulations of
procedures. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident
where the Supervisors made representations to the Directors

or sued the Directors on behalf of the Company.

R2022% > EEE@REBEPEARNE  ARER -
(BEEEHFERA) MNCGEM EMARRIMMBERERE -
REBITEERE @ #ERRRARRNELS - B
BEFMFRIIE
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. EZggRfR
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SEEEHE

|.H

o

o BEEIVNFFERE  20NFF—F
EE - AHRENE=FTERE -

o  EHNVNFEFBREFZE - 2021F
EAEREE DI &R R 20225 E 8
S EI= s+

o  BRIWAIA02IFEEFIIERS -

2022912 A318 » B ERELE R
NETHERRAENESE SR HES
EERARRERAGNEREFEREFNE A
MMEREEREE - RIREHA - XA
WEBEESRRARAEEISNHES
HBFFHIEIE o
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60

COMMITTEE ON RELEVANT MATTERS

1.  Financial report BB E
The 2022 financial report of the Company prepared under ARABILRBREBMERELEDRBED
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards has been WRFENBRECKEBLEER
audited by BDO Limited and BDO Limited has issued an SHMEEARARSEZ - MEEH
unqualified audit report. The financial report fairly and ATRERRBERNETRE  EE
truly reflects the Company’s financial position as at 31 NEMRB AR T R2022612A31H
December 2022 and the financial performance and cash B BA 7S AR I UA N2 2022 4F [E B9 B 75 R 3R
flow in 2022. MRZRE

2. Internal control A EB 2
During the Reporting Period, the Company continued RIRERA - $’\ BB e
to strengthen and improve the construction of its BBz g X o AN R]AEBIE HIl A i
internal control system. The comprehensiveness and ’If{%ﬂ"ﬁkﬁ(’lﬁxﬁﬁ Em o BEEEHAN
effectiveness of the Company's internal control were KRB A EBIESI R EMITH E IR
continuously improved. The Supervisory Committee BFEERERRRE o
was not aware of any material defect in the Company’'s
internal control system or its implementation.

3. Implementation of the resolutions of general BRERRKSRZHITER

meetings

The Supervisory Committee had no objection to all
such reports and resolutions submitted by the Board
to general meetings for consideration and approval
in 2022. The Supervisory Committee supervised the
implementation of the resolutions of the general
meetings of the Shareholders and considered that the
Board had prudently implemented the resolutions of

general meetings.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4Eg & B E CEI) XD BER AT
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EHRQ WS

4. Operations in Compliance with Laws and 4 HEEREE
Regulations

During the Reporting Period, the operations of the RIREHAN » AR rEEEREREE
Company were normal and reasonable and were in WESFEMAER ER - RAIRATE
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and B-EEelERIREENARNT SR
the Articles of Association. The Supervisory Committee BIE A BRBRESEEEORRAR -
was not aware of non-compliance with laws, regulations NRERIBEARLN A RRREE N
or the Articles of Association nor of behaviors that were HTTA o

detrimental to the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole committed by the Directors and

the senior management of the Company in discharging

their duties.
FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ERMEHRECRIDBROBRAT
Supervisory Committee ERERS
30 March 2023 202343 A30H
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PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

In accordance with the disclosures requirements under the “comply
or explain” provisions as to the Appendix 20 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Guide”] of the GEM
Listing Rules, this environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) covers the overall performance of the Group in
environmental, social and governance (the "ESG") aspects during the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the "Reporting
Period”). The ESG Guide index is set out in the Appendix of this
ESG Report, which is presented in accordance with the “comply or
explain™ provisions of the GEM Listing Rules during the Reporting
Period.

The Group highly values the importance of making appropriate
disclosure of corporate information to all the stakeholders and
believes that high level of transparency is the key to building
confidence with the stakeholders. Therefore, in this ESG Report, it
highlighted the sustainable achievements in the following areas to
give the stakeholders a better understanding of what the Group has

done to protect the environment and promote social harmony:

TIRE - g RERME([RE  HERERRK
& ) IKIBGEM LT AT 8 =+ CGRIB - L g R E
AMEESI(BE HERERES DN [ TE
FTHBEIGENEBEETER  RETAEER
20221 A1BE2022F12A31 8 1 BRI ([ &1
BOERS g kEa((BR HtERERDA
EHEEBRIR - RIR g RERESINERSIH
RAIRE - g REAREHMEE - RIREHA -
RARIEESFCEM LR R B SPRUERRE J150 -

AEEGEERZERBERRIEEHEMENEARE
THEEN  YRAREPERENDEEIEYL
EERRESE - FIt - AEEEARRE - @ REAR
WEFEIL T AT SHEAERRAR - &
PSRN anERE T B AP T MR AR B SREIRE
FREL S MR EE -

ESG Aspects R - HEREREE  Issues EH
Environmental R - Emissions - B
= Use of resources - BREA
- Theenvironment and natural resources -  RIERARER
- Climate change - RIRE
Employment and labour practices B MRS THER - Employment - ER
- Health and safety = (RS
- Development and training - BREE
= Labour standards - BT AR
Operating practices HEED| - Supply chain management - fEgEER
- Product responsibility - EmEfR
- Anti-corruption - eV
Community M - Community investment - HERE

This ESG Report was approved by the Board on 30 March 2023.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD. B & ECEI)IRH ERA
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
considers ESG-related risks and opportunities as part of the Group’s
overall strategic formulation, and the significant ESG impact caused
by daily operations and businesses. The Board maintains oversight
of and approves the identification and assessment of ESG issues and
confirms that to the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report addresses
material topics related to the operations of the Group and fairly

presents its ESG performance and impacts.

The Board has appointed the Group’s management to supervise the
ESG-related issues and work of the Group. The Group’s management
Is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the compliance with
local laws and regulations with regards to ESG-related issues. The
management is also responsible for establishment of sustainability
strategies, policies and measures to implement sustainability
initiatives, provide sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG

Report.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for
material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment
is conducted annually. The Group ensures various platforms and
channels of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to
its key stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders,
the Group is able to understand their expectations and concerns.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the impacts of the

business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG aspects
through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the
Group; (i) key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement;
and (iii) validation and determining material ESG issues based on the

results of communication with the stakeholders.

ERRE
EEEHRE HERELGSENEE

EE SRR AEERLE AAEMARE Rt ER R
FEARERR  WEBEE AR ARSI R
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Engaging these steps can enhance the understanding of the degree
of importance of the Group's stakeholders to each material ESG
issue, and can enable the Group to plan the sustainable development
direction more comprehensively in the future.

Board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets

The progress of implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Modification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation
or change of business operations. Effective communication about
the goals and targets with key stakeholders such as employees,
customers and suppliers are essential. Setting strategic goals

enable the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results

of achieving the visions.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The ESG Report is based on the following four reporting principles

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
were conducted to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this ESG Report have been collected
prudently. Please refer to the environmental and social performance
data for standards and methodologies used for calculation of key
performance indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have
been presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance leasing,
factoring, advisory services and customer referral services and the
supply of medical equipment in the PRC. The Group is also involved
in other areas, such as 5G base station business and energy storage
business. The Group’s major operations are located in Shenzhen;
Beijing and Nanjin. Therefore, the disclosures in this ESG Report
focus on the policies and performance of offices located in Shenzhen;
Beijing and Nanjin during the Reporting Period in relation to the four
environmental aspects and eight social aspects.
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INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For details about the financial performance and corporate
governance of the Group during the Reporting Period, please visit the
website of the Company at http://www.fyleasing.com/and this ESG
Report.

The Group highly values your opinions. Should you have any
suggestion or feedback regarding the ESG Report and the
performance of the Group on sustainability, please contact the Group

by e-mail at jgzx@fyleasing.com.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online and
offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group
in order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with
the stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders
on their recommendations and propositions to ensure its business

practices which can meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

The stakeholders include the governments and regulatory bodies,
investors, media, suppliers, customers, employees and the
community. The Group discusses with the stakeholders through
various channels for their expectations and relevant feedback of the

Group as below
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
NEEES HERER BEEE
The Stock - Compliance with the GEM Listing Rules = Meetings, training, seminars and
Exchange - ESFGEMEMARAY programmes
Bt SX AT - g% B HETEeMER
- Publishing of announcements in a timely - Website updates and announcements
and accurate manner - MREIRAS
. REERTBAL
Governments = Compliance with laws and regulations = Interactions and visits, government
R IF - EWEREER inspections and compliance operation

- Prevention of tax evasion
- R

- EHPRER - BREMGHREE
- Tax returns and other information

- BBRMEMER
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
NEEES HERER BIEHEE e
Investors = Corporate governance = Optimising risk management and internal
KEE - {EER control
- B ERBRERMA SRS
= Business strategies = Organisation and participation of
= L3 conferences, visits and interviews and
general meetings
- ABKZ2EMEE - THRIBRAS
- Performance and investment returns - Provision of financial reports or business
= RIBAILE [O3R updates for investors, press and analysts
- RREE  HERANSEMEHM G RESE
BEHER
Media - Corporate governance - Posting of newsletters on the company
e - 1EER website
- ERARSE A
- Environmental protection - Adopting green office practices
- RERE - RARERDER
= Human rights = Providing equal employment opportunities
- A - RETEEHS
Suppliers = Payment schedule = Fulfilment of payment obligation
HEm - FREEER - BEONFEH
- Supply stability - Site investigation
- HERE - BEEs
- Integrity cooperation - Establishing a responsible supply chain
- HIEAE - EyasfiEs
Customers = Product/service quality = Monitoring customers’ satisfaction through
®P - Em/RERE enquiry and survey
- BEARANABTEARFREE
= Fair and reasonable pricing = Price analysis and pricing strategy
- RFREEE - EROWMEBERE
- Value of service - Providing after-sale services
- R%EE - RHERERS
Employees = Rights and benefits and employee salaries - Competitive salary and employee benefits
(=1 - REmRAEANIRE B F - EABFIOHMMES RN

= Training and development
- EYIEEE
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
MEAEES HERER BEHEE e
Working hours and working environment - Establishing an open environment for
TR IR discussion
- BURBEEWERER
Protection for the labour force and work - Issuance of staff manual and internal
safety memorandum on health and safety
BITRENIIERSR - EHMEIFMANARREEZEZNAMES
Community Environmental protection - Energy conservation practices
Zadt RERE - HiREEE
Employment opportunities = Providing equal opportunities for all
MEHE employees
- RrERERHTIHE
Community development and social - Organisation of community activities welfare
HEBERMLERET and employees volunteering activities,
sponsorship and donations
- FEMEREY  EETHEERY  EPIE
&
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMFE

The Group conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment on a

number of ESG issues in order to identify which areas have the most

significant operating, environmental and social impacts towards the

Group’s business and are of the utmost concerned by stakeholders.

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting

Guide and taking into consideration of the corporate business

characteristics, the Group has identified and confirmed 22 issues,

which cover environmental, training and development, occupational

health and safety, employee welfare, supply chain management,

corporate governance, customer privacy, anti-corruption and

community investments.

AEBEDHEERE e MERREETEHE
ZMERHE - ABPIHAREEG 2 EZ - BRIERAE
EREMsREZNMNEEEIRBEEIZTH -

RBERE - HEREAREESIMREZEHE
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Materiality matrix of ESG issues

RiE - HEREASEHEEMER

s
(9]
oz
L

10
HIGH|PRIORITY
9 = #

HRREEL 2B 2 HHERE

IMPORTANCE / RELEVANCE TO STAKEHOLDERS

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

IMPORTANCE / RELEVANCE TO BUSINESS
HEBEEM HREEE

8 9 10

HIGHEST
mEfE

Environmental Social Operating practices
B HE “EED
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement 17. Economic value generated
1 REREHN 9. AspitE 2R 7. EEEBENESE
2. Energy consumption 10. Community investment 18. Corporate governance
2. BEIRIRRE 10 L@ KE 18. RXER
3. Water consumption 11. Occupational health and safety 19. Anti-corruption
3. fK 1 BRERRL S 19. RE)S
4. Air emission 12. Labour standards in supply chain 20. Supply chain management
4. BERBERR 12. fEEAN S TR 20. fRpEEE R
5. Waste generation 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
b BERMEL 13. H) R 2. EFPmER
6. Compliance with laws and regulations 14. Employee welfare 22. Customer privacy
relating to environmental protection 14 BEEEF 22. TP
6. BT HBARERERESR 15. Inclusion and equal opportunities
7. Impact of climate change 5. BRMFERSE
7. RIREM LB 16. Talent attraction and retention
8. Use of chemicals 16. AR AT

8. {tEmER
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The operation of the Group has limited impact on the environment.
The Group’s business area is not the main causes of environmental
pollution. Moreover, the business of the Group does not involve
industrial activities and thus the total amount of emission, resources

used and waste produced is low.

However, the Group understands that it is the responsibility of all
corporations to ensure that emission of pollutants and consumption
of resources are minimized and carbon footprints are produced. For
such purpose, the Group has identified the following goals to reduce

consumption of resources:
Goals

- Reducing air emissions and greenhouse gases ("GHG")

emissions;
= Reducing consumption of resources; and

= Reducing production of waste.

EMISSIONS

During the Reporting Period, air emissions include nitrogen oxides
("NOx"), sulphur oxides ("SOx") and particulate matter ("PM"] which

were generated through the use of the Group's vehicle.

There were mainly three types of GHG emissions of the Group during
the Reporting Period, including but not limited to direct emission
from a vehicle, indirect emission from electricity consumed in offices
and indirect emissions from aircrafts when the employees went for

business trips.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a vehicle which travelled
21,405 km (2021: 32,864 km] was mainly for short distance business
trip. The Group encourages all employees taking public transport
to customers’ companies and using the vehicle only in case of
emergency. Meanwhile, the vehicle was monitored and inspected by
the system on a regular basis to keep them in the best conditions in

order to increase fuel consumption efficiency and ensure road safety.
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The employees took aircrafts for business trips for 164 times (2021:
190 times) and the total carbon dioxide equivalent generated from air
travel amounted to 18,615.58 kg (2021: 21,323.10 kg). The purposes
of business trip are business development, risk auditing and asset
management, etc. The Group has adopted a policy of emission
reduction including, (i) the employees only took aircrafts for business
trips when necessary; and (ii] the Group arranges phone or video
conference instead of face-to-face meetings to reduce emissions
from transportation.

For electricity consuming in offices, the Group encourages its
employees to set the air conditioners at the most comfortable
temperature and switch air conditioners and lights off when they are
not necessary so as to reduce emission of greenhouse gases. The
Group has also put notices at eye-catching areas in the offices to
remind its employees about energy saving in the ordinary course of
business. The Group has launched the target of reducing Air emissions
and GHG emission density by 5% in five years based on 2021.

Air emissions from the use of motor vehicles (Nete )

EEFRLREABFTE - —HHF164K (20215 -
90R) MERBEEN _—_SLIREERFT A
18,615.58F 52 (20214F :21,323.10F 5 ) - AHEH
REBER  BEREZREETES - ASEZET
WEEBR - B4 (MEEBEEMENBR TRER
BAE RIAEEeRHETSEIREERE
REEHERE AL RBHIERBEN -

MAERENE - AEEEEEREKZE
REVERE RN TV B = H B - LR
DRERBEHN - NEBITRMAEBRRERE,
BN REEBEARXFGBRETINRR - A%
B2 LA021 AR - BESFRER IR ERED
R 5%H) B AR

/l

£ RS EEE R EERBER ED

Environmental Indicators Unit 2022 2021
RERER Efy 2022%F 20215
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions Kg 19.63 29.08
AEACPINOX)BER ) TR
Sulphur oxides (S02) emissions Kg 0.05 0.09
ZRUEBRISOXHER TR
Particulate matter (PM] emissions Kg 1.98 2.79
FARLY) (PM)BERR TR

GHG emissions from operation

FREeEREENREREIN

Environmental Indicators Unit 2022 2021
RIEEEZ B 20225 20214
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Kg COze 15,899 17,152
B (EE) Fr-_StRES
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Nete? Kg COze 33,622 21,939
2 Bk i (& [E2) e Fr-atikgEE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3] Kg CO2e 21,077 22,980
H b  (§E3) Fr-_ftRkES
Total GHG emissions Kg COze 70,598 62,071

BERBHNEE
GHG emissions intensity

RERBHMEE

TR_SREE
Kg COze per employee
TR-ALRERE S2ER

1,471

1,940
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GHG emissions can be classified into three scopes:

Scope 1:

Scope 2:

Scope 3:

Note 1:

Note 2:

Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned
or controlled by the Group including fuel consumption of

motor vehicle(s) controlled by the Group.

Indirect GHG emissions resulting from electricity

purchased from power suppliers.

Other indirect GHG emissions resulting from paper waste
disposed at landfills, water consumed and employees’

business trips by aircraft of the Group.

The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SO2 and
PM are sourced from: (i] the Hong Kong Environmental
Protection Department’s ("EPD") EMFAC-HK Vehicle
Emission Calculation model; and (ii] the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’'s Vehicle Emission
Modeling Software - MOBILE.1. The assumption of 80%
relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius,
an average speed of 30kmh, and include running exhaust

emissions only.

The national emission factors for Shenzhen, Beijing and
Tianjin are sourced from The Ministry of Ecology and
Environmental of PRC (2019).
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Production of waste

Solid waste of the Group is mainly produced in the daily operation
of the offices, including daily paper consumption, office paper waste
and food waste made by employees. The paper consumption in this
year was 505 kg in total (2021: 337 kg). All domestic waste is collected
and disposed by the property management office of the office
building on a regular basis. No hazardous wastes are generated in

the operations of the offices.

The Group is committed to reducing waste production. The Group
encourages the employees to recycle stationery and reduce
waste with an aim to prevent waste production at the initial stage.
Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital operation method to
centralize all documents and regularly educates its employees
regarding environmental protection. For example, the employees
are required to print double-sided and reuse paper printed single-
sided in order to save and reduce the use of paper and other natural
resources. Permission is also required for printing in the offices
for statistical and adjustment purposes on the use of paper, so that

resource utilization can be enhanced.

The Group has established appropriate measures for disposal
of computers and related products such as printers and toner
cartridges. Unused digital products are transferred or reused while
obsolete accessories and used toner cartridges are collected by third

party companies for recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group encourages its
employees to collect and classify the waste before disposing so as to

reduce the negative impact on the environment.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD. B & ECEI)IRH ERA
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Waste produced from operation

REFTELENEREY

Environmental Indicators Unit 2022 2021
REER B 20224 20214
Hazardous waste produced Nete ! Kg N/A N/A
PREAMA ZRERY W) T TER TiE A
Hazardous waste produced intensity Kg per employee N/A N/A
PRIEANBZTRENEE TR/ 8%ES TiE A TEA
Non-hazardous waste produced Note? Kg N/A N/A
PREEA MR E R Y WD) T TER TEA
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity Kg per employee N/A N/A
PREAMBEZEENTE TR/ 8%ES iE A TEH

Note 1: No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore,

such disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

Note 2: Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group is minimal.

Therefore, no relevant figure is quantified.

The targets of the Group are to maintain zero generation of
hazardous waste and minimal generation of non-hazardous waste in

the next five years.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({# % A R A FBIRIFR
# %)), Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ({
FEARLRMBE KRG AA)) and other applicable rules and
regulations related to environmental protection and did not identify
any violations that were related to environmental protection and
other applicable laws and regulations that has significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gases emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of

the Group.

In addition, no significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations had been

reported during the Reporting Period.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has always been promoting sustainability by assuming
the social responsibility of environmental protection in the course
of business and, on the premise of minimizing the impact on the
environment, creating unlimited possibilities with limited resources.
In this regard, the Group attaches great importance to employees’
environmental awareness, and thus has put forth a number of
initiatives with the goal of “green office”, educating employees about
how to fully utilize the resources and save energy. The Group aims
at maximizing the efficiency of our resources in commercial aspect
while eliminating waste and contributing to the society in social

aspect.

The Group also embraces its responsibility in environmental
protection throughout the course of office administration and daily
operation. Apart from adhering to the principle of recycling and
reducing use, the Group is committed to creating green offices to
minimize the impact on the environment. In light of the nature of the
business of the Group, the consumption of energy, electricity, water
and other natural resources in the offices are limited. Electricity
consumed by the Group for the Reporting Period is mainly due to

daily consumption in the offices.
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Below are measures taken by the Group in saving energy:

o Adopting double-sided printing and promoting use of recycled

paper;

o Switching off unused lights and electric appliances to reduce

energy consumption;

° Keeping the room temperature at a comfortable level and

switching off the air conditioners when not necessary;

o Switching off the air conditioners and lights after office hour

and when they are not in use;

. Requiring employees to turn their computers and other devices
to the sleep mode or switch them off when leaving the office

(including when visiting clients and having lunch]; and

J Conducting regular maintenance for office equipment (such
as air conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators and paper

shredders] to ensure normal operation.
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Signs for reminding employees to save energy
1RRE 8 TEHBEIREVIR TS

As per the business nature of the Group, water consumption is very
limited, mainly daily water consumption by the employees in offices
during business hours. The domestic sewage of the Group does
not include hazardous wastewater and is directly discharged to the
municipal sewer pipeline. In order to reduce wastewater, employees

of the Group are encouraged to save water.

The Group has launched the target of reducing energy consumption

and water consumption density by 5% in five years based on 2021.
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Use of resources from operation RERAEIR
Environmental Indicators Unit 2022 2021
BIRER B 2022F 20214
Energy Consumption
FERE
Units of purchased electricity consumed Noe ! kWh 43,928 25,598
BEEHAEEML MWD T I
Units of purchased petrol consumed Nete? kWh 37,168 62,490
BE)TUHASE LMW FE ks
Total energy consumption kWh 81,096 88,088
EERERRE TR
Total energy consumption intensity kWh per employee 1,690 2,753
BERHRRTE TRE SHET
Water Consumption (ot !
J::p/ GED)
Water consumption M3 137 54
FA7K AV
Water consumption intensity M2 per employee 3 2
RKZE MNFKR/GRET
Packaging Material Consumption Mot
BEMBEREME
Packaging material used for finished products Kg N/A N/A
SURK PR B EAE TR TERA TEA
Packaging material used intensity Kg per piece N/A N/A
FTRBREMHEE T/ 8t TER TiEmA
Note 1: The figures in 2022 covered the electricity consumption from  Ff#3F1 : 2022F B9 EUE R =L « %= R g Ryt

Note 2:

Note 3:

offices in Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjin. The figures in 2021
covered the electricity consumption from offices in Beijing

and Shenzhen.

The conversion factor used to convert data in other units to
kWh is sourced from the Energy Statistics Manual issued by
the International Energy Agency.

As the Group is principally engaged in provision of finance
lease services, factoring and advisory services, customer
referral services and the supply of medical equipment in
the PRC, no packaging material was consumed during the
Reporting Period.

BEE2
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group aims to conserve natural resources and is concerned with
the environmental impact of its activities. The Group encourages
all employees to participate in different kinds of recycling activities
and minimize the use of natural resources. During the Reporting
Period, there is no significant impact on the environment and natural

resources from the operations of the Group.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the
most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no exception,
having increasing concerns over the potential impact from climate
change on the Group’s business and operation. The Group regularly
reviews global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which may

have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two major
categories of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. The
Group will immediately develop a response plan such as changing
the business strategy and modifying the development plan in order to

reduce the negative impacts of such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources
for managing identified climate-related risks and studying the

potential remediation measures.

During the Reporting Period, there is no climate-related risk,
including physical and transitional risks, which have significant

impact to the Group.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group regards its employees as the cornerstone of its
development, and an integral part to its sustainable development.
Therefore, the Group attaches high importance to the training and
welfare of its employees, and is committed to providing a working
environment of job satisfaction for its employees. The Group puts
much efforts to ensure the statutory rights of its employees be
protected and its strict compliance with a series of labour law of the
PRC, including the PRC Labour Contract Law, the PRC Labour Law,
the Social Insurance Law of the PRC and Regulations on the Labor
Management of the Foreign-Funded Enterprises. The Group provides
competitive remuneration and good promotion opportunities to
facilitate career development of its employees. The Group has a goal

to attract, train, motivate and retain suitable talents.
Employment

The human resources policies of the Group are developed in
accordance with the applicable
PRC, including the Labour Law of the PRC ({F ZE A R HEF1E &5 &)
7&)), the Labour Contract Law of the PRC [ #E A R AFMBI A E) S [F
%)) and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC KFZEAREMBEL &

fRB2IE)), to protect its employees’ interests. The asset management

labour laws and regulations of the

department of the Group has also engaged qualified lawyers in the
PRC to closely monitor updates of the laws and relevant regulatory

requirements to ensure its compliance with relevant regulations.

The Group has formulated its staff manual and management system
of human resources according to relevant labour regulations,
covering human resources policies and working conditions, such
as recruitment and promotion procedures, trainings, performance
appraisals, remuneration and benefits, working hours, vacations and

other leaves [marriage leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave).
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Employee structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 48 employees (2021:
32 employees) and all of them are full-time employees located in

the PRC. The distribution of employees by different categories is as

EELE

MR2022F12A318 » KEBEHEF48E (20214 : 32
H)EE - HFEVARTRENEZEEE - L TRE
BIEIDHEE DMINT ¢

follows:

By gender By age
toq el <o RFERED

6%

19%
44% 56%
75%
B Male Female M Under 30 years old 30-50 years old Over 50 years old
St g 30 AT 30E505% 50% A £
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During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate of the Group ~ A& HIMK - AEERE Bkt RILERIE Dm0

by categories is as follows: T

Employee turnover rate Note? 2022 2021

B E 7k tb M 20224 20214

By gender

RERIE D

Male 19% 42%
B

Female 21% 30%
gk

By age group

BRFRARE D

Under 30 years old 29% 55%
30BRIA T

30-50 years old 20% 28%
30E505%

Over 50 years old - 33%
5087 A £

By geographical region

Ry EE 5

Mainland China 20% 35%
B A e

Hong Kong - =
o

Note 1: The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the  FfizF1 : EERKL T NIBENRE MK AR
number of employees who left employment in each category BiEEMASGIAZIERAES FH AR

N

during the Reporting Period divided by the average number

of employees in that category.
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To Attract and Retain Talents

The Group upholds the operational philosophy of optimally using
all available talents and resources and sticks to the employment
principle based on the abilities and morality of an employee. Main
criteria for employment includes morality, knowledge, abilities and
track record of employees so as to make best use of and retain

talents.

The Group provides employees with fair and equitable remuneration
and benefits based on employees’ personal track record,
experience and market benchmark. The Group has formulated a
set of performance appraisal mechanism, in which appropriate
remuneration adjustment is made annually based on job
performance of an employee to reduce turnover rate. To effectively
evaluate and optimise the career life for its employees, the Group
also assists employees to analyse their personal career development
direction according to their own conditions and guide them to
complete the employees’ career development planning form to

establish goals and strategies of their career life.
Benefits and Vacation

To enhance the sense of belonging of employees, foster good
working morale and strengthen cohesion within the Group, the Group
provides various benefits to employees, including contribution to five
types of insurance and one pension fund, and subsidies on lunch,

birthday, transportation and communication and others.

In addition to formulation of reasonable working and rest time
according to local employment laws and system, provision of
statutory holidays and paid annual leave, the Group also provides
additional holidays such as marriage leave, maternity leave and

bereavement leave.

Furthermore, the Group organises a series of employee activities
annually, helping employees to integrate into the corporate culture of
the Group. Meanwhile, relevant training programs are also designed
at the request of various departments so as to enhance employees’

job skills and promote their job satisfaction.
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Inclusion

The Group is determined to creating a fair and equitable working
environment where all employees will be treated equally and no
discrimination or harassment in workplace will be tolerated. No
differential remuneration package is provided based on employees’
gender, age, marriage status, race, religious belief or other
factors irrelevant to the job. If an employee thinks he/she is being
treated unfairly, he/she can report and reflect to human resources
department. Various departments will also implement internal
control. The Group will issue a written warning to any employee in
violation of the regulations of the Group if any unfair case is found or
verified. Such employee will be subject to termination of employment

if the violation is serious.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
labour laws of the PRC and relevant regulations, and had not been
involved in any event of breach of laws and regulations relating to
employment relationship, compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare which

had a significant impact on the Group.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or

sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.
Health and Safety

Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the employees mainly
work in the office and their possibilities of sustaining work injuries
are limited. No serious work injury incident occurred in the Group
during the Reporting Period. As for laws and regulations of the PRC
in relation to the occupational health standards and safe production,
the Group did not record any major non-compliance during the
reporting year. The Group maintains work-related injury insurance
for all employees in accordance with the Social Insurance Law of
the PRC ((HZE AR H£FEI+T {RBED) as well as other laws and
regulations of the PRC.
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In addition, to foster and maintain a good, comfortable and healthy
working environment, the Group has implemented a series of

policies:
o to maintain obstruction-free emergency access in workplace;

U to provide a workplace with adequate illumination and

moderate temperature;
o to restrict smoking in workplace; and

o to conduct safety inspection and training of fire prevention

regularly.

I BEEMRT R - FFEMERENTHER
B AKEERT —FRIEK

RETESMAMAESH OEE

o REXBERMBEETHITIESAM

o ZIFETRSMRE: &
o EHETZEREMETHAEREI

Fire safety equipment in the workplace

RIIEZRRE Z 2K
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In an effort to prevent and control the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has been closely monitoring and following the
policies and advice from local government and strictly implementing
numerous protective and control measures at its workplaces
to safeguard the hygiene and safety of the employees, including
(i) establishing a contingency working team, reporting to general
manager, to coordinate the purchasing of protective equipment and
cleaning supplies; organise disinfection programme at workplace;
and introduce policies and guidelines for epidemic prevention
and control and maintain communication with employees timely;
(i) establishing mandatory body temperature screening procedures;
(iii) providing disposable protective face masks and hand sanitizer
for its employees; (iv] conducting regular cleaning and disinfection of
offices; and (v) providing new CQVID-19 training on safety production
for all staff.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Law of the PRC on Work Safety, Regulations on Work- Related Injury
Insurance of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that
has a significant impact on the Group relating to provide a safety
working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards during the Reporting Period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or

sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.

There were no work-related fatalities reported for the years ended 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022. During the Reporting Period, no loss

days due to work injury were noted.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always puts great emphasis on talent training and
believes that employees’ skills and experience are essential to
promoting the long-term development of the Group. Continuing
education is one of the effective ways to maintain employees’
competitiveness in the industry. Therefore, the Group annually
formulates annual training plan with an aim to enhance employees’
performance through effective training, counselling and in-service
development. The trainings cover various topics, including but is
not limited to, factoring business knowledge, asset management,
business process, qualification training for secretaries of the board

of listed issuers and internal control training for new employees.

The Group organises vocational guidance activities at irregular
intervals and make full disclosure of information relating to
career development in the Group through various channels. The
Group identifies suitable positions and career paths for employees
through an analysis of employees and the Group’s positions in
order to increase employees’ competitiveness. The administration
and human resources department formulates various action and
measures required to achieve employees’ career goals based
on their own conditions, such as participation in various human
resources development and training activities of the Group,
development of their networking, participation in courses outside

working hours and acquisition of relevant knowledge and skills

R R
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employees trained  RREHIRE - ZIEE R&EE AT TR
and the average training hours completed per employee are shown M BHDLIAT ¢

as follows:
2022 2021

2022F 20214
Percentage of employees trained Mot 75% 78%
ZiEE T DD
Percentage of employees trained by gender o2
REFE S ZHERENE DL
Male 56% 40%
B
Female 44% 60%
i
Percentage of employees trained by employee category Not?
RESEHESZIEENE I LL WD
Senior management 1% 12%
BRERE
Middle management 25% 28%
RREIRE
General staff 64% 60%
EmET
Average training hours per employee o3 2.2 hours 1.8 hours
BREE FI9Z g 2.2/NBf 1.8/ Nk
Average training hours completed per employee by gender Mot ¥
RMEBI B D BB B 5T A M T 19 Z 3 R g i
Male 2.5 hours 2.2 hours
S 2.5/\B¥ 2.2/ )N
Female 1.8 hours 1.5 hours
g 1.8/ B§ 1.5/ \BF
Average training hours completed per employee by employee category Mot 4
®RES X R85 %188 5T B K 19 32 5| B gy )
Senior management 5.5 hours 7.3 hours
BRERE 5.5/ N 7.3/ )N
Middle management 2.5 hours 3.1 hours
hREIRE 2.5/NBF 3.1/
General staff 1.7 hours 1.5 hours
LT@ET 1.7/ B 1.5/ N\
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Note 1: Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the number of employees who took part in training by the

number of employees.

Note 2: The percentage of employees trained by category is
calculated based on the number of employees trained in
each category during the Reporting Period divided by the

number of employees who took part in training.

Note 3: Average training hours per employee is calculated by
dividing the total number of training hours by the number of

employees.

Note 4: Average training hours by categories is calculated by
dividing the total number of training hours for such category

by the number of employees in the corresponding category.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group prohibits the use of forced labour and child labour,
and lists important notes of recruitment process in policies and
procedure of human and administration department. The Group
has stringent requirements for shortlisting employees. In recruiting
candidates for positions below management level, the Group
requests job applicants to provide identity card, academic certificate
of their highest level, professional certificates and employment
separation certificate regarding their former jobs for verifying their

identity.

If the management of the Group finds illegal employment of child
labour or forced labour within the Group, their employment contract
will be terminated immediately by the Group. After inquiry into
the cause and finding out persons held responsible, the Group
will impose appropriate punishment on those in violation of the
regulations. No employment of forced labour and child labour

occurred in the Group during the Reporting Period.

M - XeMBRE AL TEB2 IR R ABERIA
BEAZGTE -
iFE2 - RERBIDZIEENB AL IRERS
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M3 : BEER

BfaEs : RIERIEI D FHZ I BIRBZEHIF

A ERFBIER AME SR R B ARGTE
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The Group endeavours to protect human rights, creating a workplace
of respect, sincerity and fairness for its employees and customers,
and comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
employment and labour that have a significant impact on the Group
including the Labour Law of the PRC ({FE AR X FE L &)%)
and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC ({(FhZEARKLMBELE &
[E%)). The Group did not record any major non-compliance during
the Reporting Period. No non-compliance with law that resulted in

significant fines or sanctions had been reported in 2022.

OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The objectives of the Group are to purchase goods from creditworthy
suppliers and ensure such suppliers provide good products that

meet the standards of the Group.

The Group believes that establishment of sustainable supply chain
and facilitation of interaction and communication with suppliers
and bankers will improve the confidence of customers and other
stakeholders on the Group. Therefore, the Group only maintains
long-term cooperative relationship with medical suppliers and
bankers of good creditworthiness, sound reputation, quality
product and service, good track record and eligibility. The Group's
purchasing scope mainly covers medical equipment, office supplies
and accessories etc. Currently, the Group’'s main suppliers are
mostly from the PRC. Focusing on establishing close cooperation
relationship with its suppliers, the Group has been working together
with its suppliers to reduce their impact on the environment from
their production processes while ensuring their provision of quality

products and services.

Although most of its medical suppliers are designated by customers,
the Group has formulated written policies and guidance to monitor
suppliers’ performance regularly in order to track their service
quality more effectively. The Group will cease cooperation with

suppliers who fail to meet its service quality standards.
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During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by

geographical region is as follows:

RBEHAR - RS SWHEEEBBELT ¢

2022t 2021

20225 /i1 20214
Region
&
Mainland China 12 18
SACipNES
Hong Kong 6 7
B

Note 1: Suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services
to the Group with total contract value of over RMBO. 1 million.

Product Responsibility

The objectives of the Group are to protect customers’ information

and keep customers free of worries.

The Directors and management team have extensive experience
in the financing services industry. The Group provides customised
financial leasing services tailored for customers who are in need
of relevant equipment in their business operations. In addition, the
Group provides its customers with financing and accounts receivable
management as well as consulting services. The Group has an
experienced and stable management team that allows it to deliver

reliable and efficient services to its customers.

In addition, the Group places strong emphasis on the confidentiality
of customers’ information. Although there are no existing laws
and regulations governing privacy in the PRC, in order to gain
confidence from customers and lower the risk of revealing
confidential information by the employees, the Group has established
an internal documentation management system, including
administrative measures for information privacy and implementing
rules for information privacy management, which specifies the
right procedures for the employees to handle the information of
the Company and the customers, so as to enhance the regulatory

mechanism and prevent the leakage of customers’ information.

WEE1 - BRI A AL EIE (R A WA EHEBAR K
108 TTER R IR HIER -
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o employees must have a sense of confidentiality and definitely

do not ask, say or look at anything that they should not;

J talking about or transmitting the Company’s confidential
matters in public places, via public telephones or public

network platforms is strictly prohibited;

o without the consent of the meeting organizers, employees may
not take photos, record or reproduce the confidential matters,

and strict punishment will be imposed once discovered;

o may not throw away drafts, first drafts or outdated documents
at discretion. If there is no retention value, such documents
should be destroyed in a timely manner. Such documents
should be treated as final drafts and be handled according to

confidentiality principles and requirements; and

U documents containing sensitive information of the customers
or the Company should be kept by specified personnel of each
department. Unless necessary, such information should not be

transmitted to other departments.

Moreover, the Group requires employees to sign confidentiality
agreements, which strictly require employees to follow the
rules regarding confidentiality management and the relevant
system established by the Group to perform their confidentiality
responsibilities, so as to protect the interest of the Group.
Confidentiality agreements specify the content and scope that the
staff should keep confidential, their confidentiality responsibilities
and liabilities for breach of contract. If employees disclose or
reproduce any trade secrets of the Group without the Group's
consent and authorization, the Company will dismiss the employees

and reserve the right to institute legal proceedings.

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual property
protection, therefore it is dedicated to protecting and enforcing the
Group’s own intellectual property rights as well as the intellectual
property rights of third party. The Group will ensure terms in relation
to intellectual property rights are included in the cooperation

agreements between the Group and its business partners.
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Maintaining high quality standard for products and services are the
most important for sustainable development of the Group. The Group
ensures that the medical equipment provided for its customers are
in compliance with the Article 6 of the Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices ({ BB 234 25 B 5 B K1)
of the PRC, the medical device products shall satisfy the national
mandatory standards for medical devices, and, if no such standard
Is available, meet the mandatory industrial standards for medical
devices, and registered or filed product technical specification. The
instruction manual and labelling of the medical equipment are in
compliance with the Provision on the Management of Instructions
and Labels of Medical Devices (K 8231 BAE TR B IBIRTE ) of
the PRC. After-sales and maintenance services are provided for the

Group’s customers in order to boost their lifetime value.

During the Reporting Period, there were no recalls of products due to
safety and health reasons and no complaints related to product and

service were received.
Anti-Corruption

The objectives of the Group are to promote anti-corruption, anti-

money laundering and no bribery, extortion and fraud.

All the businesses operated by the Group are in compliance with the
national and local laws and regulations regarding the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance [ B Lk #5 8§ 1§ 1l ) ) of the Hong
Kong Legislation. The Group requires its employees to strictly follow
the requirements of the aforesaid ordinances, in order to prevent

behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Besides, the Group has established internal administrative rules
regarding anti-corruption, and implemented a comprehensive
mechanism to strictly monitor each employee, ensuring no employee
has any behaviour that violates the discipline, rules and laws, such as
behaviour for gaining personal interests, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. The Group is determined in combating corruption
and contribute in building a corruption-free society. If there are
any suspicious cases, employees can report to the management
in absolute secrecy, and such cases will be passed to the relevant

department for investigation.
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With a view to protecting the Group’s interest, the Group requires
employees to strictly follow the code of conduct listed in the
employee manual. The Group also provides relevant training to
employees regularly with an aim to enhance their awareness on

anti-corruption, money laundering and other illegal acts.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC ({#FZE A R XHMBE & T 1E
& %% F 75 ) ) and other applicable laws and regulations that has a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering during the Reporting Period. There was no
legal action against the Group or the employees of the Group for

corruption.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group deeply understands the importance of giving back to the
society, as such, the Group uses the best endeavors in providing
help. The Group encourages employees to participate in community
activities, and to contribute to the sustainability of a harmonious

society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (IRiE - 2 RERIHEIES|) RSl

REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

A. Environmental

Disclosures

ARE REEH
A1: Emissions
A1 BB
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with Environmental
—RIEE relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact RE
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
BRERKAZEREYR - KRS  EEREE
BEEVNELEH : @QER  RbETHETABERTE
EVAERDER AR B EHYL o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Emissions
RS ERIR IR ALY B R R R BER
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions
A2 RERBAHINE BEIK
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Not applicablem’
A3 FELEERENRE @ R
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Not applicable ?
AL FELBERZENAE i a2

A1.5 Description of emission targets set and steps taken to achieve Emissions

them

BE

A5 PRI MOBERE B AR R AR BIiE L B AR R IR R

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Waste production

are handled, and a description of reduction targets set and BEEWIEE

stepstaken to achieve them

Als HMERIEAERBEEEMNIE - RE R FTRT AR B

BRAEDELR BRI SR

Notel: During the course of business, the Company did not produce  Hfi1 :
any chemical or medical-related hazardous waste.

Note2: During the course of business, the Company did not produce a — fifit2 :
large amount of non-hazardous waste. Therefore, NoteZ:it did

not include the data of non-hazardous waste in the calculation.

AR FRE R EE B W AEEL (LS
AE AR B ZEEY)

ARBIRRE LE BT UEELAEEE
BEEY o AUt » AREIARBIEEZERY
BIEMAGTERBENA -
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A. Environmental Disclosures
ARE HEEG

A2: Use of Resources

A2 BiRER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, Environmental
—RR IR water and other raw materials. R
BRERER(BIEEIR - K REMERM ) BB E -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Use of resources
RASR A 1R A2 RBPRBIDNER R SHEERERERE BREM
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Use of resources
A22 BFKEREE HIRER
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency targets set and Use of resources
steps taken to achieve them BERER
A2.3 HBETRIERMMEFARILM B IR R AEREL B RAR
e Z 5

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of resources
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency targets set & /R {5
and steps taken to achieve them

A2.4 HEIKEVERKRES B EARERE - AR AR LA
B R R AZEDE LB RATEREE 25

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Use of resources not?

A2.5 BEFTABREMEHEE BIR e s

Note3: The Group’ s business operation does not involve production — K3 : KEFAIEFELEBTHRAEBFE - FIA
process, no packaging material is consumed by the Group. EE[F O EFEF ] B R o
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A. Environmental
ABE

Disclosures
HEEG

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RIERXAER
General Disclosure
—ARH R

KPI
RRSRAARUEIR

A4: Climate Change
A4 RIREE
General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI
FRBHARUIETR

Policies on minimising the issuer’ s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
WIEETAHRRERARAAEREXNERNZENBR -

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them

A3l AR EHHIREMARARERNEATERERNE
BRBTENTE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

BRI EHE RN HEITAELETENEARIZEH

EEMEE -

A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

ALl HEIE R MRS B BRITAELR ENEARIKERE
B ReRRERERZENTTE -
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B. Social
B.AtE

Disclosures
HEEG

B1: Employment
B1: EfE

General Disclosure
—MRBEE

KPI
FRRARIER

B2: Health and Safety

B2:fZFREZ 2
General Disclosure

—fRIEE

KPI

il

EIEIR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b] compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFHEEE BERENT  IERE - REY - T5#

g Zult  REBAREMFERENE : (a)BER ¢ Kib)

BTHETABERTENMEMERMROINER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region

B1.1 iR - EEER - FieERI SRS D e EHBAR

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

B1.2 MR - FiAER MR EIDHEE MK X

Information on (a) the policies; and (b] compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BERRHZ2TERELRERBEERBELREN : ()R

R RETHEITABEARENRMERRROINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

B2.1 AT{ERARMILTHAZMILER

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B22 RTBEARTERR -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B2.3 HHAATERMABRBRELT 215 - ARBENITRE
BTk
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Employment

(A

Employment

(A

Health and safety
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Health and safety
[EAEe
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B. Social
B.itE

Disclosures
HEEG

B3: Development and Training

B3: 3B K IEF
General Disclosure
—ARH R

KPI

il

ol

B RIEIR

B4: Labour Standards
B4:% T8
General Disclosure

—fRIFE

KPI
FRRABUIER

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRRTES BT TERE A B R REEHBUR © it 53l

EE) °

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

B3.1 UERIREEREF(NERERE PREEE)SDH
XlEEADLL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

B3.2 MR MEERFIE D - BREETKIIINFHE
2

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRI LB Teoa b2 T ¢ (a)BER - RbETHRITAR

BEARFENEBERLROINER -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

B4.1 AR FT RIS E M AB R ET RRHISET -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

B4.2 flEIIRERBENEEIRA ISR 5 o

Development and training

R N S5

Development and training

TR N S5

Development and training

R S S5

Labor standards
& TR

Labor standards
8 T8

Labor standards
TR
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B. Social
B.AtE

Disclosures
HEEG

B5: Supply Chain Management

B5:{tfESEEIE
General Disclosure
—ARH R

KPI
RRRAARUEIR

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
EEHEENIRFE R SRR

B5.1
B5.1
B5.2

B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

B5.4

B5.4

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
miEE T EERHA -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

Wil AR A EENES - RMERTERENNHE
BHE ULERENNRMITRERTE -
Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B BB RS S ERE VIR Rt @ E R a0 E
{5l ARARRARNTT REEERITIE

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

W E SRR (282 AIRIRE m RIS 1ER -
ARAERAIT R EER A
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Supply chain management

R E

Supply chain management
HiEEE R
Supply chain management

HEsEE R

Supply chain management

HEEE R

Supply chain management
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B. Social
B.itE

Disclosures

REEH

Bé: Product Responsibility
B&:EmEE

General Disclosure

—fRIFR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

ERMRHEERTREHRERLZE BE BRELES

HIARFERITED : (@B - Rb)ETFTHETABEATE

EVAERDER MR BRI EHYL o

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.1 BEXDEXERAHTRL 2 EEEIEHMAR K
Bt e

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

B6.2 RN Em MRIGHIRFEE AR BETTX -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 Hull B I (RIE A FIHVIE ) -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

Bb.4 fiiE E4n5E B2 MEMmBIKIZRF ©

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5 filH B E ERHRIE RALBEER - URBERITRER
Tk

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility

EDD EE

Product Responsibility
EmAfl

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility
EmafE
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RE - g RERRE

B. Social
B.AtE

Disclosures
HEEG

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : RE)S
General Disclosure
— MR BEE

KPI

i

ERIERR

i

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

B ERRRE - B1R - MEFROLRER : (@Q)HR ¢ R(b)&ET

HBETABERTENRERLAPINER

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

B7.1 RERPAHEITAREESRHYEBRENEISTHA
EMREE MFAAER -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B7.2 At EiEIE R BRIZR - ARMBBITRERITE

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.

B7.3 HAAESME TRHEMNRESE -

B8 : Community Investment

B8 : {tEIRE
General Disclosure
—Rg IR ER

KPI
RARARIER

Note4: During the Reporting Period, there was no legal action against — [fit4 : RIFERIA - IS 151K £ [F o N 5 5]

the Group and the employees of the Group for corruption. B THIE SRIFREASME o

Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

B ER2ERTHEEMELRFENEREEELD

SERLENEOBER

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport].

B8.1 HIEREK(MHE  REFE  BIHFXR  BFE -
e - 885) -

B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas.

B8.2 HEIHRAIEIRIRA -
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Anti-corruption
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X BED RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the PRC with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FY
Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) set out on pages 108 to 268, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs"] issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

HERBEAECRIDENHERABBRR
(PR BB BRAR])

=R

RMEEZINENFI108EE28B M EREM
ECRINBROBERAT(ELT]) REHWBE QT
(HeiE BEE ) 2R MBmE - 2FeMBmEk
BER2022F12 A3 BHEE MBI E - B E
ZHEIEFENGFEEAEER  GAR=EBERR
AR RERNURERE PRI - BFFEEX
SEHBRHE -

BMRAE  GREMEBRREREEESHAAE
(BRSO BB BN HREERNEE
mAst Rl HEEMN2022F12A831BHEGE
BIRSRIA R B =% A L FERAR A R RAR
EHRERE  WEBRBBREEHI(F622F)K
B RHTE Z AR -

RRNERM

BPEREBESHMSRMNBTBEZER
([ERBERELDETER - WMEZFENTH
BECEARE [RBENEZAR A SRR ALE
MEME] - EE— T - REFESFL
eRfe FxRestaamTA (T - &8
IR BERE - YEETTRRNEMERET -
BIEE - BRAIMESHEZREERD LEEL
REMNERIREER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable

The Group's accounts receivable consists of finance lease
receivables, receivables from sale-leaseback transactions, factoring
receivables, trade receivables and receivables from operating
leases, and accounted for RMB156,718,961 or 31% of the Group's
total assets. The assessment of impairment of accounts receivable
under the expected loss model is considered to be a matter of most
significance as it requires the application of judgement and use
of subjective assumptions by management. The Group assesses
the expected credit loss ("ECL") according to forward-looking
information and used appropriate models and a large number of
assumptions in its expected measurement of credit losses. These
models and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by customers and the corresponding losses). The Group
has adopted judgement, assumptions and estimation techniques in
order to measure ECL according to the requirements of accounting
standards such as criteria for judging significant increases in credit
risk, definition of credit-impaired financial asset, parameters for

measuring ECL and forward-looking information.

The disclosures of the allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable and the related credit risk are included in notes 5, 20 and

41(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EiREE A E R IRHBRA

FARELSEE

FREZFRIRERMNEXHE - RESHAH
NEFERMBHREANBEZRAEENFE - ZFFH
DERMPECEEVBBRREXMEAERRE
B ZMTeUZSEFTRRHERNER -

FE WS BRFKORL (B8

BERENEERARERBEEERNER  EREER
SRR ~ RIZEWSIR - BUSRAMEEHE
Y RIE /S AR 156,7189617T - 16 ESXEAE
BEM31% - BB EEAIR T A BUERFORME T
ERRAREASTEH REFEEEERBAEK
EREHERE - BEREREAEEENTEEDR
FEBHR(HEBEEER D YREEEBHENER
AEPRAEERARKERR - ZFRARRR
BERRERBRERR R ERAGEE(MEFPENR
HRBEERNAIREL) R - BERECRES
FHERIB AR E (2016 15 & R KR IE IR IR 2 -
EEREEREENTSR TERREEBENS
B ATEIEE R RN HET - BRER SRR
EREMERER -

EWER TR E R E LB EE RN ES R LGS
B FS SRR FES ~ 208241 (a) °

=



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X BED RS

Our response:

We performed reviews of accounts receivable on a sample basis,
considering the credit profiles of the debtors, guarantors and the
collaterals, as well as external evidence and factors, to assess
whether management’s assessment of ECL was appropriate.
We adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our tests of the
allowances for impairment of accounts receivable. We selected
samples of accounts receivable considering size and risk factors
for our tests on the reasonableness of grading and measurement
of impairment. We assessed management’s forecast of future
repayments and current financial conditions of the debtors,
based on historical experience, value of collaterals [(if any) and
observable external data, etc. We also evaluated the parameters
and assumptions used in the measurement of ECL such as criteria
for judging significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-
impaired financial asset, parameters for measuring ECL and

forward-looking information.

We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s disclosure
of the allowance for impairment of accounts receivables and the
related credit risk in notes 5, 20 and 41(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

HMAIEE

BAISRUCRFETT AR - ZREBA - R
AREHRBEOEEBRARINEERMEE - AFE
HEEBHEMEEERNFIRELEE - R
PRI IR FOR (B B SRAME R R By BV )T
% o RAPFIFLRFAR A B BB ERT BRI UK ARE K=
SRR EZE - EEFRUERFEAN - HAENE
g HEWm(mB) WEENRABERIIBHIE
% FHEBEEEHESARKER MIRE M BAOR
BFER - AT BT EREEEEERRANZ
LR - HEEERRARIEMORE 8
WESREENTEE HERMEEERN2ENK
RIRE M AR o

BTG A SR B4 B IR R B B R B B 1
PAR AR & BTSSR M LD - 2041 () FREARRA(E &
[\
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

REZGAVBREME - RANEERMERM
B WEBRTERRMENEEBEATH
Wk RBRPIEBLRIETHA TROBAFEER
ERESUFFEERERFL - EREFIEAITH

T WHRMARBREMERFESREREML - 3
PIBEREZEE - Bt E - WAL B ETRE -

ESRARSMBERRAKENEL

EXARERBERLESTMASBEMNT BT R
SEARBEARAGINEBEREREREEMT S
MERB M BHRE - YHER/REHEAMHFRERN

BETFAERNFFERMEBEASE R
PR BRI NEREHI B & -

EREGAMBHREK  EFRENE EKEN
FEQEEN  YHEEAEBR TREESELESR
O EE  ARERFELERSTER  HES
BER BEREBRRMUFLEENKFELMBYIER]
TRV R AIBRSN ©

EXNEEEE BESENMBEHREEE -
BEempERRTH T ENEE -

BRE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

BREMHERRS M BHRREBENEE

BB RARGEEMHBRRBEBREE MrEdAR
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BREIERERT -

BERATBSXKTRE - ETERERETEEX
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o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

o HEEEMRASHBENRELERELS
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ho Yee Man

Practising Certificate Number P07395

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rezElER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

2022 2021
20225 20215
Notes RMB RMB
(g3 AR¥T AR¥T
Revenue & 7 29,501,524 43,095,195
Cost of sales HEMAR (16,909,133) (8,739,341
Gross profit EX 12,592,391 34,355,854
Other income and gains E bl A R as 7 10,841,918 16,275,946
Operating expenses RS (5,813,385) (6,272,594
Administrative expenses THRAX (19,938,843) (16,773,331)
Impairment loss on accounts receivable, net  FEWBRZUREE1EIF 58 (38,251,369) (7,349,276)
Share of post-tax profit of an associate D REEE R B R E w7 1,816,134 =
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISHAT (B518) = A 8 (38,753,154) 20,236,599
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe,/ (F) 9 6,267,566 (5,305,253)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EE),BER (32,485,588) 14,931,346
Other comprehensive income, after tax item  EAh 2 EUWA (BRFE)#
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & EH D HEEIBEH
IBE :
Changes in fair value of financial assets at  EAFEFF AEMEEIK
fair value through other comprehensive AZ eRMEENRTE
income ("FVTOCI") 2 ([ERAFEFTAEM
2EKBA D (555,369) 2,469,078
Restoration to original cost for the investment Hi&pk BltE A E 2 1&E
subsequently becoming an associate B8 Z#E AR (1,913,709) =
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FR(HR) BEIRER
income for the year WA #%E (34,954,666) 17,400,424
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: LTALEEER
(E18) A
- Owners of the Company —ARRBEAA (29,383,024) 14,931,346
- Non-controlling interests —IEIE R (3,102,564) =
(32,485,588) 14,931,346
Total comprehensive income for theyear LU TATELEFAZE
attributable to: PN
- Owners of the Company A VNCIE 2SN (31,852,102) 17,400,424
- Non-controlling interests — IR (3,102,564) -
(34,954,666) 17,400,424
(Loss)/earnings per share: BR(EE) BR 10
Basic and Diluted BEXRREE (8.18) 0.04
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REPBINAR

As at 31 December 2022 2022 12H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB RMB
By & AR¥T AR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment 5= B i 14 21,476,230 636,589
Intangible asset By EE 15 1,882,756 2,136,126
Accounts receivable FEBR X 20 21,336,069 57,208,422
Right-of-use assets FREEE 29 9,571,631 975,148
Financial asset at fair value through RAFERF AB=D
profit or loss ("FVTPL") TREE(RAVE
FTAEE]) 16 48,705,810 15,000,000
Financial assets at FVTOC| WA EFAREMBEER
WAR 2R EE 17 - 18,003,936
Interest in an associate REEE N T 2 R 19 51,816,132 =
Goodwill EES 42 1,747,631 =
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 21 17,605,875 14,441,962
174,142,134 108,402,183
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 22 634,522 =
Accounts receivable FEUAR R 20 135,382,892 288,196,025
Contract asset BHEE 18 4,571,616 =
Prepayments, deposits and TANFIE - Be REM
other receivables e e 23 13,949,261 8,208,399
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEED 24 182,949,195 148,349,236
337,487,486 444,753,660
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K EMER I 25 43,367,737 40,527,211
Receipts in advance TEW R IE 26 1,090,154 47367
Contract liabilities EREE 27 292,922 =
Lease liabilities MEAE 29 2,680,913 1,000,563
Tax payables FERTHRIE 5,003,355 10,128,758
52,435,081 51,703,899
Net current assets REBEEFE 285,052,405 393,049,761
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBAE 459,194,539 501,451,944
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B P BIRAR

As at 31 December 2022 20229 12H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB RMB
B EE AR¥T AR¥T
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Receipts in advance B FRIE 26 550,729 1,021,500
Deposits from finance lease customers RERMEHERS R
and suppliers HERNES 28 1,863,350 24,823,951
Lease liabilities HEARE 29 6,095,155 19,520
8,509,234 25,864,971
Net assets EEFE 450,685,305 475,586,973
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of BATHEE AELER
the Company
Share capital A& s 30 359,340,000 359,340,000
Reserves B 34 79,725,892 116,246,973
439,065,892 475,586,973
Non-controlling interests IR RER 11,619,413 =
Total equity e 450,685,305 475,586,973
On behalf of directors REESS
LI PengZ= i WENG Jianxing § £ #
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANRRAAEL
Financial
assets at
Merger Capital ~ Statutory FvTocl Retained Non-
Share reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total controlling Total
capital note 1) [note 1) [note 1) [note 1) (note 1) equity interest equity
BAVE
AR
2ERAH
LREE
AftlE  EREE  IRERRE R REEN FER
Ba (MR (MR (WR1)  (WE1) (W1 BEN R EREE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T  ARER  AREn  AREn  ARMn  AR¥R  AR¥R  AR¥R  AR¥R
(note31fal) ~ [note 3106l [note 31(c)
(BisEtla))  (PEEE31b))  (PEE3I(c))
At1January 2021 R2021E1818 359,340,000 1982035 31,0983 13338878 - 53906817 459,264,569 - 459,264,569
Profit for the year ERgf = = = = - 14931368 14931346 - 16931346
Other comprehensive income Ep2ERA
- Changes in fair value of -RATEHAZHRERA
financial assets at FYTOCI MEREE ATEE = = = = 2489,078 = 2,469,078 - 2,469,078
Total comprehensive income 2ERAEE = - - - 469078 14931346 1740042 - 17400424
Appropriation to statutory reserve BAEERE - - - L5878 - [6455878) - - -
Dividends paid (Note 11) ERRE(HE) - - - - - (10780200 [1,078020) - 1078020
At 31 December 2021and 1 January 2022 R202112A318 R
02F151A 359,340,000 1,582,035 31,096,839 17,794,756 2,469,078 63,304,265 475,586,973 - 475586,973
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (29,383,024 (29,383,024)  (3,102,564) (32,485,588)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA
- Changes in fair value of -RATEHAZHRERA
financial assets at FVTOCI NeBEELNTER - - - - (555,369) - (555,369) - (555,369)
Restoration to original cost for the HERARE R RATE
equity investment at FYTOCI A2 ERAZ RAREE
subsequently becoming associates BEMBRA - - - - (1,913,709) - (1,913,709) - (1,913,709)
Total comprehensive income 2ARAER - - - - (2,469,078) (29,383,024) (31,852,102)  (3,102,564)  (34,954,666)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BAEERE - - - g5 - (485,16) - - -
Dividends paid [Note 1) EfRE®) - - - - = L4668 4668979 - lhbs8m)
Business acquisitions (Note 4 S5l (i) - - - - - - - 59T 543197
Capital contribution by FERERL A (W)
non-controlling interests [note 2) - - - - - - - 9,290,000 9,290,000
At 31 December 2022 20225128318 359,340,000 1,582,035 31,096,839 18,279,920 - 28,767,098 439,005,892 11,619,413 450,685,305
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

112

Note 1: The aggregate balance of these reserves amounting of
RMB79,725,892 (2021: RMB116,246,973] is included as reserves
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Note 2: It is represented by the capital contribution by non-controlling
interests of Jiangsu Anshi Commercial Energy Storage System
Co., Ltd ("Jiangsu Anshi”] and Guangdong YuanYu Jishi
Xinxi Technology Limited ["YuanYu’], the subsidiaries of the
Company, after the acquisition as set out in note 42 during the
year amounting to RMB8,800,000 and RMB420,000 respectively
with no change in the ownership interests.

HraET -

HiaE2 -

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & E CEI) XKD R A 7

FERIBTEARKT9 7258927 (20214 -
AR BE116,246,97370 ) B4 R A2 BB B b &
B BARK R D E# B -

HEFR TG LI A REFAER LA ([T
L) RER TFRAIEERIBEAERAA]
([TTF ) (RBaL42r B BB 15 B AL A
WE R E]).2 ERERHE - BRIABAR
#8.800,0007T & A R #490,0007T - Fr B #
P W AEE B



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

2022 2021
20225 20215
Notes RMB RMB
it =E AR® T AR
Cash flows from operating activities RETEZRERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax METERIRT (E38) 5 (38,753,154) 20,236,599
Adjustments for: FELATFIE ¢
Bank interest income H|RITHBHA (2,372,153) (2,045,326)
Depreciation of plant and equipment BB M EITE 3,895,594 167,879
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 2,216,236 1,001,050
Amortisation of intangible asset BB E 253,370 253,371
Change of fair value in financial assets BRATHEFABEN SR
at FVTPL BEZRATEES 1,294,190 -
Provision of Impairment losses on FEM R ROR BB 1R R B
accounts receivable, net FEE 38,251,369 7,349,276
Provision of Impairment losses on BREEREBERE
contract assets 49,268 =
Provision of impairment losses on Hth PR W R IRR (B S 1R
other receivable B 1,351,006 =
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEEEMERX 347,331 73,494
Share of profits of an associate DEEE R AR (1,816,134) =
Gain on modification of leases MEB W - (17,552)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & MR & % e Y s (490) (44,601)
Operating profits before working capital EEESEHAIN
changes P 4,716,433 26,974,190
Increase in inventory FEEM (590,783) =
Decrease in accounts receivable W ERFOR 150,901,276 333,610,294
Increase in contract asset ABHIEEEN (4,620,884) >
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - R REM
other receivables JECERIE I AN (6,438,856) (3,581,053
Increase in bills receivable FE U EEIRAE - 537,406
Decrease in trade and other payable B 5 K E M e IR A (13,388,433) (11,837,430)
Increase in contract liabilities ABHEFEEN 292,922 =
Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance  JBUERIEIE N, CRi4A) 21,287 (597,695)
Decrease in deposits from finance lease REMEHERS R
customers and suppliers HER IR SR
(non-current portion) (FERNHEAER S ) (22,960,601) (46,133,578)
Cash generated from operating activities IRESEBIFTSIR S 107,932,361 298,972,134
Interest received EHFE 2,372,153 2,045,326
Income tax paid EATFTER (2,021,750) (469,279)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

2022 2021
20225 20215
Notes RMB RMB
it =E AR® T AR
Net cash generated from operating activities &2 EBIFTSIR S F5E 108,282,764 300,548,181
Cash flows from investing activities REZBZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of plant and HEmMEkREZ
equipment TSR 3,253,302 62,469
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE¥Z - ME KR & (4,861,715) =
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEE AT ER ABED
TREE (35,000,000) (15,000,000
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI BEZE AT ERARM
EEBANSREE (34,465,140) (15,534,858)
Purchase of associates BEBE AR = -
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR P 2 R
(note 42(a) and 42(b)) (FfeEs2(a) R FiHE42(b)) (3,634,445) -
Release of restricted bank deposits PR HIRITIE R EE - 60,000,000
Net cash (used in)/generate from investing R&EE (FrH),~
activities PSR E&FE (74,707,998) 29,527,611
Cash flows from financing activities RETHZRERE
Interest elements of lease rentals paid ENEEEESNEH D (347,331) (73,494)
Capital elements of lease rentals paid ENHEERSERES (3,248,497) (956,669)
Capital contribution by IR R N E
non-controlling interest 9,290,000 -
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and ERET BIRIT R EAM AR
other borrowings - (321,639,810)
Dividends paid EfARE (4,668,979) (1,078,020)
Net cash generated/(used) BmEEB RS (FrA)
in financing activities HEFEEE 35 1,025,193 (323,747,993)
Net increase in cash and ReERRSEEYIEM
cash equivalents HEE 34,599,959 6,327,799
Cash and cash equivalents at FONREeRECEEY
beginning of year 148,349,236 142,021,437
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESREBESEEY 182,949,195 148,349,236
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YN

AR WIS ML

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was established in the People Republic of China
(the "PRC"]) on 7 December 2012 as a sino-foreign equity joint
venture enterprise and was converted to a joint stock company
with limited liability under the Company Law of the PRC on 10
September 2015. The address of its registered office is Room
201, Block A, No.1, Qianwan First Road, Qianhai Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Cooperation Zone, Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC
and the principal place of business is Room 1603, Cheung
Kei Building, No0.128 Xinzhou 11th Street, Futian District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC. The Company’s overseas-
listed foreign shares ("H Shares”) have been listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange since 23 May 2017.

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of financial
leasing, advisory services and customer referral services.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
leasing, factoring and advisory services, and customer referral
services and the supply of medical equipment, investments
holding, provision of 5G base stations site space and energy

storage business in the PRC.

DNAEH

RABR2012F12B7BEFREARLNEH
(B D RPN B L EREIN 2015
FIRN0BRBBCPEARLEMERRE) K
Hl AR ERAR o Bt SEEibit A4
Bl E R AR T ADE RS (ERBTE — K1
SRARR201E - TEE XM APEERE R
YT 48 A & M+ — #1285 A K E 1603
E o ARAMIEII ETINER(THE]) B
201745 A 23 BB B ARSI FTGEM T ©

ARREBRERHEREME - FHARBE R
BEPENRYE AEETERPELER
HREHE - RERZARE  EPENR
% HERERE  REER - 1RH5CEE
5z R EBE TS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=PAN
/ZwT\D,H\

ISR T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Adoption of revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2022

The HKICPA has issued a number of amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of

the Group:

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of

HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

None of these amended HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Company’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period. The Group has not early applied
any amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the

current accounting period.

Amendments to HKAS 16: Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or

loss.

2. EAEEAMBREER(EBUME

(a)
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HEER )
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A

\:
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BEgsrEal BEAH-BTAHON
FITFEFIA KA
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FIFERR

BEMBREEN  FEMBREEA018F

F1 - BEYBR  E2020F2FREE
ERAER  BE

MTBRELERE 16
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R FRAE

S FRIETT BB R E B EE K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2022 [Continued]

Amendments to HKAS 37: Onerous Contracts - Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the

contract).

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that,
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC]-
Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK({IFRIC]-Int 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to
a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition
date. The amendments also add an explicit statement
that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets

acquired in a business combination.

2.

FERERBMBEREEAN(EFEME

(a)

= UHNE))

BRAEEBRI SR BHREED - R
2022F1R1BENM (&)

EBETTEAEITHIET A : BES
B - BITENRAE

ERTARER KN [BARA B [ 42
BREZMERENKA] - BeHEENA
BV AN R] RIBTT a2 A K ERA
(PIANE 2 85 TR R AT RIECA) - s
BITE N ERAABAE MR A3 ()
WRAREITAHNYE - BFE M&REER
BRITEERAI#E) -

RV BHRELENEIRETA : #
it

SHEZR 2z fRAk

CHES SV py e R e K
BH - BH S| BEEET 22018 F 81 55
RSB AEZR M IER 20105 AR A B9 AR
R o BB F G LR EIRIERT A
E—IGHRE - MEBR B GRS
BBEANCEL  WESTEAEEES
ERIFITFEEENBEARETE B
EFHMEERBEY - WEFB(H
BB GHRERERRE Q) RER 2R
BREANZHE  WEHEAEE(E
BB HRERERE ) RER 2R
ESIBXNAEBEREECEESFHEER
YiE B EIZ ATEEAE o (ERTANTRATIE — I8
FREERE - WIE T NS HERR EBA 6
PEHRBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2022 [Continued]

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS
16 and HKAS 41: Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020

Details of the amendments that are expected to be

applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the 10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the entity or the lender on other’s

behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve
any potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arise because of how lease

incentives are illustrated in that example.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these

changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current?

Amendments to Non-current liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants?

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
(2022) Statements - Classification

by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand

Clause?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Policies'
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates'
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sales and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback?®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

g The amendments shall be applied prospectively to

the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual

periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

2. EAEEAMBREERN(EEBUME

(b)

HER )
C BB [ RAERM 2 EIEFT BB

54 2 A

AT AIgE AR B SR B R 2 K18
R EEMBHMEERECRMERARE
WAL EEASERRR KA - NEEH
B BRZERIER] BB U RS ER
EWE AERAZEES -

BEEEAFE AEIBARDIFRY
EEIES
BRGRT LR HRERIERE
EARACTIRN aE
BERERST Jﬁﬁ’liﬁi\% fERAL
(2022%F) BEREREEFTZ
ﬁﬁﬂ‘é%&Z% g’

ERMBRERA REEFEABMENARE
FIRREAEGT EhECACZEELE
EREBREIAR  FFE

BAGHER RESHER'
FIRRBBHE
REEMEBRS
EIRERTA

BAGHER EERERL
ELLACHEN

BEAGEER HE-QHEECEER
B1REATA BEBBMELERE

BRMBRE ERERNEE AR
EHIE 165

i R2023F 1 H 183z B F1EZ FE
HRRTAERL -

2 R2024F 1 F 188z B F1EZ FE
HARTAERL -

g IS 5T 75 BT A5 14 30 & FR R JE H A
;tZ K EIE < FIRARAZRLE 2 E
EHELTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1: Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

The amendments require that an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period must have substance and must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board deferred
the effective date of the amendments by one year to

annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

HK Interpretation 5 (2022): Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

HK Interpretation 5 (2022) was revised as a consequence
of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in December
2022. The revision to HK Interpretation 5 (2022] updates
the wordings in the interpretation to align with the
Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and

do not change the existing requirements.

2. EAEEAMBREER(EBUME

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1: Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

The amendments clarify that covenants to be
complied with after the reporting date do not affect
the classification of debt as current or non-current
at the reporting date. An entity is required to disclose
information about these covenants in the notes to the

financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sales and

Leaseback

A seller-lessee shall apply the Amendments
retrospectively in accordance with HKAS 8 to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16. Thus, if the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 for a seller-lessee was 1
January 2019, the Amendments would apply to the sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after 1 January
2019. This is because specific transitional requirements
applied to sale and leaseback transactions that occurred
prior to the date of initial application of HKFRS/IFRS
16, and those transactions are unaffected by the

Amendments.
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest
in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate
or a joint venture] to fair value are recognised in the
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’

interests in the new associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies
were issued following feedback that more guidance was
needed to help companies decide what accounting policy
information should be disclosed. The amendments to
HKAS 1 require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. The amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy

disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

Revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes
in accounting estimates. That distinction is important
because changes in accounting estimates are applied
prospectively only to future transactions and other future
events, but changes in accounting policies are generally
also applied retrospectively to past transactions and

other past events.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition
exemption of deferred tax in HKAS 12 does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as lease contracts that
give rise to the recognition of a lease liability and
the corresponding right-of-use assets and contracts
that give rise to the recognition of decommissioning
obligations and corresponding amounts recognised
as assets. Instead, entities are required to recognise
the related deferred tax asset and liability on initial
recognition, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset

being subject to the recoverability criteria in HKAS 12.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the above amendments in the future will
have a material impact on the Group's consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION 3.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.
(c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB”), which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the

loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other

members of the Group.

An integrated set of activities and assets that is capable
of being conducted and managed for the purpose of
providing goods or services to customers, generating
investment income (such as dividends or interest] or

generating other income from ordinary activities.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed

of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there

may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (see note 42), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is first allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and
then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value
less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use [if
determinable], whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not

reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over

those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’'s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised

unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions are eliminated against
the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised
losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred, they are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-financial

assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable during the year.

For the step acquisition of associate, the Group adopted
the accumulated cost approach. Under this accumulated
cost approach, the transaction is viewed as if the Group
is purchasing the additional interest while retaining the
initial interest (non-exchange view). As a result, the cost
of investment will be determined as the consideration
paid for the initial interest (original consideration), plus

any consideration paid for the additional interest.
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition

of the items.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost, net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The

useful lives are as follows:

Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Energy storage system 10 years
5G base station equipment 10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset's

estimated recoverable amount (note 4(m)).

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in

profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses. The
useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. Amortisation is provided on a

straight-line basis over their useful lives as follows:

Computer Software 10 years

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets are
tested for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4(0)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(g)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of intangible assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent

of its revaluation surplus.
Leasing
The Group as a lessee

All leases [irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise |i]
leases which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: [i] the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement

of lease liability.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful

life and the lease term.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

(g)

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & E CEI) XKD R A 7

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v] payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)]

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group

measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest

on the lease liability;

(i} reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect

revised in substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the
revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying
value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining (revised)
lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is

recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

(g)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)]

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification
is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the
lease (whether that is an extension to the lease term,
or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-
use asset being adjusted by the same amount. With the
exception to which the practical expedient for Covid-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies, if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the
carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use
asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification
date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same

amount.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment

outstanding in respect of the leases.

Finance lease income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the net investment of the
finance lease or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the net investment of the

finance lease.
Sale and leaseback transactions

As a buyer-lessor, the Group applies the requirements
of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sale and leaseback
transactions constitutes a sale, upon application of
HKFRS16. For a transfer that does not satisfy the
requirements as a sale, the Group accounts for the

transfer proceeds within the scope of HKFRS 9.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustment
to fair value are considered as additional lease payments

from lessees.
(h) Financial instruments
(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component] is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets [Continued)]
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any

gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through
OCI. Debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an

accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments: On initial recognition of an
equity investment that is not held for trading,
the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or
loss unless the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in

profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss ("ECL") on contract asset,
trade receivables and financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date: and (2] lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the

Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective

interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for contract asset, finance lease receivables and
trade receivables that result from transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 15 using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. To measure the ECL,
contract asset, finance lease receivables and trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics.The Group estimated the
expected loss rate based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.

For factoring receivables, receivables from
sale and leaseback transactions, receivables
from operating lease and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking

information.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more

than 30 days past due.

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held

by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers financial assets are credit-
impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that financial asset are credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following

events:

al  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

the borrower;

b]  abreach of contract, such as a default or past

due event;

c]  the lender(s]) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s] that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization;

e]  thefinancial asset is more than 180 days past

due

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance] of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the

gross carrying amount.

4.

BEARSHBRBES)
(hh E@MTE@&)

(ii)

TREENREREE)

FEERBEREENE R
A ESZ 2 B E EM G RRE
TREBTMNEZENFHE LR
BEETRMNE FASRMEE
BEETRRENRERRER
AT E AT BRI -

al BITAIBERALBREKX
PSR & -

bl BRAEHN MEHNHEB
L

d BHRANERAEREHR
i SR B 75 IR B A8 0 =
BHEARERARLE
FARTTEEENRR

d  ERAFERESETHE
A5 EAR -

e SHMEEAHEBISOA -

FERENEREEZNERA
BeREEHERA(AERE
RERERBE)E - WERE
BERENEREEZMEIRAR
FREARERE -

2022 ANNUAL REPORT £EE #4

145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

146

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(jii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full] to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period

in which the recovery occurs.
Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of

directly attributable costs incurred.
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ARE SRR MR
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and deposits from finance
lease customers and suppliers are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter

period.
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair
value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss

for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control
of the goods or service is transferred over time if the

Group’s performance:

U provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right

to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the goods or service.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

(] Revenue for the provision of advisory services is
recognised at point in time when the services have
been rendered. Invoices for these service income

are issued on completion of services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

For revenue from sales of goods - medical
equipment and provision of maintenance services
provided by the Group, the Group entered one
contract with the customer and performed two
performance obligations. The total transaction
price receivable from customers is allocated
among all identified performance obligations of the
Group in proportion to their respective standalone
selling price. The Group determined that revenue
from sales of goods is recognised at point in
time when the goods are delivered to and have
been accepted. For the performance obligation
related to the maintenance services, revenue will
be recognised over time as those services are
provided as other income of the Group. If there is
any satisfied performance obligation but where
the Group does not have an unconditional right
to consideration, the Group should recognise a

contract asset.

For revenue from sales of goods - energy storage
system provided by the Group, the Group entered
the contract with the customers. The Group
determined that revenue from sales of goods is
recognised at point in time when the goods are
delivered to and have been accepted. Invoices are
issued according to contractual terms and are
usually payable upon the date of issuance. There is

generally only one performance obligation.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Group, as a lessor, accounts for the provision
of energy storage service as operating lease (see
note 4(g) for detail], such revenue is recognised
over the lease period with variable lease payment.
Variable lease payment not based on index or rate
are recognised as revenue as incurred.

The Group, as a lessor, accounts for the provision of
56 base stations site space as operating lease (see
note 4(g) for details), such revenue is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease period. Lease
payments are fixed.

Revenue from energy storage solution and general

contraction

The Group has determined that for contracts with
customers for the provision of energy storage
solution and general construction, there is
generally one performance obligation, which refer
to the construction of energy storage system. Such
contracts are entered into before the services
begin. Under the terms of the contracts, the
Group is contractually required to perform the
construction works and services at the customers’
specified sites that the Group's performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs. Revenue from
provision of such construction works and services
(including materials and equipment, construction
services and design and consultancy services
components] is therefore recognised over time
using input method, i.e. based on the actual
costs incurred by the Group to date compared
with the total budgeted cost for the project to
estimate the revenue recognised during the year.
The management of the Group considers that
input method would faithfully depict the Group's
performance obligation under HKFRS 15. Invoices
are issued according to contractual terms.
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ARE SRR MR
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EAXE:HHEHE2)
POLICIES (continued)

(i)  Revenue recognition [Continued) i) W=k (&)
(vi) Otherincome (vii)  E AU A
Interest income, which mainly includes bank FEBWA(EZEBRIFERITH B
interest income, is recognised on an accrual basis A IR ST 2 AT B R R A
using the effective interest method by applying the Fer T ARTER F Bz E S &
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future M(ER ) Z G R RIRE WA
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial AR EeREERTFED
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, FRER &

to the net carrying amount of the financial assets;

and

Grants from the government are recognised at their fisl B8 595 T2 B 5E S U 2 U 46 B
fair value where there is reasonable assurance that RAREBFA AN - 8
the grant will be received and the Group will comply BT B B A EER o

with all attached conditions.

Contract assets and liabilities BHEERERE
A contract asset represents the Group's right to EHBEREASEEMRNEBERER
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has ) AR AS UK ER AR (B A9 RE F) (18 R AR A 4
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. 148 ) o FEx - FEUYFRIEIE AN & B Ya BY
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group's REWOEGEERN - BIZAEBRHNR
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage BIE SRR -

of time is required before payment of that consideration

is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to EHEBEEASEREDARFIER
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has RAB (B R BB B & 58 ) M B F) 3%
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is EPEBREHEE

due) from the customer.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

Contract asset is recognised when the Group completes
the construction works under such services contracts
but yet certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by customers. Any amount
previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced
to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the input method then the

Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the following

criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically

identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing
to satisfy] performance obligations in the future;
and (c] the costs are expected to be recovered.
The asset recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the cost relate. The

asset is subject to impairment review;

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(j)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract costs (Continued)]

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the cost relate. The asset is subject to impairment

review.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those

assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposit

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of

change in value.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(U

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that are not part of the business combination which
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associate where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized provided that the
deductible temporary differences are not arises from
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
other than in a business combination that affects neither
taxable profits nor the accounting profits. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(U

(m)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they related to
items recognised directly in equity in which case the

taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”] are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4, EXRETTHEBE)

(n) Employee benefits (n) EEETR
(i)  Retirement benefit costs i) BB
The employees of the Group which operates AREBNFEESBELXERM S

in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of employees’ salaries to the

central pension scheme.

R AT 2 & ) P RS /i\EJr%JC’
AEEBZEEEHEH—
DA REARE EJrf%iIJLfEfw

Contributions are recognised as an expense in AREERAFERERS © W
profit or loss as employees render services during HENEBEEABRAERAEZ - A&
the year. The Group’s obligations under these plans ERNZEFE THEERNEE
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions LI E PR SR o
payable.

(i) Short-term employee benefits li) RHEEREF

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in

which the employees render the related services.

REEBRENAERINERRMH
MRS 2 FEREBEARE L+
— ARz AEBKEBHEBRREN
(BEBLEAIRRSN) - IR B EH
RE B IR ARR RIS F 2 A

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the & e

year when the employee render the related service.

FERMEERME

(o) Impairment of non-financial assets (o)

REREMR - ARE R EBE K
wif - BEENREREEENRE
B NEEREAEATFRBTLEE
EXXREBRIBECERNRERS
AR TBEELAERED o

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of its plant and equipment, intangible
asset and right-of-use assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously 1B

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which will probably result in an outflow of economic

benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.

EXETTHEBRE)

(o)

(p)

FEMEERMEE)

2RI E E RV AT UL B & 58 (A1 & SRR
HERAREREEMERORKE)

EEHEREREE @ RZEENKREE
WMEEAWE SRR - BERBEARHER
RFX o

R EREREEER - AZAEERE
BEEHASEEAKRESENEHERM
5t MERTE A BREE T S BB RR A
EFEIN ERERZIREEREREME
EEMREEGIRTESEHE) - B
BEEERERNER RN ©

BERIAREE

EAKERAEEMAR DARIHETE
REMAEEBRHEENZ - A&
HEMRAEHA IR - SHURREREE
RHERE BB EERERE -

BRI RER BB MR e
Sfhat 2R ,%E\E@{’EEEX%@
TIAKE - BRIEERM R KR AT RENE
TR - AIERERFEREREERT
A —FEA ERREMER - BEI5ME
RERBETARE - RIEEEN R
HEVRTREME K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EBEASHBEHME®)

POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Inventory q =&
Inventories are initially recognized at cost, and FEVIRILRRATER - ERIEMA K]
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable FIFENREERER - KABENE
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of HENAN N AR FEENREE
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the AT 2 KR E A Y H A BOR » B
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost ASTE SR M EESTH - BFEMNAIZIRF
is calculated using the first in first out method. The net B —RESBETNETEERE—
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling MEBBREROEFTIEREERSH
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated WA TERAE L SHE TR A A Ft AN R A
distribution and selling expenses in the ordinary course HIEE TR AT -

of business less the estimated cost to completion and

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(r) Related parties (r) FEAH
(a] A person ora close member of that person’s family a) HEALETIIER - BIHSH
is related to the Group if that person: MRS A B AR [E A B
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; i) HAEEBEEHIELELR
YR
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or i) BREBEBEERTEN
34
(i} isa member of key management personnel of i) RAEBEHIARRERA
the Group or the Company’s parent. HNEEBBEAEHRH—8 -
(b] An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) MHMHERTHER B EEEIR
following conditions apply: FREZRE B G R

i

m A

AEBEBR %
ANE(HEGA
B AR KRR E

(] The entity and the Group are members of the (i)

\

same group (which means that each parent,

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

oo B
&
3 i

the others). AR EAERAEE)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture i) —HERBAS —EEMH
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ERaeetE(ER
venture of a member of a group of which the KERRINBE R FHE
other entity is a member]. BEhE ME—EBAZ

FENKERRA]) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EAXE:HHEHE2)
POLICIES (continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued) (r) E8%tH (&)
(b]  (Continued] bl (#&)

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same i) MEEZEERERE=H
third party. K& &R o

(ivl  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity iv) —EERRE=EBNS
and the other entity is an associate of the EhE ME—EBERAS
third entity. =EBOBEAT] -

(v The entity is a post-employment benefit plan v ZEBRDAARSEKEARN
for the benefit of the employees of the Group EBEBENEENEER
or an entity related to the Group. MR BB EFETE -

(vi]  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by vi] EZEREZ(a)IBATERIMA
a person identified in (a). TRl RIS o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i] has significant (vii) Ral()IEMSEAIE EEEE
influence over the entity or is a member of key AEEBWALT  HAZE
management personnel of the entity (or of a B(ZEBNTLAAE)H
parent of the entity). FEEBABFH—B -

(vii) The entity or any member of a group of (vii] ZEBXAXEEEMK
which it is a part, provides key management BRAA—HoMERERA
personnel services to the Group or to the SEXEAEENT QAR
Group’s parent. HEIZERABRE -

Close members of the family of a person are those HATHEERIEEHZEE HFTE

family members who may be expected to influence, or be AR B Z AT R ZA T ENRE

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity KE - B

and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic ) ZALTHFL KBSk R E
partner; fa

li) children of that person’s spouse or domestic i) ZATHREBIRE/EHT
partner; and iR

liii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse lii) ZALHZALTHE B RER
or domestic partner. EREA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgment,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Given Covid-19 pandemic has created and may
continue to create significant uncertainty in macroeconomic

conditions, actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

5.

BEREHAE R AT AREMENE
BT

RERRSEENSTERR - NARESFE
REMKRIETHENEERBENERR
B FIE - et RERER o et RABARE
TR ESHRREMERAEANERAR
fit o EERCOVID- 19 IEE &N Al LB %
BCBRIBERERBEATEE - ERER
BRIRZEMET -

5 8B B ET RABRRRER T AR AR © fid
BT METES BRI AN BRER

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 2 NAREITEZAEAER  WEER]

revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision HHA MRS EFE - AIEEREE]

and future periods if the revision affects both current and B AR B AR R ERFRI R,

future periods.

e Classification between finance leasing and e WMEHEHLKZEHEENED (EA
operating leasing as a lessor HAEA)
Leases are required to be classified as either finance HEBE P AMEHE(EE LERT
leases (which transfer substantially all the risks and EFTE A MR N ZER R KO -
rewards of ownership, and give rise to asset and liability WEBARABREERARE  BHEA

recognition by the lessee and a receivable by the
lessor) and operating leases (which result in expenses
recognition by the lessee, with the asset remaining

recognised by the lessor).

Situations that would normally lead to a lease being

classified as finance lease including the following:

(a) The lease transfers ownership of the underlying

asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & E CEI) XKD R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The lessee has the option to purchase the
underlying asset at a price which is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the
option becomes exercisable and, at the inception
of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the option

will be exercised;

The lease term is for the major part of the economic

life of the asset, even if title is not transferred;

At the inception of the lease, the present value
of the lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the underlying

asset;

The underlying assets are of a specialised nature
such that only the lessee can use them without

major modification being made.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following estimates and

assumptions, which has the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

5.

BEREHAE R AT FREMENE
BERIR(#)

(b)

(c]

(d)

(e]

AEAEBERREEEENE
B RIUMBEBESE
BRTEEEREAHEEEN
~HE - AmaEHEERRE LA
BEMHEEARABSITEZE
I

BMEEEM AT A R ESE - (8
MR E BB AE N A
5

AERBE RSN RORE &

THERNBBEEENZIBAF
i 8

HEEEEERK S TNERK
s - RIMERATE AT BEER -

BEEERARNEENS T BRART FL
AT EE R R - B HEHRA B ®RR
RHREERRATE -
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Provision for impairment loss for accounts
receivable

The Group’'s accounts receivable consists of finance
lease receivables, receivables from sale leaseback
transactions, factoring receivables, trade receivables
and receivables from operating lease, and accounted
for RMB156,718,961. The assessment of impairment
of accounts receivable under the expected loss model
is considered to be a matter of most significance as
it requires the application of judgement and use of
subjective assumptions by management. The Group
assesses the expected credit loss ("ECL") according
to forward-looking information and used appropriate
models and a large number of assumptions in its
expected measurement of credit losses. These models
and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness (e.g., the
likelihood of default by customers and the corresponding
losses). The Group has adopted judgement, assumptions
and estimation techniques in order to measure ECL
according to the requirements of accounting standards
such as criteria for judging significant increases in
credit risk, definition of credit-impaired financial asset,
parameters for measuring ECL and forward-looking

information.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EASHYERGESTTAEEMENE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued) ERFR &)

Fair value measurement of financial assets

The financial assets are the debt instrument and equity
instruments. The fair values of financial assets that are
not quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
income approaches, market approaches and option
pricing models. The Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Management judgement and
estimates are required for the selection of appropriate
valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling

techniques.
The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

. Financial assets at FVTPL of RMB48,705,810
(note 16)

For these instruments, a sensitivity analysis is presented
in note 40 in respect of reasonably possible changes
to the valuation assumptions. For more detailed
information in relation to the fair value measurement of

the items above, please refer to the applicable notes.

EMEEZAVEE

THMEEREEBTANERETA - ©
AEMSTYERELEREELNT
ERBFERBERMERE - AZHEE
BT BRERACE - MisERBEEER
N ARESFARRATSABREN
% - BEVEENEESE - BREER
RTR2EEE i HIE R G -

AEBRAVESAEETER :
» AR®487058107T 2 A FAE
AtABR EREE(FIRE16)

RRETAMS  AREGERREER
REEBMHRE DTN EL - B
BALEARE 2 A HEFEZEZFMAE
# - B2BERRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EASHYERESTFAEEMHNE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued) BRI (&)

Recognition and fair value of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in business
combination

The Groups apply the acquisition method of accounting
to account for acquisitions of businesses. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given,
liabilities incurred, equity instruments issued, and costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed
are measured separately at their fair values as of the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired

is recorded as goodwill.

The determination and allocation of fair values to the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
is based on various assumptions and valuation
methodologies requiring considerable management
judgement. The most significant variables in these
valuations are discount rates, terminal values, the
number of years on which the cash flow projections are
based, as well as the assumptions and estimates used to
determine the cash inflows and outflows. Management
determines discount rates to be used based on the risk
inherent in the related activity's current business model
and industry comparisons. Terminal values are based
on the expected life of products and forecasted life cycle
and forecasted cash flows over that period. Although the
assumptions applied in the determination are reasonable
based on information available at the date of acquisition,
actual results may differ from the forecasted amounts

and the difference could be material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued]

Recognition and fair value of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in business
combination (Continued)

Upon an acquisition of a business it is necessary to
attribute fair values to any intangible assets acquired
(provided they meet the criteria to be recognised). The
fair values of these intangible assets are dependent on
estimates of attributable future revenue, margin, cash

flow, useful lives and discount rate used.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.

5.

BEREHAE R AT FREMENE
BERIR(#)

REFH S G IR TS Al &
ERFEEERE 2 HEE)

Wi — TR - B T ATEER
BEREEATEESN A FHERE
%) o REBLEEAFEIORNEE
FEIGARI S - BERAE - BERE
AR HAA R P RRAER K -

EETHIZE - BB RERBH A RS

AREEEREETYR - BFEMK&RED
At AT B E B R REREE LIRS
RIBIEE RINGEAREI Y - BE MR
FBREERT AFERAEEREDL - B8
B T] A B D R AT (bt 6 BARS 45
IFERR  AEHCREXHENK
1l 38 By 35 3 R AR S 28 FEE A/ o 8 SR
EREEFHMAERGATRAEHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EASHYERESTFAEEMHNE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued) ERR (&)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. This requires significant judgement on the tax
treatments of certain transactions and also assessment
on the probability that adequate future taxable profits will

be available for the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Impairment of interest in an associate

The Group assesses annually if its interest in an
associate suffers any impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36. The assessment requires an estimation of
future cash flows, including expected dividends, from the
assets and the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and position of
these entities would affect the estimation of impairment
loss and cause in the adjustments of their carrying

amounts.

Impairment of goodwill, right of use assets and
property, plant and equipment

Goodwill, right of use assets, property, plant and
equipment are tested for impairment when indicators
exist. Further, irrespective of whether there is any
indication of impairment, goodwill are required to be
tested annually for impairment. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the

cash generating units ("CGUs").

Determining whether goodwill and other assets allocated
to CGUs is impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use. The value in use calculation requires the directors to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EASHYERGESTTAEEMENE
SOURCES OF ESTIMATES UNCERTAINTY (Continued) ERFR &)

Recognition of contract revenue under energy
storage solution and general construction

Contract revenue recognition on individual projects
are dependent on management’s estimation of the
progress of the satisfaction of performance obligations
of a construction contract over time, measuring using
input method, with reference to the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to
the estimated total costs for the contracts. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
and contract costs, prepared for each contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted contract income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in
the relevant contracts. Budgeted contract costs which
mainly comprise subcontracting charges and cost of
materials are prepared by the management on the
basis of quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and
the experience of the management. In order to keep
the budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual

amounts incurred.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(a) Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-

maker that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has four reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the

operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

o The financial and advisory business comprises
(a) direct finance leasing; (b) sale-leaseback;
(c] factoring; (d) advisory services; (e) customer

referral; and (f] investment holding.

o The trading operation business comprises
primarily import and domestic trade of medical
equipment, as well as the provision of maintenance
services primarily within the medical equipment

industry.

o The energy storage business comprises (a)
trading of energy storage systems; (b) energy
storage solution and general contracting and (c]
provision of energy storage business along with
establishment of Jiangsu Anshi (as detailed in
note 32(a)) and acquisition of Ningbo Shanshan (as
detailed in note 42(b)).

o The 5G base station business comprises primarily
provision of 5G base stations site space along with
a acquisition of Yuan Yu and its subsidiaries (as
detailed in note 42(a)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TDEERH)
(a) Reportable segments (Continued) (a) AIZ2IHDEE)
Financial and advisory ~ Trading operation Energy 56 base
business business storage business station business Total
BRREREE RS £ fEER SeEUER a3t
31-Dec 31-Dec 31-Dec 3-Dec 31-Dec
12A318 128318 12A318 12831R 12A318

202 201 202 201 202 201 202 2021 200 2021
W NNE O WnE MNE WnE  WNE WnE  ANE NNE WNE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T  AR¥R AR¥R ARMR  ARMR  ARMR  ARMR  ARMT  ARMT  ARMR

Revenue from external PR Sk:Sg

custoners ki 588 316921 - LB TSR TG - MENH %%
Inter-segment revenue L - - - - - . - >
Reportable seqment revenue ~ TERATUE 15,936,823 38169218 - LRI 11,760,982 - 1813719 - 29,501,526 43,095,1%
Reportable segment T2RABEH/

(loss fprofit (F8) (32,826,820) 20949529 [1.974,467)  (712.930) (4,364,855 - [110,956) - 39,275,098 20,236,599
Interest revenue HlEha 231666 2,037,041 15,708 8285 3028 - 1,763 - 2,312,183 2045326
Interest expense fERR 28,706 2377383 2,784 6998 30,817 - 285,024 - UL 239
Depreciation of plant and BERRENE

equipment UN03% 164382 2,680 3497 3,329,486 - 36,39 - 3,895,59 147879
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ EEEEENE

assets 1559,0%2 92713 T35 13915 266,014 - 316,675 - 2,216,236 1,001,050
Amortisation of infangible asset B EZZ 2,089 291,564 1,31 1787 - - - - 330 233N

Provision forflreversal of]  EMERHES
impairment loss on accounts B8/ (BE) -

receivable, net it 341478 7196208 2,295,109 155068 [411,607) - 13,08 - 38251369 73497
Income tax [creditlexpense ~ FER(ES)/B (64370800 5364020 146977 (38761 22507 - - - (6,267,556 5,305,253
Reportable seqmentassets ~ A2MABEAE 43,803,357 519835001 30,564,460 33320862 17,876,446 - 15,869,289 - 408,113,852 553,155,863
Reportable seqment labiliies ASHATAE 4843476 74783093 2150839 2785777 1,969,475 - 14,980,205 - 00,946,315 77568870
Additions to non-current assets FRIAEAM 938782 3300393 - - 16,748,503 - 11,756,581 - 29443866 33,0039%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION /Continued) 6. DEHERE)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or (b) AEFHIEFEE  EERE
loss, assets and liabilities B R
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense RFT158:BE X AT (E518), %5
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2/ IB(EHE),HF (39,275,098) 20,236,599
Share of post-tax profit of an associate D — & A RIBR T 1£ % F 1,816,134 =
Change in fair value in financial assets AT EFFABZHNESREE
at FVTPL NEEEE) (1,294,190) -
Consolidated (loss)/profit before BPTSHRAS B4R E
income tax expense (B18), % F (38,753,154) 20,236,599
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥T
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets A2 HEE 408,113,552 553,155,843
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEREEE
— Interest in an associate — R E AR R 51,816,132 =
- Financial assets at FVTPL — A ETABZESN
TREE 48,705,810 =
- Certain cash and cash equivalents —ETHENRRSEEY 2,994,126 -
Consolidated total assets e BERE 511,629,620 553,155,843
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥ T
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities AEwmoHHMaE 60,944,315 77,568,870
Consolidated total liabilities R AaEEsE 60,944,315 77,568,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
(c) Geographic information

The Company incorporated in the PRC and the principal
place of the Group's operations is the PRC. All the
Group's revenue and non-current assets are principally
attributable to the PRC.

(d) Information about major customers

One customer with revenue of RMB10,674,884 from
energy storage business segment contributed 10% or

more of the Group's revenue of the corresponding year
(2021: Nill.

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7.

An analysis of the revenue from the Group’s principal activities

and other income and gains is as follows:

EBE R (#)
(c) &R

P

AR TR EEMAS - AEEHEE
BB AR - AEBNFAYEER
JERENA A E BIORR R -

(d BEEIEFFHER

BREMEFREES D EBARBE10,674,8847T
WK — B RPN EERBREFE Y
#=10%3k A E © (20214F + #)

W 58 B EL A I AR W g5

AREE T ARG R E MR A RIK
SOOI -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR¥T
Revenue from contracts with customers FEF &N E
Energy storage solution and R AR —ARIEE
general construction 10,674,884 -
Sale of goods - energy storage system HEMR—REERER 705,454 -
Sale of goods - medical equipment HEMm—BERE - 4,925,977
Advisory service fee income B RREEUWA 453,401 390,446
11,833,739 5,316,423
Revenue from other sources H 2R W g
Finance lease income BEME WA 2,318,568 8,039,211
Income from sale-leaseback transactions B &% O3 ZHIU A 7,950,220 22,734,124
Factoring income FREBULA 5,214,633 7,005,437
Energy storage service income ERE N 370,644 _
Provision of 5G base stations site space PR GRE UL ZEE 5 1,813,720 =
17,667,785 37,778,772
29,501,524 43,095,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

AR WIS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WHRHEMUWAURKEE)
[Continued)
2022 2021
20224 20215
RMB RMB
Leases HE AR¥TT AR¥T
For operating leases: mEEHEmMS -
Leases payments that are fixed BEFEAERRK 1,813,720 -
Variable lease payments that depend on BIEFHERNATEEENK
an index or a rate 370,644 -
For finance leases: MREHEMS -
Finance income on the net investment FEEEFRENRERA
in the lease 2,318,568 8,039,211
Total revenue arising from leases REHEENARSE 4,502,932 8,039,211
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR® T
Other income and gains/(losses) Hapl AR Wz, (E58)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 2,372,153 2,045,326
Recharge of insurance premium R ERHE 943 6,792
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HERRE &&= 490 44,601
Maintenance service income IRERRAEUWA 3,712,264 3,165,094
Imputed interest income on trade receivables ‘& 5 & FRIB R HEE F| B U 457,174 807,144
Penalty charged to customers WERE P& 2,070,204 1,272,201
Gain on modification of leases B E R - 17,552
Value added tax ("VAT") refund (note (a)) AR ([EES R (MEE) 2,986,660 7,117,657
Change in far value in financial assets B ER ABER
at FVTPL CRMEEATEEY (1,294,190) =
Others Hit 536,220 314,795
Write off of other payables TS EL A PR A 5RIE = 1,484,784
10,841,918 16,275,946
Note: B
(a] VAT refund represented the entitlement approved by the (a) IEEFREEIELM T KIS BHEEIE

local government authority and received during the year.

FRAWREIER - TR HEFISER
BB ARETTIRIEREMERIET -

There is no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attaching to the VAT refund that been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YN

AR WIS ML

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7.

[Continued]

The disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with

customers are as follows:

W s B ELAEI A LUK W3 (48)

REBRBEPAMNRENDIIRTAT

2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR
Type of services JiE kil
Provision of advisory services and REEAREREFEN
customer referral 453,401 390,446
Energy storage solution and general fEBERRR T 3 R — R
construction 10,674,884 -
Sale of goods-energy storage system HERm—EE RS 705,454 -
Sale of goods-medical equipment HEMm—EERE = 4,925,977
Total revenue recognised from contract MR EPER B
with customers 11,833,739 5,316,423
Customers by industries BRITEBPNER
Transportation Eig 199,230 216,927
Medical BE - 4,927,328
Fast-moving consumer goods PURBE 218,013 172,168
Energy storage 78 11,380,338 -
Others Hit 36,158 =
11,833,739 5,316,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

176

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7.

W st 2 ELAE I BAR: W3 (48)

(Continued)

2022 2021
2022F 20215
RMB RMB
AR AR

Timing of revenue recognition AL ONET
- At a point in time — A S A e 2 1,158,855 5,316,423
- Overtime —BERE 10,674,884 -
11,833,739 5,316,423

The Group has adopted the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for sale of goods and
services and therefore the above information does not include
information about revenue that the Group will be entitled to
when it satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the contracts for sale of goods and services which had an

original expected duration of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRFTSBLAI(EE), IEF
(Loss)/pofit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ BrETERLAT(B18),aF hE ik, (st A)
(crediting): AT B IERER -
2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
AR AR
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 4 & 5 B 1,634,759 696,180
Cost of sales: HERAK 16,909,133 8,739,341
- Interest expenses on interest-bearing -5 BRI TR R E M B R A
bank and other borrowings FMEFXZ - 2,310,417
- Interest expenses on lease liabilities -HEEENFNERX 347,331 73,494
- Bank charges and other expenses -SITFEERAMAX 766,309 1,429,453
- Depreciation of plant and equipment BB KRBT E 3,675,880 -
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets -EREEENE 985,709 =
- Cost of inventories sold -BEEFENA 11,133,904 4,925,977
Depreciation of plant and equipment B REEITE 219,714 167,879
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 1,230,527 1,001,050
Amortisation of intangible asset B & ERH 253,370 253,371
Expenses relating to short-term leases EAC HATH S A AV S 225,400 229,016
Impairment loss on accounts receivable, net J& U BR FUR (& B8 % 58 38,251,369 7,349,276
Exchange (gain)/losses L (Wezs), /B8 (4,308) 6,370
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & RS R AR U as (490) (44,601)
Impairment loss on other receivables HAbEUGRIER A EE
R 1,351,006 -
Impairment loss on contract asset BHREERERE 49,268 =
Gain on modification of leases HEEFTHRE - (17,552)
Employee benefit expenses (note 12) BB EAE (H:EF12) 10,420,521 10,664,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. FBB(ESR) BIX
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR ARYT
Income tax FrgH
- Current year -RNEE 1,595,280 7,142,573
~ Qverprovision in prior years B ERERE (4,698,933) -
Deferred tax (note 21) IEETE (FfaE21)

- Credited for the year -FREE (3,163,913) (1,837,320)
Income tax (credit)/expense FriSfi (&), (6,267,566) 5,305,253
The Company and its subsidiaries are incorporated in the PRC ARABRENBARRAREME - B

subject to the enterprise income tax in the PRC. R B EE TSR o

Provision for the enterprise income tax in the PRC is calculated RAEE N EBETEENTEDERESRZE
based on a statutory tax rate of 25% of the estimated TR RIS FERA S B PS5 A B E AU 5T ERR
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the FORR25% M EERR R E o

relevant income tax law in the PRC in the current and prior

year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FREHR<#)
The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled FRAEHRER), /X EGEEE2ERER
to the (loss)/profit before income tax in the consolidated WERFTSFLAT(E1R),SmFERRAT

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARHT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISBLAT(E51E), & F (38,753,154) 20,236,599
Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, BRETISBLAT(ET1E), e FIFLE -
calculated at 25% R25%BRAE (9,688,289) 5,059,149
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  NAJHIFI ST RS2
tax purposes 41,923 38,331
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBAZ BB E (454,033) =
Utilisation of tax loss of the year BAFABIEER (72,521) -
Tax effect of tax losses and other temporary REMERFIBEE N A EFE
difference not recognised BB E 3,052,116 207,773
Derecognised of deferred tax asset BUBRERIRE IR S & 5,552,171 -
Over provision in respect of prior years B FEBRERHE (4,698,933) -
Income tax (credit) expense s (6,267,566) 5,305,253
10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 10. SR (ER) BF
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREKR(ER) B
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based BREX(ERE) BFDERKRQ R #E
on the (Loss)/profit attributable to equity owners of the mRAABGERFE(ER) BMAR
Company for the year of loss of RMB29,383,024 (2021: profit ¥ 29,383,024 7T (2021 FF : m M A R &
of RMB14,931,346) and the weighted average of 359,340,000 14,931,34670) R E £ 2022412 A31 B 1L
shares (2021: 359,340,000 shares] in issue during the year & 7 B 34T I04E 19 A8 80359 340,000/% JE 15
ended 31 December 2022. (20214F : 359,340,0008% A% (5 )51 & -
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SREE(SE) BEF
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding RELZE2022F % 202112831 B IFEE -
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and hence IS (TAE SN e VB A TR - UL R
the diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as basic 5 (F18) /RN BEREA(ER) /RFE
(loss)/earnings per share. A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

11. DIVIDENDS 1. BRE
On 30 March 2022, the Board recommended to distribute 2022538308 » EEEEZMN20224
the final dividend of RMB0.013 per share (2021: RMB0.003) 6 H 6B &5 HAR A% R A Y AR 3R 99 Ik R 23 IR
for the shareholders whose names appear on the register EERAERRK)0I3T(2021F : AEMQ0.003
of members of H Shares on 6 June 2022. Total final dividend TC) ° FR2022F 7 H - A AREL 6689797
of RMB4,668,979 (2021:RMB1,078,020) was paid to the (20214 + AR¥1,078,0207T ) A& HA A% BOR A
shareholders on July 2022. FHREER o
After the reporting date, the Board did not recommend a RS EHE BV TEEMRBE2022
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December F12A31B L FEIRN AR E (20214 -
2022 (2021: RMB0.013 per share).The dividends have not been BRAR®K0.0137T) - ZZFREN EERA
recognised as liabilities and there are no tax consequence. BERITEREESR
12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 12. BERAMAX
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments B TR (BIEEEME
(note 13(a)) comprise: (Mf3E13(0))) B4E -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& « B R EYHE 9,274,732 9,317,644
Discretionary bonuses BB AL 58,146 64,353
Contributions to defined contribution M E PR RET IR
retirement plan 1,087,173 1,282,671
10,420,051 10,664,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS" EMOLUMENTS
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

13. EEREESHERESHFMAL

Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<E
The emoluments of each of the directors for the year are REAFEZESOMSEHEIWOT :
set out below:
Year ended 31 December 2022 2022F12A3MBILEE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits  Discretionary  contribution
Fees in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
s MERE
BHR IR
e BRE WA aHEIf @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR¥T ARET AR AR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Li Peng &S - 436,210 - 33,076 469,286
Mr. Weng Jianxing PRELE - 487,970 - 33,076 521,046
Ms. Gong Xiaoting (note (i) AR L (M) - 482,410 - 27,076 509,486
Non-executive directors HFHITEE
Mr. Peng Qilei (note [vi) T 5 () = = = - -
Mr. Liu Jing [note (v} Bt (Rt (vii) T - . - -
Mr. Tong Fangyan [note iill) 23 #F& L (FizE(viil]) - - - - =
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Fung Che Wei, Anthony BEERE 103,372 - - - 103,372
Mr. Liu Shengwen AL 103,372 - - - 103,372
Mr. Hon Leung BRiE 103,372 - - - 103,372
Total et 310,116 1,406,590 - 93,228 1,809,934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMERESHFMA L (&)
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments [Continued) (a) Z=B& &)
Year ended 31 December 2021 2021F12A3MBHILLEE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits  Discretionary ~ contribution
Fees inkind bonuses retirement plan Total
#e- HERE
2R HERIK
e BNRE WAL Al @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARER AR# R ARBT ARER AR

Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Li Peng & = 18,079 453,129
Mr. Weng Jianxing SEERE = 18,079 504,689
Ms. Wang Ying [note (i gt (fitsll) = 7533 180,573
Ms. Gong Xiaoting [note (i BRBL (M) = - 481,250
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Zhuang Wei [note (i} SEER A (B (i) - - -
Mr. Qian Cheng [note (i) EREE (M) = - i
Mr. Sun Luran [note (v) BB E () - - -
Mr. Peng Qilei [note (vi) @A (M) = - -
Mr. Liu Jing [note (vi) Bl (Wi vii)) = - -
Mr. Tong Fangyan [note Miill) 23 #F& L (MzE(viil) - = =
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors
Mr. Fung Che Wei, Anthony BEREE 99,579 - 99,579
Mr. Liu Shengwen g6k 99,579 - 99,579
Mr. Hon Leung LS e 99,579 - 99,579
Total e 298,131 - 43,691 1,918,378
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMERESHFMA L &)
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a) ES=ME#E)

Notes: Hiat -

i) Ms. Wang Ying resigned on 12 May 2021. il FELTER021F5H12HEHT »

(i} Ms. Gong Xiaoting was appointed on 12 May 2021. i) EBBEEXZTERI02IFSAIZHE
ZF-

(iii} Mr. Zhuang Wei resigned on 8 October 2021. (iii)  HBEFEALECR2021F 10 A8HFHT °

(iv]  Mr. Qian Cheng resigned on 12 May 2021. liv]  EERESEAB 0215/ 12 BHE -

[v]  Mr. Sun Luran resigned on 12 May 2021. W)  FEEREESR20219F5H12H §
F o

[vi]  Mr. Peng Qilei was appointed on 12 May 2021. Wil ERFAEEBRI2021F5H12H%E
£ -

vii]  Ms. Liu Jing was appointed on 12 May 2021. Wii]  Blagzc B R2021F5H 12 HEZ
F o

lviii]  Ms. Tong Fangyan was appointed on 8 October 2021. iii) 2FFLZEER2021F10H8H %
ZF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMERESHFMA L (&)
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(b) Supervisors’ emoluments (b) E:EENS
The emoluments of each of the supervisors for the year FRNEZEENESEY T -

are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2025128MALEE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits  Discretionary  contribution
Fees in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
e MERE
BHR HARI
ik BNRIE WiERA HE LA @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARBR ARBR ARBR ARER ARBR

Mr. Liu Bing Arsk - 470,990 - 31,876 502,866
Mr. Sun Luran [notelii) B REE (M) - 187,040 - 31,700 218,740
Mr. Zhu Xiaodong REREE - - - - -
Total st - 658,030 - 63,576 721,606
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31BLLFEE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits ~ Discretionary ~ contribution
Fees in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
¥4 HERE
BER HERIK
He BENFlE Rista HEE by
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARBR AR ARER ARBR AR

Mr. Liu Bing Bl - 479,631 - 18,079 497,710
Mr. Tian Xiuju (note (i) mAR L4 (FEH) - 71,698 - 2,500 74,198
Mr. Zhu Xiaodong REREE - - - - -
Mr. Sun Luran [note (ii] BBAREE () - - = = 3
Total 5t - 551,329 - 20579 571,908

Notes: Bt

(il Mr. Tian Xiuju resigned on 12 May 2021. ()RR R 2021455 5 12 A BHE o

(il Mr. Sun Luran was appointed on 12 May 2021. (ii[FREE A S5 A 2021485 5 12 A HEZ(F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS" EMOLUMENTS
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(c] Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 included 2 (2021: 3) directors of the Company
respectively and their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining 3 (2021: 2] individuals for the years ended

13. EERESMERESHFMA L)

(c) FE&ESHMAL

HE202F12A31HILEE » AEH
emmMAREADRIEERR RN
22 (2021 1 3R)ES - BHENME
REXZEINDTHBEMRE - B2
2022 2021512 A3 B IEEE » &
BIFEN FEE T34 (20214F : 2&)AA

31 December 2022 and 2021 respectively are as follows: KBNS AT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR#TT AR#TT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & ~ JEBL R EWFIZ 995,952 707,047
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 20,000 20,000

Contribution to defined contribution M B AR E SRR 85K
retirement plan 12,000 34,652
Total #Et 1,027,952 761,699

The emoluments of each of the above non-director
highest paid individuals during the year were all within
the band of nil to HK$1,000,000.

(d)  During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or supervisors or highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of
the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

(e)] Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management who are not directors or supervisors were
within the following band:

FR - A EEBMAFFEFORDHIMA
T VBN S &8 E SN N T E1,000,0008
7TE o

(d &R AEBEXREREEFLEFIES
HEHA LS AHERIBI S E RS E N
ASINARE B & 6 SRR AF R BERL R
& - Wi - MEBEEENFAREXRE
MEEAE -

(e) MEFFEFIMISRERBRES
NHREMEOME RN A THER

2022 2021

20224 20214

Number of Number of

individual individual

A A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. BERRE
Energy 56 base
Office Motor storage station Leasehold
equipment vehicles system equipment  improvements Total
ARG AE BEAG  SCHURE RENELEHE @
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET AE®TR AE®T AE®T AE®T
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 RAONE1A1R 1,915,936 356,000 = - 961,841 3233797
Additions NE - - - - - -
Disposals e (159,909) (356,000 - - - (515,909)
At 31 December 2021 and PN1FE12R31B R
1 January 2022 W2F1A18 1,756,027 - - - 941,861 2,717,888
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 42) BB B ) (RizE42) - - 21,460,890 1,665,442 - B1263%
Additions hE 595,295 343,486 207,13 3,715,798 - L8615
Disposals e (23,408) - (3,251,644) - - (3,275,052)
At31 December 2022 RA2E12A318 2,321,914 343,486 18,416,382 5,381,240 961,861 27,430,883
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
At 1 January 2021 RANE1A1R 111,477 338,123 - - 961,841 2411461
Charge for the year ERgH 160,682 7197 - - - 167879
Disposals e (152,721] (345,320) - - - (498,041)
At 31 December 2021 and PN1E12R31B R
1 January 2022 2022F1R18 1,119,438 - - - 961,861 2,081,299
Charge for the year ERgH 150,301 69,413 3,329,486 346,394 - 3,8955%
Disposals e 22,240) - - - - 22,240)
At 31 December 2022 120226
128318 1,267,499 69,413 3,329,486 346,394 961,861 5,954,653
Net carrying value REFE
At31 December 2022 RA2E12A318 1,080,415 214,013 15,086,896 5,034,846 - 21476230
At31 December 2021 RANE12A31E 636,589 - - - - 636,589
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

15.

INTANGIBLE ASSET 15. B EE
Computer
software
EREMS
RMB
AR
Cost AR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R2021F1 818 ~ 20214128318
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202251 H1B }2022512A31H 2,533,707
Accumulated depreciation ZEE
At 1 January 2021 R20215E1H1H 144,210
Charge for the year FREE) 253,371
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 202112 A31A &2022%1 A1H 397,581
Charge for the year FREH 253,370
At 31 December 2022 72022412 A318 650,951
Net carrying value BRIENFE
At 31 December 2022 72022124318 1,882,756
At 31 December 2021 R20219F12 4318 2,136,126

The Group's computer software with carrying amount of
RMB1,882,756 (2021: 2,136,126) will be fully amortised in 7

years (2021: 8 years).

(20214F : 84F ) BB -
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. ZAFESAEBZHNESHEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Financial asset measured at FVTPL BAVEGFABRNSRMEE
- preference shares of an unlisted -FE EIRERE R (METa)
investment (note a) 4,796,810 5,000,000
- Ordinary shares in Zhuhai Huihe RIKBESERAIERERES
Guangjing Chuangye (BRER) B L @A (D)
Investment Fund, L.P (note b) 13,944,000 6,000,000
- Ordinary shares in Beijing RIERIERfEERE RS
Shuncheng Health Investment (BERAER) M E B (FrEc)
Fund, L.P. [note ¢ 29,965,000 4,000,000
48,705,810 15,000,000
Reconciliation for financial asset at fair value based on RIBFEATATEREASE(E=ZE)EAF
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as follows: BIRENSRMEE 2 HRNT ¢
Financial asset
measured at FVTPL
BRATEFABRNEREE
2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
Unlisted investment FEWMIRE AR¥T AR¥RT
At the beginning of year F4) 15,000,000 =
Addition NE 35,000,000 15,000,000
Change in fairvalue in financial assets AT EFFAEBGZHNESREE
at FVTPL B EZES (1,294,190) 3
At the end of year FR 48,705,810 15,000,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The financial asset represents 0.5973% interest of
preference shares in a private company incorporated in
the PRC with investment cost of RMB5,000,000. Upon
initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at
FVTPL. There is change in fair value of the financial asset
of RMB203,190 for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The fair value measurement of the asset is disclosed in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. It is
classified as non-current assets as it is expected to be

realised after 12 months after the reporting period.

The financial asset represents 28.2699% interest in a
fund incorporated in the PRC. Pursuant to the Limited
Partnership Agreement, the capital commitment to the
Fund by the Group is RMB30,000,000. As at 31 December
2022, RMB15,000,000 was paid and the remaining
RMB15,000,000 remained unpaid. There is change in fair
value of the financial asset of RMB1,056,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The fair value measurement
of the asset is disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. It is classified as non-current
assets as it is expected to be realised after 12 months

after the reporting period.

The financial asset represents 9.9% interest in a
fund incorporated in the PRC with investment cost of
RMB30,000,000. There is change in fair value of the
financial asset of RMB35,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. The fair value measurement of the
asset is disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. It is classified as non-current assets as
it is expected to be realised after 12 months after the

reporting period.

16. BAFEFTAEBZNEREE2)

(a)

(b)

(c)

CREEEN —BEPRFMEKLD
FLARRIH0.5973% B AMIER - 88
BX 7R A A R #5,000,0007C ° A
RiE - SMEERAFEFTABRT
£ HE202F12A3BIEFEE &
BEENATEEZBSERBARE
203,1907T ° B EM QN FHEFT ERER
BV BIRRAOMELORIETE - HRZ
BEETHRREDREREZI2EAE
B3 WO BEAERDEE -

S REEEN —BE P E MR A
©H28.2699% 2 - BIBHRE B
% AEEHESHERREAARKE
30,000,0007T ° M2022412 318 » #
At AR ¥ 15,000,0007T R g T AR
15,000,0007C R 2 o &L ZE 20224512
ABLFE  sREEATEES
B ARBE1,056,0000T c ZEEMNAF
BEFF2RERE BB MR MM EII R
B - HRZAETEN R RS HERE
REABERE  MOBEARIERBEE -

ERMEEEN—FEERBEFEMKZAE
S HI9.9% s - B E2022F12A31H
35,0007T ° ZEEKNATFEFTERIGE
B HRRANEOPHEE - HRZE
ERFTERMEHEREZI2EAEE
W MO ERIERBEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. AV EFARMEZEHKANESE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &E
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARERT
Financial asset measured at FVTOCI TR ERT AR EE AR
THREE

- Listed ordinary shares in Shanghai -EEBRSEREERRRNDER

KYMS Enterprise Development Co., NRIW LR (I L8RS
Ltd ("Shanghai KYMS") £l) - 18,003,936
- 18,003,936

Reconciliation for financial asset at fair value based on

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3] are as follows:

REEATAERBABER(E=E)RAF
BEIRNSREE SR

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB RMB

Investment RE AR¥T AR

At the beginning of year F1 18,003,936 -

Additions NE 34,465,139 15,534,858

Total gains or losses: Wk B tE 4258 -

- in other comprehensive income - EA 2 ERA G AR R FERT
(included in changes in fair value AHMEARAZEREER

of financial assets at FVTOCI) NEEEF) (555,369) 2,469,078

Transfer to associates Lyl /NE] (51,913,706) 5

At the end of year FR - 18,003,936
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

17.

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. #AFEf AEMZEHK AN SR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) BEE#®)
As at 31 December 2021, the financial asset represents MR2022F12A318 * RBEEER—HERE
7.55% equity interest in a company incorporated in the PRC B/ EROGEZRZA([2BRERE])
which is listed in National Equities Exchange and Quotations EmERBEFMA AR FR7.55% MR -
("NEEQ") and acquired with investment cost of RMB15,534,858 HZE202F12A3181EFE - #BEKEEBA
for the year ended 31 December 2022. No dividends were R #15,534,8587T © FFNZIRE W ARIEE
received on this investment during the year. There is change IR B - REZE2022%F12A31BIEFE @ &
in fair value of the financial asset of RMB555,369 for the year BMEENRFEZES S ARESS5369TT © F
ended 31 December 2022. During the year, the Group has the W AEEEHSHEARMNEERTHBEREA
significant influence to participate in the company’s operating BEATE  AERE ERFBEOMALE
and financial policies with the power to appoint of one director ERMAZE LSRG BENBESTHA—
out of nine directors of Shanghai KYMS under the articles of HBEE - B2022F8H16B 8 - ZEZQF
associates of Shanghai KYMS, the financial assets at FVTOCI Bt \Efth2mRAZEMEEK BB E R
become associates since 16 August 2022. Please refer to the 7] o E—AEHIEF2HMME18 -
note 18 for further details.
CONTRACT ASSET 18. EHNEE
The following table sets out details of the contract asset as at TREFINBERRNA L EEFS ¢
the end of the reporting period:
2022 2021
2022%F 20216
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Costs incurred to date plus recognised (&5 EAERK A I1 EE#ER
profits less recognised losses a AR A B EREE 10,674,884 =
Less: Progress billings to date W S HERE R (6,054,000) =
Less: Impairment loss recognised during J& : REAFERHRIEEE
the year (49,268) -
4,571,616 =
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18.

CONTRACT ASSET (Continued)

The contract asset is arisen from energy storage system
solution and general construction. The changes in the
contract assets for the year was resulted from the pace of the
progress of particular project and the timing of progress billing

application for certain projects.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract

assets are as follows:
Contracting

The Group's contract assets represent the Group's right
to consideration for work completed but not yet billed to
customers at the reporting date. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings

to customers based on agreed payment terms.

When the Group receives a deposit before construction
services is rendered, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the beginning of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the

relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REE QA RAVRER

2022 2021
20225 202145
RMB RMB
ARERT AR®RT

Share of net assets EhEEFE 28,951,764 =
Goodwill [ 22,864,368 -

51,816,132 =

Particulars of the material associate are as follows: BERAEARBEARFFBOT

Percentage of

ownership interest

Place of attributable to Principal place
Name Particulars of Issued Share held incorporation the Group  Principal activity of business
REBEL
8 R BTRGFE AMRUBE  REEEZEAL TEXE TEERBE
Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology ~ Registered capital of RMB1 each ~ PRC 2081%  Leasing of serviced office  PRC
Co., Ltd.

HERSABENARNARAT  HRRASRARKIR 48 neh EEANAZEE  #E
The Group's shareholding in the associate is held through a REBNE @R E QR 2 RETFERA QT
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The associate is BET2EMBARRE - ZEHE R NFEH
holding certain subsidiaries in the PRC. It is listed in NEEQ, FEETHEBLR - ERWIEERMSENE
which is not an active market and its quoted market price at 31 B R4 BT 20226 12 31 B ™S
December 2022 is RMB7.68 per share. HRERBRARKT.8TT °
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19.
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

On 10 May 2021 and 30 September 2021, the Group acquired
7.55% and 14.35% equity interests of Shanghai KYMS with cost
of RMB15,534,858 and RMB34,465,139 respectively. According
to the second acquisition agreement, the transaction for
acquiring additional interest is not yet completed until the
appointment of a director to the Board. Therefore, it did not
obtain significant influence until 16 August 2022. The Group has
appointed a director to the Board on 16 August 2022. Based on
this, the Group consider that they have the power to exercise
significant influence. This acquisition has been accounted for
using an accumulated cost approach in determining initial

carrying amount of the associate under equity method.

The financial effect arising from the acquisition of Shanghai

KYMS as an associate was summarised as follows:

19. RBERTNERE)

202158108 K% 20219F9 A308 © AEE
DRIUEE EBRZEZHERFERNDBR AT
(I LR B B 1) 7.55% M 14.35%H) iR 4 -
A5 Bl A AR #15534,858 7T K A RS
34,465,1397C - IRIBE — W R - W
BIMERRNR G AT  BEEET—RE
EMAEEERIE - At - HEE202248
R16RIEmBREATE - AEED 2022
FORAAZT—RESENAEEE - BE
Rt AEBRABRERENITEERNY
2. ZWESENETREREAR ZIE
ANRMYIRREER - BIRARBERAEA
EE °

Wi LBRZBRIERBERRELE M
FERIRIT -

As at
16 August
2022
20225
8H16H
RMB
AR
Fair value of 20.81% interests previously held by AEEBEINEAFET AL MEEK
the Group in financial assets at FVTOCI AZ REEPFE 2 20.81%EmH)
AT 51,913,706
Restoration to original cost for the equity investment  H&pk BB E N FIRAFEFAHME
at FVOCI subsequently becoming an associate EA 2 R R & B8 2 R EKR (1,913,709)
Deemed cost WAR R 49,999,997
Group's share of net assets of the associate REBE(LHE QR EEFE 27,135,629
Goodwill on acquisition Yok < B 22,864,368

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the associate adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated statement of financial

position:

TRYUBWEATLHBENEE - OHE
SRR I E T2 RAFL 8 R A6 A BHSH
R BEEHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

19.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

19. RBERTNRER(#)

Summarised financial information B ERME
As at
31 December
2022
R2022F
12831H
RMB
ARETT
Current assets mENEE 168,121,138
Non-current assets IEMENEE 460,930,414
Current liabilities mEEE (177,293,951)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBIE (312,633,315)
139,124,286
Net assets BEEFE
Reconcilliation to the Group’s interests in associates:  BZAREBRE &N B2 s 2 ¥k ¢
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE 2 ARG 20.81%
Group's share of net assets of the associates REEREMENREEFE 28,951,764
Goodwill on acquisition gl 22,864,368
51,816,132
Period ended 31 December 2022 REZ20225128318 LLHE
Revenues Wz 49,814,423
Profit and total comprehensive income for the period  HiPUHFI & 2 EUR A 4248 8,727,216
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

20. FRUWERRX

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB RMB

AR ARYT

Finance lease receivables mEHE R EIE 33,255,489 78,002,799

Less: unearned finance income B REBEIREVE W (4,205,949) (6,754,700)
Present value of minimum lease SEAENFREFER)

payment (note (a)) 29,049,540 71,248,099
Receivables from sale-leaseback B AR W ERIE(FIRE D)

transactions (note (b)) 76,735,243 189,321,613
Factoring receivables with recourse BB R 2 RIBEIRIE

(note (c)) (BfFE(e)) 116,870,800 114,005,795
Trade receivables (note (d)] B 5 RYSRR (MEE(d) 7,722,408 9,720,839
Receivables from operating leases K H B PR WK IR (BT EE(e))

(note (e)) 1,185,975 =
Subtotal of accounts receivable FEUS AR R/ Na T 231,563,966 384,296,346
Less: Provision for finance lease B BE T EREUGRIERE

receivables (note (a)) (Kt&E(a)) (13,809,779) (14,060,386

Provision for receivables from B DR 5 REUGRIE B

sale-leaseback transaction (MF7E(b))
(note (b)) (27,236,682) (13,106,487)

Provision for factoring receivables {RIE FEUGRIE B8 (BT (c)

(note (c]) (30,915,587) (11,144,439)

Provision for trade receivables B 5 FE AR SRR (PR (d)

(note (d]) (2,853,864) (580,587)

Provision for receivables from K T E e GRIE A (PR (e))

operating leases (note (e)) (29,093) =
156,718,961 345,404,447
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KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWBRFK (&)
Analysis for reporting purpose as: MBEFEZ DITAT
2022 2021
20224 20215
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR
Current assets MENEE 135,382,892 288,196,025
Non-current assets FERBEE 21,336,069 57,208,422
156,718,961 345,404,447
As at 31 December 2022, included in accounts receivable 2022128318 - EWERRBIEAEAR
amounted to RMB21,974,343 (2021: RMB46,035,757) were #21,974,343 70 (2021 4F + AR ¥ 46,035,757
balances due from related companies with details as follows: TR FEUR EABS N BN TB A RS SRS ¢
The Group REH

Amount outstanding

RMEIFIE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
At At during
Name of related parties 1January 31 December the year
ERAEEN
BB LR MA1R M2A31E BEEH
Notes RMB RMB RMB
i3 AR®T ARHT N
2022 20225
Longding Huayuan' ERER 34(a)
Receivables from sales and lease-back &R 5 EWFIAE
transaction 46,871,710 22,423,945 46,871,710
Less: Impairment allowance W ORERE (835,953) (398,282)

46,035,757 22,025,663
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. PEUWBRRR(#2)

Amount outstanding

PEE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
At At during
Name of related parties 1January 31 December the year
FRREED
)yt MA1E  R2A31H REEHE
Notes RMB RMB RMB
i N N AR¥ET
2021 20214
Longding Huayuan' ERER 34(a)
Receivable from sales and leaseback ERARR ZEBFR
transaction 68,077,020 46,871,710 68,077,020
Less: Impairment allowance W ORERE (799,484) (835,953)
67,277,536 46,035,757
Shanghai Kuajie? itk 34(al 7,976,153 - 7,976,153
Finance lease receivables BEAERIKE (20,355) =
Less: Impairment allowance R ERE 7,955,798 =
Shanghai KYMS® HERSAEE 34(a) 5,988,758 - 5,988,758
Factoring receivable RIBEYTUA (15,283) -
Less: Impairment allowance W OREERE 5.973 475 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

R 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

1

It RTEERERFEHERZEFREEL A (Beijing City
Longding Huayuan Property Development Co. Ltd.]
("Longding Huayuan’] is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Beijing City Dayuan Tiandi Property Development Co., Ltdit
R A S A M 1 E % H R 22 5] ("Dayuan Tiandi”), which

is one of the substantial shareholders of the Company.

LBREDPEERE BRI A] (Shanghai Kuaijie Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.)("Shanghai Kuaijie"] is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Beijing Kuaiyi Tiandi Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd JERIRG K> ZEEEFR L A]
["Beijing Kuaiyi Tiandi"), which is owned as to 49% by
Dayuan Tiandi which is one of the substantial shareholders
of the Company. In April 2021, Beijing Dayuan Tiandi has sold
all the 49% shares in Beijing Kuaiyi Tiandi to a third party and
therefore, Shanghai Kuaijie was no longer a related party as
at 31 December 2021.

LR ZEB A EHER G ER 2 E], Shanghai KYMS is a joint
venture partner of Beijing Kuaiyi Tiandi, which is owned as
to 49% by Beijing Dayuan Tiandi, a 56% owned subsidiary of
Daynan Tiandi which is one of the substantial shareholders
of the Company. In April 2021, Beijing Dayuan Tiandi has
sold all the 49% shares in Beijing Kuayi Tiandi to a third
party and therefore, Shanghai KYMS was no longer a related
party as at 31 December 2021. It become an associate since
16 August 2022 and no related party transaction incurred
during the year.

20. FEWERR (&)

1

IR REREREEREFRE LA
([EERER ) BALAILTEREZ —LR
TAIEAM I EEFH B BR AR ([ AFEX
i |) a2 BB L A] o

FEREPREEEFRLA([ LERE)])
BB RIRZAM PR EEFRAA([1E
RkRZ XM )92 EHE R A+ bR R
BAMA AL A E BRREZ — AR
B49%HERS - R20219F4 8 » LT AIEX
b AEAE IR B AU EI49% AR (7 2 B &
F—HE=F - EW EHRER2021FE
128318 E THBAFHE T

LERGEFBIL R IEZK A E#
P ML TR BRIA A RG] EZREZ
— K IB AL R 56 % IS B 2 Al AL
AKHBEF49% 7 o IR2021F4 7 + IER
A8 KM B #E IR BRI 49% R A7 2
HBHETF—EFE=F - Bt FEREER
R2021F12831 HE T B A6 - &
B 202248 H 16 HRESL Bl & 1 7] RIRFE
AT FEE LRI K5 -
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

200 FYFINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. BEgEMECEIND D AR AT

The effective interest rates of the above finance lease ranged
mainly from 6.54% to 15.06% per annum as at 31 December
2022 (2021: 5.83% to 19.48% per annum).

The ageing analysis of finance lease receivables, determined
based on the schedule to repay of the receivables since the
effective dates of the relevant lease contracts, as at the end
of reporting period, is as follows:

20. FEWERR (&)

Mt -

(a)

R2022F 12831H » Fitgt EHER
EBRFIEREE)TEHFL54%F1506%
(20214F : £4F5.83% 2 19.48%) °

BT E e IR (IR [E MR A /H
BB & #) L34 A L BRI R E
TE )R & BRI AR A9k 2T AT

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR¥ T
Finance lease receivables: BEHERUEIE

Within one year —FEUR 31,239,024 71,047,601
More than one year but within two years BB —FERREA 2,016,465 6,955,198
33,255,489 78,002,799

Present value of minimum lease payments: {EHAERFH2IRE :
Within one year —F LR 28,749,372 70,163,568
More than one year but within two years iR —FERRERN 300,168 1,084,531
29,049,540 71,248,099

The following is a credit quality analysis of finance lease U AEREHEEKS BN =EEEZ5S

receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment of
a finance lease receivables is overdue for more than 30
days, the entire outstanding balance of the finance lease
receivables is classified as overdue. If the instalment
repayment is overdue within 30 days, only the balance of this
instalment is classified as overdue.

W o 1t BT B E W AR 0 75 BIE e
HBiB30H » ZHEHEEWHALN 2
RNERBER IR o 197 BR8]
THBIH » REZDHNEHRDIER
HH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. PEURBRFR(#)
Notes: [Continued) HiaE - ()
(a]  [Continued] (a] (#&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥TRT AR®TT
Neither overdue nor credit-impaired AR EEERE 3,872,746 38,382,672
Overdue but not credit-impaired B EREERE
- Overdue within 30 days —E BR300 H 2,680,958 502,827
Overdue and credit impaired BB EERE
- Overdue over 180 days — B EARIE180H 22,495,836 32,362,600
Gross carrying amount of finance lease A EFEWGRIAIRE A E
receivables 29,049,540 71,248,099
Allowance for impairment losses SEE 1B S (13,809,779) (14,060,386)
Net amount of finance lease receivables REMRERNRESR 15,239,761 57,187,713
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on finance B & FH B UK 1 T 1 18 A A B 4
lease receivables are as follows: o
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB RMB
AR®TRT AR®TRT
At beginning of year =) 14,060,386 29,558,615
Impairment loss recognised for the year — FRNEERARERE (M)
(note) 1,218,162 3,377,717
Write off Jii5H (1,468,769) (18,875,946)
At end of year FR 13,809,779 14,060,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b]

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & E CEI) XKD R A 7

(Continued]
Note:

The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses under the simplified
approach for finance lease receivables. The changes in
the loss allowance was mainly due to the additional of loss
allowance on finance lease contracts at the reporting date

under the expected credit loss model.

The effective interest rates of the receivables from sale-
leaseback transactions ranged mainly from 6.68% to 14.79%
per annum as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 7.69% to 26.91%

per annum.

The following is an ageing analysis based on the schedule
to repay of the receivables since the effective date of the

relevant sale-leaseback contracts, as at the end of the

FEU AR R ()

Hiat : (&)

(a) (%)
et -
AT B fEN A 18R B IR IE G E
)‘f?ﬁ?ﬁ—“/ﬁWf@%@/ﬁgﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬂ’]i\?ﬁ#
B o FEEGEE T EHRMEHE
AR & AR AR B E?fé’iﬁftﬁﬁ 78
ZBENETRFE G ATEL

(b)  R2022%F12H31H - EREMH L3 ZEWK

AENEEFIEEEN FFF668%F
14.79%(20214F < &4 7.69%226.91%) °

RIFLHIRTH - BRMOREFEEA K%
B E AR S B I AR 5 A
wF

reporting period.
2022 2021
20224 202145
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR¥ T
Current BNHR 67,200,561 158,310,371
Non-current JERNER 9,534,682 31,011,242
76,735,243 189,321,613

Notes:

The Group, acts as a buyer-lessor does not recognise the
transferred asset as the sale-leaseback transaction does
not satisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 as a sale but

accounted for as financing arrangement under HKFRS 9.

The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal to
12 month and lifetime expected credit losses under the
general approach for receivables from sale-leaseback
transaction. The changes in the loss allowance was mainly
due to the additional of loss allowance on receivables from
sale-leaseback transactions at the reporting date under the
expected credit loss model.

it -

WERBEIX ST & BB B HEEL
FISPEHE  AIAEE((ERED 1M
A TEHEBREERRBLE - R
BEBHBEREEREIRARS BEE
LRSI o

ERHBEIR S WS R TR T 1RIE
—ROZIK 1218 A R FIRAFERE B EIE
1HERE T E - BRFEGEEE T 2R
REE T EIR 5 W RR & H AR
RS EERIRAELBINEIRER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWERFR(4)
Notes: [Continued) Hiat - (#)
[b]  [Continued] ) (&)
The following is a credit quality analysis of receivables from U TNEBEFRHEIR ZENNANEEEZ
sale-leaseback transaction. In the event that an instalment DT ° 1 EE T 1 B fEM IR 77 B
repayment of a receivable from sale-leaseback transaction KR - A E R ER R £
is overdue, the entire outstanding balance of the receivables BB AL R 7 XE R Y ©

from sale-leaseback transaction is classified as overdue.

2022 2021
2022%F 20215
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR¥TT
Neither overdue nor credit-impaired PR EEERE = 139,496,223
Overdue but not credit-impaired BHEEEEREAE
Overdue within 30 days — B AN B B30 5,823,911 7,234,711
Overdue 30 to 90 days —®EA30B £90H 39,099,831 3,114,764
Overdue 90 days to 180 days —®mEI90H £ 180H 1,203,771 2,428,880
46,127,513 12,778,355
Overdue and credit impaired BB EERE
- Overdue over 180 days — g HARB 180 H 30,607,730 37,047,035
Gross carrying amount of receivables EREERSEWRIBZ
from sale-leaseback transaction BRmEAE 76,735,243 189,321,613
Allowance for impairment losses BEE B (27,236,682) (13,106,487
Net amount of receivables from SRR S EWAIEFEEE
sale-leaseback transaction 49,498,561 176,215,126
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. PEURBRFR(#)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (&)
(b]  [Continued] b (&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on E B [E] 35 2 JE S IE 2 Ji (B 1 &
receivables from sale-leaseback transaction are as follows: wmr
2022 2021
20224 20215
RMB RMB
AR®TRT AR® T
At beginning of year F1) 13,106,487 7,507,260
Impairment loss recognised for the year  FREERABIERIE 15,425,476 5,599,227
Write off — s (1,295,281) =
At end of year FR 27,236,682 13,106,487
Provision for impairment loss on receivables from sale- E& 013 S EY B/ B (B R R i 40
leaseback transaction are as follows: T
As at 31 December 2022
1#2022%12831H
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  creditimpaired  credit impaired Total
128 EFRAEHEE ERABHEE
EHEEFE BR(EEERE) BRGERE) st
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥R NG AR¥T ARER
Gross carrying amount of receivables  E%MER FRUNFIEL
from sale-leaseback transaction FEeE 44,923,742 1,203,771 30,607,730 76,735,243
Less: Allowances for impairment losse i, : /BB 1R (797,910) (10,213) (26,428,559) (27,236,682
Net amount of receivables from ERTEER FRUGEFE
sale-leaseback transaction 44,125,832 1,193,558 417917 49,498,561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

BRI

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

[b)  [Continued)

20. FEWERR (&)
Kzt : (48)
b (&)

As at 31 December 2021
R2021£128318
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  creditimpaired  credit impaired Total
1288 FRAEHEE FRABHEE
EHEEFE FR(EEERE FRGEAE) -
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥T AR¥T
Gross carrying amount of receivables  E%MER HRUNFIE L
from sale-leaseback transaction FReE 149,845,698 2,428,880 37,047,035 189,321,613
Less: Allowances for impairment loss 7, : B EREE 2,693,073) (402,059) (10,011,355 (13,106,487)
Net amount of receivables from ERARRS
sale-leaseback transaction B FE 147,152,625 2,026,821 27,035,680 176,215,126

Movements of the provision for impairment loss on

E & DI 5 WA IR 1Y B (T 1R 5 1

receivables from sale-leaseback transaction are as follows: E/L
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  creditimpaired  credit impaired Total
1288 ERAEHEE ERAEHEE
BHEERE BE(REEAE) FEGEAE) EH)
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR%T AR%T AR ARET
Balance as at 1 January 2021 R2021F1 B1R&#H 4,427,955 557,206 2,522,099 7,507,260
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREFRANERHEEEE
credit-impaired/credit-impaired mEERE/RERNE (3,158,208) (400,301) 3,558,509 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance  EiEEEEHEFE 1359,873 245,154 3,930,747 5,535,774
New financial assets originated EENTEREBE 63,453 - - 63,453
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and ~ FA2021E12A318 K
1 January 2022 02261 BB &S 2,693,073 402,059 10,011,355 13,106,487
Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERZFRNEACERE
credit-impaired/credit-impaired BEERE/EERE 198,150 (237,228) 39,078 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance  [EIREEENIE%E (2,230,756) (154,618) 16,378,126 13,992,752
New financial assets originated EERTSREE 137,443 - - 137,443
Balance as at 31 December 2022 R20225 1231 R 797,910 10,213 26,428,559 27,236,682

The significant increase in lifetime ECL credit impaired on BT O R S EN S IB I ERATEREE
BIREZEE T EhR G ARERIEE

E1RIR AR T BT HE BR1RE LTt -

receivables from sale-leaseback transaction are mainly due
to increase in expected credit loss rate at the reporting date
under the expected credit loss model.
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

20. FEWERR (&)
BisE - (1)

[c]  The ageing analysis of factoring receivables, as at the end

of the reporting periods, based on the schedule to repay by

customers is as follows:

(c]

RIBEHR - RIEFFHIEAEFRIZ » (R
P2 WS B AR TR T

2022 2021

20224 20215

RMB RMB

AR®TT AR¥TT

Current BNHA 106,870,800 94,858,546
Non-current FERNER 10,000,000 19,147,249
116,870,800 114,005,795

The effective interest rates of the above factoring receivables

ranged mainly from 12% to 13.5% per annum as at 31
December 2022 [2021: 8.36% to 15.00% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group hold collateral of
the factoring receivables with a carrying amount of
RMB181,946,350 (2021: RMB247,517,625] over the factoring

receivables.

The following is a credit quality analysis of factoring

receivables. In the event that an instalment repayment of

a factoring receivable is overdue, the entire outstanding

balance of the factoring receivables is classified as overdue.

202212 A31 H » _F it 1R I e 3%
HEEFFIERHBEEZNRI12% 2
13.5%(20214F : FF|%8.36%=15.00%) °

202212831 H » N5 B 5L (RFE JE UL
HIEfF B EREIEBA R 181,946,3507T
(20214 : ARIE247,517,6257T ) Y 1R EE
JEN S IE o

U P BREER RN EEEDT © 14
RIE [EW IR0 72 BIR 5 - SRR
YA IR ) BE AR (B A 2R 7 SR A3 80 o

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARM¥ET
Neither overdue nor credit-impaired ARG EEERE 82,786,420 74,516,868
Overdue but not credit-impaired B EEEEERE
- Overdue 90 days to 180 days #HEI90H = 180H - 6,253,892
Overdue and credit impaired BB EERE
- Overdue over 180 days B HIERR180H 34,084,380 33,235,035
Gross carrying amount of factoring RIBFEWFIERE 42 E
receivables 116,870,800 114,005,795
Allowance for impairment losses B TR R (30,915,587) (11,144,439)
Net amount of factoring receivables (RIE FEUR TR IEF B 85,955,213 102,861,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWBRRR (&)

Notes: [Continued) HiaE - ()
[c]  [Continued] [c) (#&)
(RIE FEM B R B IR B0 T -

Provision for impairment loss on factoring receivables are as

follows:
As at 31 December 2022
12022%12831H

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  creditimpaired  credit impaired Total

1288 EFRAEHEE ERABHEE
EHEEFE BR(EEERE) BRGERE) M@t
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥TR NG AR¥T ARER

Gross carrying amount of factoring REENHEREAE
receivables 82,786,420 - 34,084,380 116,870,800
Less: Allowances for impairment loss & : RS EEE (1,819,690) - (29,095,897 (30,915,587
Net amount of factoring receivables REEWZIERE 80,966,730 - 4,988,483 85,955,213
As at 31 December 2021
RW2021E12A31H

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL  creditimpaired  creditimpaired Total

128 FRAEHEE FRAEHEE
EHCEFE FER(RGEHE) FBE(GERE) @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥ETR AR¥TR AR¥T AR¥TL

Gross carrying amount of factoring REEKZERALE

receivables 74,516,868 6,253,892 33,235,035 114,005,795
Less: Allowances for impairment loss 1, : R{BEEEME (1,290,152) (274,827 (9.579,440) (11,144,439)
Net amount of factoring receivables RIBEWTIEFE 73,226,716 5,979,065 23,655,575 102,861,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. PEURBRFR(#)
Notes: [Continued) Wit - (&)
lc) (Continued) lc] (%)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on factoring REBJEW S B R B E 1B R = B T -

receivables are as follows:

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL

12-month ECL  creditimpaired  credit impaired Total
1288 EFRAEHEE FRAFEHEE
BHEEER BR(EGEAE) BR(GERE) @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥R NG AR ARET
Balance as at 1 January 2021 R2021E1 B1R&#H 1,650,401 1163916 10,332,858 12,927.175
Transfer to lifetime ECL not EBRZFRNEAEEES
credit-impaired/credit-impaired (BEERME)/ (FEHE) (791,356 (136,349] 927,705 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance ~ BREBESEHHE%8E (537,693 (732,740) (1,681,103) [2.951,536)
New financial assets originated ELNTERBE 1,168,800 - - 1,168,800
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and ~ }R2021F12831H &
1 January 2022 02F1 B1RE#H 1,290,152 274,827 9,579,460 11,144,439
Net remeasurement of loss allowance  [EIBBEE N E%E 487,336 (274,827) 19,516,437 19,728,946
New financial assets originated ELNFEREE 42,202 - - 42,202
Balance as at 31 December 2022 R20226 12831 B8 1,819,690 - 29,095,897 30,915,587
The change was mainly due to significant increase in BRI E) T F ZHRERANEL = EES
loss allowance on lifetime ECL credit impaired factoring (1= BRi (8 ) 1RIBEY S 1B E 15 B (e B 2 1%
receivables with the increase in expected credit loss rate in IR FERI = B E BRI R E H A8 B
this category at the reporting date under the expected credit EEEERFFH -

loss model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWERFR(4)

Notes: [Continued) Kt - (&)

[d]  The ageing analysis of trade receivables from sales of goods (d] FREFRIAREREFEEGEINKE S
income, as at the end of the reporting periods, based on the K BEE R A RSN 5 9 B 5 JE U BR 5\ R i
schedule to repay by customers is as follows: TR -

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB RMB
AR T ARMET
Current BNHA 4,344,460 3,543,073
Non-current JEENER 3,377,948 6,177,766
7,722,408 9,720,839
The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal B S EWIR 2 E18 R B D iRIR 1 E 1%
to lifetime expected credit losses under the simplified HEERFRATEHISEE B 2R E
approach for trade receivables.
The following is a credit quality analysis of trade receivables. KT REZERIEAXENEEEZSN © i
In the event that an instalment repayment of trade receivable B S EWIRA ) 0 BIE 0 E - ZE S &
is overdue, the entire outstanding balance of the trade AR )2 BE R (BIE AL £R 5 2H B Hf o
receivables is classified as overdue.
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARM¥ET
Neither overdue nor credit-impaired ARE BT EEERE 3,237,041 5,271,955
Overdue but not credit-impaired BEEEERERE
Overdue within 30 days B BTN ERAR30 B - 627,212
Overdue 30 days to 90 days #HA30H =90H - 2,081,535
Overdue 90 days to 180 days #HEA90H =180H 1,169,661 1,740,137
1,169,661 4,448,884
Credit impaired EERE
Overdue 180 days #1E7180H 3,315,706 -
Gross carrying amount of trade receivables & 5B EZERE42E 7,722,408 9,720,839
Allowance for impairment losses VERIEY Skt (2,853,864) (580,587)
Net amount of trade receivables B S RERERFFRE 4,868,544 9,140,252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. PEURBRFR(#)
Notes: [Continued) Wit - (&)
[d)  [(Continued) (d (#&)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on trade B BN R EE R EBmT

receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR% AR
At beginning of year F1 580,587 425,519
Impairment loss recognised for the year FREERREEE 2,273,277 155,068
At end of year FR 2,853,864 580,587
le]  The ageing analysis of receivables from operating lease, as le] RIWERIKR - IREEPHIENFREIR - 4
at the end of the reporting periods, based on the schedule to ETHEEW IR EREC S ITRAT -
repay by customers is as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR%T AR
Current BNER 1,185,975 =
The loss allowance was measured at an amount equal to AL TH B JEM IR IR B IR 1B — A%
12 month expected credit loss under the general approach SEB 2B A BRI S B 1B 560 £ 8851
for receivables from operating lease. The receivables from B o METHEBUA B R BRI EEE

operating lease were neither past due nor impaired. JBE1E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 20. FEWHERFR(2)
Notes: (Continued) Miat - ()
le]  [Continued] le)] (%)
The following is a credit quality analysis of receivables from UTBECHERBIKNA BN EEEZD
operating lease. In the event that an instalment repayment M o (4% & FH & JE YK 5015 1Y 55 BH A8 51 %6
of receivables from operating lease is overdue, the entire B RIZ A8 & TH E EN A TBER) 25K 1EE
outstanding balance of the receivables from operating lease AEER D AE B E E o

is classified as overdue.

2022 2021
20224 20215
RMB RMB
AR ARYTT
Neither overdue nor credit-impaired BEARE B EEERE 1,162,611 >
Overdue and credit-impaired TEHRREERE
- overdue over 180 days —E EFAR180 R 23,364 =
Gross carrying amount of receivables AT E R ERR AR E
from operating lease 1,185,975 =
Allowance for impairment losses DERIEN Skt (29,093) =
Net amount of receivables from KA SRR TR
operating lease 1,156,882 -
Movements of the provision for impairment loss on A ETH B JE WA 2 R B A E B a0
receivables from operating lease are as follows: sz
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR ARY T
At beginning of year F4) = -
Impairment loss recognised for the year  F R E ERHRERE 29,093 -
At end of year FR 29,093 -
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KRB BT R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1EF/Z

212

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 21. EEHREE
Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements EREEHIBEEENEENFBOT ¢
as follows:

Allowance for
impairment
losses
WEBERE
RMB
AR® T
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1818 12,604,642
Credited to profit or loss sTABHE 1,837,320
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 72021128318 K% 20225F1A1H 14,441,962
Credited to profit or loss STABR 3,163,913
At 31 December 2022 12022512AH31H 17,605,875

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had tax losses arising in
the PRC of RMB7,310,723 (2021: RMB2,308,506) and other
deductible temporary difference of RMB6,916,163 (2021: nil)
that will expire in years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses and deductible temporary difference
as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses and deductible

temporary differences can be utilised.

2022612 A318 - NEERPBEEELE 2/
BEEARYT310,7237T (20214 « AR
2,308,5067T) R EA AT T E s =5 A R
6,916,1637C(20214F « T)BRFERERM * 7]
AR ARRERTEF] o R AI &R
AR REREREEE RN E R EE
ZERBEF - M B ZEEE R A
TR EERERELEHIBEE -

22. INVENTORIES 22. &
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR® T
Finished goods BIRK T 578,726 =
Raw material ER R 55,796 =
634,522 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FAfIRE - e R HMEWRFIE

RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥ET AR¥T
Prepayments NG RE] 4,905,470 3,430,078
Value-added tax recoverable E e TR 2,617,050 1,632,634
Other deposits Hibite 141,923 141,923
Amounts due from a non-controlling JE WS E 2R R e 2 B SR IE BT 52 1)
interest note (i) 1,900,000 =
Other receivables H th FEUFRIA 4,384,817 3,003,764
13,949,261 8,208,399
Note: Kzt :
() The amount due from non-controlling interest is non- ()  FEUGHERESNZIERIFEI Y
trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and repayment IR - TR B BARERKEER -
on demand.
(i)  The directors of the Company considered the fair values i) ARAREEFRR - HMEWFIERRE
of other receivables approximate to their fair values. BEEENFEEE -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24, RERBESEEY

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB RMB

AR#TT AR#TRT

Cash at bank and in hand IRITNFHERE 182,949,195 148,349,236

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has cash and bank
balances denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB182,781,422 (2021: RMB148,195,253), which are deposited
with banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. Under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates and are deposited with creditworthy banks.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values of
the cash and cash equivalents are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because of the short maturity period on
their inception.

2022128318 - AEBUAREKEAE
WIRe R|ITEHR A/ AR 182,781,4227T
(20214 : AR¥148,195,2537T) * JhTERH
B3R MERIT - ARMET A B R ELIRABINE o
AR 4 B 1 B 151 LA IR 45 DR~ ST R
FEEIRIATE - ANEEE BB ERERIN
PSSR BEE R THF AR H IR BN -

RITERNIZERET BRITEFRANENES
N 2R BRERA B W7 NEE R AFHOIRTT ©

ARRAEERR  RERREFEWHLRF
EEAREEYEERER  HHRBERM
s ET =R HIHREEE
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KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. EZRHMENRIEA
2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥T
Trade payables (note a) B S e 5rE (Fista) 2,674,802 2,027,747
Accruals FEST &R 2,118,420 1,814,346
Deposits from finance lease customers REBEHERTFENRE
(note 28) (PffaE28) 17,804,259 32,733,359
Deposits from suppliers (note 28) R EftERE RS (H728) 2,024,350 1,345,038
Other payables H b FEf K1 4,218,793 1,848,432
Amount due to ultimate holding of a non- FEfTERAR IEIRASHEZS 7138 (M 5Eb)
controlling interest (note b) 13,900,000 =
Others (note c) H b (KfaEc) 627,113 758,289
43,467,737 40,527,211
Notes: it -
a]  The ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group, based on la) ZFEEZEZEMNZBEREAEREFEEZH
invoice dates, as at the end of the year is as follows: B BRES RO -
2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
ARBT ARM¥T
Over 3 months but within 1 year @A LA EB1ER 2,674,802 2,027,747
(b} The amount due to ultimate holding of a non-controlling (b]  JETRARIEFER BRI IERIFEZ M
interest is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and B FEER - TEE 0 BR2023F3H31
repayment on or before 31 March 2023. 32 g o
[c]  Others mainly include premium received from customers lc) AmEEZEEGAEFHERRZHNE
for insurance arrangement on behalf of customers and F UG ER B (R B2 B LA R 2K 6 55 B B
temporary receipts from customers. H e
[d)  The directors of the Company considered the carrying (d)  AREEFRBHMEN AR EEH
amounts of other payables and accruals approximate to their AR E SR 2 FEAE -
fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

26. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 26. FAWFRIE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB RMB
AR® T AR¥ T
Current portion BNEAES 7 1,090,154 47367
Non-current portion FEENERER 550,729 1,021,500
1,640,883 1,068,867
Receipts in advance represent the advanced receipts on AR HRIEEREHEERE MRIELHNTE
management fee of finance lease and factoring arrangements. WERIE o
27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. EHAEE
2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
AR® T AR¥ T
Contract liabilities arising from: EREERE :

Sales of goods HEEM 292,922 =
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HELNEBESEN—BNTIEEDT -
liabilities are as follows:

Sale of goods - energy storage systems HEEm RS
The Group may take deposit on acceptance of order, with the REB T EEZISHKEIRS - HERE
remainder of the consideration payable at the time of delivery TER B B o

of finished goods.

216 FYFINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. BEg &M ECEIND RN AR AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

27. CONTRACTS LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. EXNEE®)
Sale of goods (Continued) HEEm#E)
Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: ABHBEEEHOT
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR AR
Balance as at 1 January M1 A1 B AR - -
Increase in contract liabilities as AHBERIRR L E mgm
a result of billing in advance 292,922 -
292,922 -

28. DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE LEASE CUSTOMERS 28. RERIEHERFRHERNIRS
AND SUPPLIERS

Deposits from customers and suppliers represent security REEFPRHEENIZSIEEERERE
pledged to the Group for the corresponding finance lease FERTAEENRES - MEHEBRSE
customers. The amount of customer’s and supplier's deposits HRAREET + @Az EmrE P Rt ER
of which the finance leases will be expired after twelve months ReMSBETAFERBAG RMEAEER
from the end of reporting period is included under non-current SRR+ B A AE RN R P kit e
liabilities. The balance on customer’s and supplier's deposits R ERFT AR B EN M EAFIER
of which the finance leases will be expired within twelve FEETEA] -

months from the end of reporting period is included in “other

payables and accruals” under current liabilities.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT £E®RE 217



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
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28. DEPOSITS FROM FINANCE LEASE CUSTOMERS 28. REMEHEFFRMUERTNZES

AND SUPPLIERS (Continued) (%)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB RMB
AR AR¥T
Current liabilities REEE
Deposits from finance lease customers REBEHERTFENRSE 17,804,259 32,733,359
Deposits from suppliers KEHERNES 2,024,350 1,345,038
19,828,609 34,078,397
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Deposits from finance lease customers REBMEHEZFNZE 1,743,350 22.799,601
Deposits from suppliers REHEENRE 120,000 2,024,350
1,863,350 24,823,951
As at 31 December 2022, RMB7,200,000 from finance lease M2022F12A318 » SERBIEETHZRER
customers from non-current liabilities (2021: RMB7,200,000) BHRERTEH AR 200,000 (20214 -
was trade balances due to a related company, Longding AR®7200,0007T) BEN BB AR ESE
Huayuan. TREVE D AEER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. LEASES 29. HE
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HEEBHME CUEBEASH)
The group leases a number of properties in the PRC. All leases AEENFTREEETYE - FTEHEES
comprise only fixed payments over the lease terms from 1 year FEHEMMFR 105N EEFKIA °
to 10 years.
Right-of-use assets ERAEERE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by HIEBEERREDNEREEENERMF
class of underlying asset is as follows: BEHHT :
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20225 20214
12A31H 12A31H
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Properties leased for own use, HEBRAWE - LITERARAR
carried at depreciated cost 2,849,896 975,148
Properties leased for 5G base stations, ~ FAE{ESGEILMIWIE - UITE
carried at depreciated cost AN AR 6,721,735 =
9,571,631 975,148
During the year, there is additions of RMB5, 145,168 to right-of- FEABEFLRAEEE ARYD1451687T
use assets (2021: Nil). (20214 : #&) -
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29.

LEASES (Continued) 29. HE#®)
Right-of-use assets [Continued) EREEE &)
Buildings
BF
RMB
AR
Balance as at 1 January 2021 20211 A1 HE& 4,688,100
Early termination RE&KIE (2,711,902)
Depreciation e (1,001,050)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 7420215123318 &
20224F1 A1 B R RR 975,148
Acquisition of business (note 42) FRUEE (M5E42) 3,933,485
Additions NE 5,145,168
Modification of lease - extending the lease term MEERT-EREH 1,734,066
Depreciation e (2,216,236)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 FR20224F12 A31 HEV &84 9,571,631
Lease liabilities HEERE
Buildings
BF
RMB
AR¥RT
Balance as at 1 January 2021 FR20219F1 A1 HE &R 4,706,206
Interest expense MERX 73,494
Early termination REKIE (2,729,454
Lease payments HERK (1,030,163)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 12021128318 &
20221 A1 B &SR 1,020,083
Acquisition of business (note 42) WeBE 275 (P E42) 4,125,248
Additions NE 5,145,168
Interest expense MEFRX 347,331
Modification of lease - extending the lease term HEBT LR 1,734,066
Lease payments HERRK (3,595,828)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 FR2022F12 A31 HEV &5 8,776,068
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. LEASES (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

29. HE#®)
HEaE#E)

==

RREENKEBERNAT

Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Interest lease payments
RIEEE
BEBEENK FE NRBRE
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR® T AR¥ T
As at 31 December 2022 7A2022512H318
Not later than one year B —F 3,065,875 384,962 2,680,913
Later than one year and not —%F LA B TNEBBMF
later than two years 2,941,502 306,752 2,634,750
Later than two years and not MF LA EERBBERF
later than five years 3,106,800 364,111 2,742,689
Later than five years RFEAE 801,850 84,134 717,716
9,916,027 1,139,959 8,776,068
As at 31 December 2021 72021128318
Not later than one year A —F 1,024,210 23,647 1,000,563
Later than one year and not —&F LA H{BTBEAMTE
later than two years 19,603 83 19,520
1,043,813 23,730 1,020,083
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29. LEASES (Continued] 29.

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as:

HE#)
HEaE#E)

==

ARFBEENRZBREANAT :

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB RMB

AR¥T AR¥T

Current liabilities pEIN=EE 2,680,913 1,000,563
Non-current liabilities EREBEaE 6,095,155 19,520
8,776,068 1,020,083

Operating lease - Lessor

The Group leased out the business of provision of 5G base
stations site space as operating lease to independent third
parties for varying terms. The leases typically run for period
of 5 to 10 years. The rental income during the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB1,876,989.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

29. LEASES (Continued) 29. &%)
Operating lease - Lessor (Continued) KEHE—HEAE)
The minimum fixed rent receivables under non-cancellable A ECE R EHENREE TH S EKRR
operating leases are as follows: HIN R -
2022 2021
20224 20215
RMB RMB
AR®TT AR¥ T
Not later than 1 year TEBA—F 1,653,539 =
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years —%F LA H{ETABIBRE 1,645,929 £
Later than 2 year and not later than 3 years MG HERFBB=F 1,645,929 =
Later than 3 year and not later than 4 years =% LA H{E T #BiEPU4E 1,629,635 =
Later than 4 year and not later than 5 years PUFLA HERRBIBREF 621,740 -
Later than 5 years AFENUE 186,358 -
7,383,130 -
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. K&
Number
of shares RMB
BOEE AR®TT
Registered domestic and unlisted foreign  FEfHAERR & IE_ETHINERRARAS K2
share capital and H Shares: HA% :
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 202141 A1H ~ 2021412A4318 -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 202241 A1H K 2022912A831H 359,340,000 359,340,000
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. XA RBBARRE
COMPANY
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR¥TT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets REBEE
Plant and equipment NG 786,239 619,184
Intangible asset B EE 1,882,756 2,136,126
Interests in subsidiaries S ENG ok 3 447,655,260 460,047,260
Accounts receivable FEUER K 9,632,979 32,365,252
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,690,662 868,286
Financial asset at FVTPL RAVEAABRNEREE 4,796,810 5,000,000
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 9,876,978 11,322,317
476,321,684 512,358,425
Current assets RBEE
Accounts receivable FEUAR TR 55,105,342 197,849,083
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - e REA R
receivables HIiE 2,828,561 3,782,146
Amount due from a subsidiary FEW —K A B A FIFRIE 48,602,500 43,960,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekREZEEY 161,650,192 143,203,865
268,186,595 388,795,094
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H e AT RUE K ERT B A 22,392,734 37,299,930
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHE AR FIEA 278,318,927 363,894,927
Lease liabilities HEAR 824,577 909,936
Tax payables FERTTRIE 69,379 6,408,139
301,605,617 408,512,932
Net current liabilities REEEFE (33,419,022) (19,717,838)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBERRBARE 442,902,662 492,640,587
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 31. AABMBERRFTE)

COMPANY (Continued)
2022 2021
20225 20215
Note RMB RMB
B & AR AR¥TT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred revenue PEREW ZE - 4,501
Deposits from finance lease RERERERS R EES
customers and suppliers b 1,863,350 23,203,950
Lease liabilities HEAE 866,086 =
2,729,436 23,208,451
Net assets EEFE 440,173,226 469,432,136
EQUITY =
Share capital A% A 29 359,340,000 359,340,000
Reserves B 34 80,833,226 110,092,136
Total equity AR 440,173,226 469,432,136

On behalf of directors

RREFE

LI Peng Z=ff§ WENG Jianxing § 2
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. TEMBATA
Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: EAETENBRARFBNT !
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interests
Form of operation and FrEREZE D
business principal activity Issued and 2022 2021
Name structure MR T IR paid up capital
1 BRERTA FEED ERTRAZRE 2022 2021%F
Directly Held
EERE
MR ERBERERR AR Alimited liability ~ Provision of factoring Renminbi 100 100
Shan Shan Fullin Factoring Co., Ltd. company services in the PRC ("'RMB")
(“Fullin Factoring’) 50,000,000
PrERRRREARLR(ERAE]) BB ERERERERE  ARB(ARED
50,000,0007
IR BRI ERER AR Alimited liability ~ Supply of medical RMB 100 100
Beijing Shan Shan Medical Technology company equipment in the PRC 33,710,000
Development Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Medical ")
EREEBRMERERERAR((LRER]) ARAA ERBRRHEERE AR®
33,710,0007T
REERMEBEERAR Alimited liability  Provision of finance RMB 100 100
Tianjin Fullin Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. company leasing in the PRC 170,000,000
REERHMEEEERAR BRR7 ERBERHRERE AR®
170,000,0007C
KEEREHREERERAR Alimited liability ~ Investment activities and RMB 100 100
Zhuhai Fullin Yunlian Investment and company asset management 200,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. in the PRC
WEEREMREERARAR BRR7 EREZRBEHR ARE
AEEE 200,000,0007C
BRIFEAEEREARAT Alimited liability ~ Investment activities and RMB 51 -
Guangdong Yuanyu Cornerstone company asset management 510,000
Information Technology Co., Ltd. [*Yuanyu”) in the PRC
BERTTEAESMBARAR(TT)) BRRAE ERBEREEHR AR¥510,0007T
BERE
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

32. EEMBEAT )

Place of

incorporation/

Percentage of

ownership interests

Form of operation and FEREGRDH
business principal activity Issued and 2022 2021
Name structure HMAL B R paid up capital
=L [GE 32157 TEED ERTRAZRE 20225 20216
Indirectly Held
BEER
RIEEBERR AR A A Alimited liability ~ Telecommunication tower RMB 51
Shenzhen Huixinzhida Technology Co., Ltd. company infrastructure business -
in the PRC (note b)
RIEEHENBEARRT BRARAE EREBEHEAR ARE-T
RIEE (MzEb)
BREETREREBAR Alimited liability ~ Telecommunication tower RMB 51
Guangdong Yideng Engineering company infrastructure business -
Construction Co., Ltd. in the PRC (note c]
EREBTIRERARAA(NIHER]) BRRA EREBEEEER AR®
KX 7L
(MzEe)
THZREAREEABRAR Alimited liability ~ Telecommunication tower RMB 60
Jiangsu Anshi Commercial Energy company infrastructure business 13,200,000
Storage System Co., Ltd. ["Jiangsu Anshi’] in the PRC
(note a)
IHZHERRERAABRAF BRAR EREBEHEER AR%
(DTg R (fa) KR 13,200,0007C
BT AREREEARAT Alimited liability ~ Research and development RMB 30.6
Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy company and design in =
Management Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo Shanshan”) commercial energy (note d)
storage systems
in the PRC
ERULARRERERAR([BREYY]) BARAR Eh RS LR AR%
EEESD -7
(MeEd)
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued] 32. FEMBAR(#)

Establishment of a subsidiary
Note [a):

Pursuant to agreement, subject to the fulfilment of the
performance targets of Jiangsu Anshi for each of the years
ending 2022, 2023 and 2024 (the "Performance Targets’, each
a ‘Performance Target’] and the conditions precedent set out
below each of FY Yunlian, third parties A and B, being the other
shareholders of Jiangsu Anshi agreed to transfer certain portion of
their respective equity interests in Jiangsu Anshi to third party C in

the following manner:

(1) Upon fulfilment of the Performance Target of the net profit
after tax of not less than 0 for the year ended 31 December
2022, FY Yunlian, third parties A and B shall, in proportion
to their respective percentage of equity interest in Jiangsu
Anshi, collectively transfer in aggregate 10% of the equity
interest in the Jiangsu Anshi to third party C at a transfer
price of 1.2 times the corresponding amount of registered
capital (the “First Transfer’J;

(2] Upon fulfilment of the Performance Target of the growth
in net assets value of not less than 20% for the year
ending 31 December 2023 comparing the net assets value
of Jiangsu Anshi as at 31 December 2023 with that of 31
December 2022 [excluding the change in the net assets value
resulting from further capital contribution to Jiangsu Anshi
(if any]), FY Yunlian, third parties A and B shall, in proportion
to their respective percentage of equity interest in Jiangsu
Anshi, collectively transfer in aggregate 10% of the equity
interest in Jiangsu Anshi to third party C at a transfer price
of 1.3 times the corresponding amount of registered capital
(the "Second Transfer’); and
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Establishment of a subsidiary (Continued)

Note (a): [Continued)]

(3]

Upon fulfilment of the Performance Target of the growth
in net assets value of not less than 20% for the year
ending 31 December 2024 comparing the net assets value
of Jiangsu Anshi as at 31 December 2024 with that of 31
December 2023 (excluding the change in the net assets value
resulting from further capital contribution to Jiangsu Anshi
(if anyl), FY Yunlian, third parties A and B shall, in proportion
to their respective percentage of equity interest in Jiangsu
Anshi, collectively transfer in aggregate 9% of the equity
interest in the Jiangsu Anshi to third party C at a transfer
price of 1.4 times the corresponding amount of registered
capital (the “Third Transfer”).

Each of the First Transfer, the Second Transfer and the Third
Transfer is conditional upon the following conditions precedent: (a)

the Group having complied with the relevant requirements under

the GEM Listing Rules and all applicable laws and regulations

regarding the disposal of Jiangsu Anshi by the Group in respect

of each of the First Transfer, the Second Transfer and the Third

Transfer; and [b] the capital contribution during the Initial Stage to

be made by third party C having been fully paid.

32. FEMBAT (&)
BB R R ()
Hiztla) : ()

3

;—g'_

FOT 8k B ZE B E 2024 F 12 A31 B 1F
FREFEEEEBRTLR0%EZEH
1E(#R20244E 12 31 A B FE EEHER
2023F 12 31 BB FEEE L E1FH)
# - TEITHE—HE) T T EEHE
EFEELNEE(INE) - SREH - F
= HARBEZREREE BRI LIS
RIELLG] - ZIEEA M E R 2 8B 14158

B EIE  [FFE = CHEEA FLO%HT T #%
T RIE ([ = REBE ) -

REBE -~ FE—RBRERE=RBEIFH

RUTHRIESE © (2) A EE 5 E—KITE

z£=

REERFE = RBREGETERHAFEEL

BT A LA BIGEM_E T4 B R BT BB A 1R K
JERBIRERIHE ¢ RIbIE=TTCEHE L
BRAHE °
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued] 32. FEMBAR(#)

230

Establishment of a subsidiary (Continued)

Note (a): [Continued)]

The Performance Targets shall be determined in accordance
with the financial reporting standards and interpretations
for business enterprises issued by the China Accounting

Standards Committee of the China Ministry of Finance.

The Group has contributed RMB13,200,000 among the total
registered capital of RMB22,000,000 of Jiangsu Anshi. The
remaining RMB8,800,000 capital is contributed by three third
parties who classified as non-controlling interest to the Group,

which third party C have not fully paid yet.

Jiangsu Anshi has contribution to the Group’s revenue and
profit of RMB705,454 and RMB107,433 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 upon the

completion of the establishment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values
of the instrument obligating the Group to transfer shares of
Jiangsu Anshi at the states transfer prices as at 29 April 2022

and 31 December 2022 were considered as immaterial.

Note b: The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and it is still
not yet paid up as at 31 December 2022.

Note c: The registered capital is RMB10,010,000 and it is still
not yet paid up as at 31 December 2022.

Note d: The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and it

is still not yet paid up as at 31 December 2022. It
is considered as subsidiary as the Group has the
practical ability to unilaterally direct the relevant
activities of these companies despite the Group
owning less than 50% of the voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. FEERER

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022, the non- 2022 202112 A31 B REEZH IEF
controlling interest ("NCI”] was attributable to 49% of Yuanyu, & JEfEpE s ([ FEIE s ) BB R TTF
40% of Jiangsu Anshi and 69.4% of Ningbo Shan Shan. The 49% ~ TERZIF40% M EEEAZAZ69.4% © FEIE
NCI is recorded at its proportionate share of the subsidiaries’ R IEE DB AR A #BIFEEM L
identifiable net assets. BIARK ©
Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of BRETTE  IH LR NERCE A IR #E
Yuanyu, Jiangsu Anshi and Ningbo Shan Shan, before intra- H(EEAR A EHIEET) 2 B #E Rt an
group eliminations, is presented below: T 8

Yuanyu Jiangsu Anshi Ningbo Shan Shan Total

TF THZR 2RIV )

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
025 0215 025 0215 025 021F 025 021F
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET AR ARER ARMRZ ARM: ARER AR%z  AREx

Revenue ey 1,813,719 - 11,380,338 - 370,644 - 13,564,701 -
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(E8)/ &7 (110,966) - 11,434 - [4,398,796) - (4,498,328) -
Total comprehensive income ~ FREARALE

for the year (110,966) - 1,434 - [4,398,796) - [4,498,328) -
(Loss)/profit and total PEEFERERD

comprehensive (BR)/EHR2AE

income allocated to NCI WA (54,373) = 4,573 - (3,052,764) - (3,102,564) -
Cash flows generated from BERBERENE

operating activities 5,268,622 - (16,269,827) - (27,760,644) - (38,761,849) -
Cash flows used in investing REZEMA

activities Bene (5,944,319) - [1,661,607) - (919,765) - (8,525,691) -
Net cash outflows FRETH (675,697) - (17,931,434) - (28,680,409) - (47,287,540) -
As at 31 December 28318

Current assets HHAE 3,899,372 - 18,214,830 - 4928764 - 27,042,966 -
Non-current assets FRBEE 11,969,917 - 5,741,607 - 15,773,963 - 33,485,487 =
Current liabilities ek (13,910,320) - [1,945,003) - (17,123,839) - (32,979,162) -
Non Current liabilities EiE)I=LH (1,283,274 = - - - - [1,283,274) -
Net assets BEHE 675,695 - 22,011,434 - 3,578,888 - 26,266,017 -
Accumulated non-controlling 5T 3EIERER

interest 331,091 - 8,804,574 - 2,483,748 - 11,619,413 -
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

34. RESERVES

The nature and purposes of reserves within equity are as

follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of RMB33,710,000 was initially
recognised in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity for the carrying amount of share capital of
Beijing Medical, a subsidiary of the Group pursuant to the
business combination under common control. On 23 April
2014, Beijing Medical was acquired by the Company for a
consideration of RMB32,127,965, which the same amount
was debited to the merger reserve. The merger reserve
as at 31 December 2022 is representing the residual

amount of them.
Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company represents the
difference of the shares issued at premium over par

value, net of share issue expenses.
Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Articles of Association of the company
incorporated in the PRC now comprising the Group, i.e.
the PRC Operational Entity, it is required to appropriate
10% of the annual net profits of the PRC Operational
Entity, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the
statutory reserve fund before distributing any net profit.
When the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches
50% of the registered capital of the PRC Operational
Entity, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be used to
offset prior years’ losses, if any, and may be capitalised
as capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than

25% of registered capital.

34, f#fE

REARFROEE BT

(a)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

34. RESERVES (Continued 34. fEiE(#E)
The Group REE
Details of the movements on the Group's reserves for the AREBEZ2022F N 2021F12 831 B ILFE
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are presented in the HENESFEEVNNGEERESERR -

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Company /N
Capital Statutory Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EXfFE EERE REEH st
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR®T AR¥TRT AR¥TT AR®R
As at 1 January 2021 2021561 A18 31,096,839 10,419,176 29,377,197 70,893,212
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREF R 2HEHRA
income for the year ks - - 40,276,944 40,276,944
Appropriation to statutory BNETE A
reserve - 4,328,608 (4,328,608] -
Dividends paid BERIRE = = (1,078,020) (1,078,020)

As at 31 December 2021 and RH2021%F12831B K

1 January 2022 20221818 31,096,839 14,747,784 64,247,513 110,092,136
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREEREEKA

income for the year ke - - (24,589,931) (24,589,931)
Dividends paid (Note 11) ERRE ) - - (4,668,979 (4,668,979
At 31 December 2022 #2022%F12A31H 31,096,839 14,747,784 34,988,603 80,833,226
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BHARS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial MR BHmREMILDFIIREEI - KE
statements, the Group has the following significant related BAETIERBEH IS -

party transactions.

(a] During the year, the Group entered into the following (a) RARFE  NEBEFHFETZIATR
transactions with related parties: 5

Transaction amount

REEH
Related 2022 2021
party Type of 20225 20214
Name relationship transaction RMB RMB
=L AR 5 BA1R B F kil AR AR¥RT
Longding Huayuan Common shareholder Income from 3,431,500 5,736,932
(note i) sales-leaseback
transaction
RERER EimA R (LD EERBEERZZHEA
Shanghai Kuajie Common shareholder Factoring income - 286,164
(note ii)
EERE EBAR R (P =L REHA
Shanghai KYMS Common shareholder Factoring income - 229,442
(note iii)
taerZEn AR R (P =il RIZUA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. BHARB (&)
(a)  During the year, the Group entered into the following (a) MAFE  RAEEEFBHIZATR
transactions with related parties: (Continued) 2 (&)
Notes: Kist -
(i) Longding Huayuan is a wholly-owned subsidiary of li) BELEE B AR NG| BERE 7 — K
Dayuan Tiandi, one of the substantial shareholder of R ENB A o

the Company.

(i} Shanghai Kuaijie is a wholly-owned subsidiary of lii]  _EFIREE AL RS K2 & N
Beijing Kuaiyi Tiandi, which is owned as to 49% BAA iRk RG]
by Dayuan Tiandi which is one of the substantial FERRZ —ARIEAMEFLINHE
shareholders of the Company. In April 2021, Beijing 25 0 R20214E4 7 + HE A 35 FHb
Dayuan Tiandi has sold all the 49% shares in Beijing B Sk SR B9 49% R 15 2 5
Kualyi Tiandi to a third party and therefore, Shanghai HETF—FE=T  Ft FE1HRE
Kuajie is no longer a related party as at 31 December 2021412831 HE TF 5 FH B
2021. Fo

(iii} ~ Shanghai KYMS was a joint venture partner of Beijing liii] R EE B AL FIRE X EES
Kualyi Tiandi, which is owned as to 49% by Dayuan BB . AL R B KA F]
Tiandi which was one of the substantial shareholders FEREZ —KBRIEELI%E
of the Company. In April 2021, Beijing Dayuan Tiandi 25 o 202144 7 » 4E XA 35 FHh
sold all the 49% shares in Beijing Kuaiyi Tiandi to a B L Ik B R H B 49% R 17 2 28
third party, and therefore Shanghai KYMS was no HEF—FZ5=7  F FE*rES
longer a related party as at 31 December 2021. It ZER2021F12H31HETHAE
become an associate since 16 August 2022 and no BtF o BHE2022F8 516 AR5
related party transaction incurred during the year. 4 A\ 5 R FALE A G 4% B A B B

X5
(b)  Members of key management comprise only of the (b) FEEREKEEDEES  HEHH
directors whose emoluments are set out in note 13. AHIEE13 ©
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36. NOTE SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 36. IRRERERMET
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: RELZBELENBESEER
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
and other liabilities
borrowings (Note 29)
TR HESE
RITREMER (HtaE29)
RMB RMB
AR® T AR¥RT
At 1 January 2021 720211518 321,639,810 4,706,206
Changes from cash flows: ReEneR
Repayment of bank loans ERIRITER (321,639,810) =
Payment of lease liabilities XAHEAE - (1,030,163
(321,639,810) (1,030,163)
Other changes: Hih s -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENEMX - 73,494
Termination of lease RIEHE - (2,729,454
= (2,655,960)
At 31 December 2021 202112 H318 - 1,020,083
Changes from cash flows: ReREF
Payment of lease liabilities XNHEAE - (3,595,828
Other changes: Hh &g
Acquisition of business WEE 75 = 4,125,248
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMERX = 347,331
Additions NE = 5,145,168
Modification of lease - extending the A E - ERAEH
lease term - 1,734,066
- 11,351,813
At 31 December 2022 20225612 H318 - 8,776,068
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

37. COMMITMENTS 37. AE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEZEIE
2022 2021
20225 20215
RMB RMB
AR® T AR¥ T
Commitments for the acquisition of IWEEIEE B MR AE
property, plant and equipment: 632,670 -
Contracted for but not yet incurred: EETAVERARELE ¢
- Acquisition of an associate — I BB = A A - 34,465,139
- Investment in a fund (note 16(b)) —REEZ(ME16(0b) 15,000,000 24,000,000
15,632,670 58,465,139
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. HAKE
At at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant 7202212 A318 - AEEW EEME RS
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil). ARBE(2021412A318 : &) -
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39.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & E CEI) XKD R A 7

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group's capital management objectives are:

(] to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern; and
[i]  to provide an adequate return to equity holders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions. The
Directors also strive to optimise the Groups’s overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes of the Group’'s capital management during the

reporting period.

The Group sets the amount of equity in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The equity-to-overall financing ratios at

the end of reporting period were as follows:

39. EXREE

AEENEAEEBRER

] MERASEREQENES R

(i) RS ARG EMER -

REBEEE N ERles REEEEARRE
MR BRERSEFKTARESRARSHE
A B R E T E S AR P SR A1 25 ] AR B
ZERFFE - WRBEBESRNE(CHE
AEBIELHAR - EFTEBI MBS
TR KB ARENBREBEARRE - 1
BEHRE SRS AKEEATERR K
RYEFIELES -

AREBEZIEEBERERBLIIRERAN
TR RMEMERNBRAEBERE L X
LI

2022 2021

2022 20215

RMB RMB

AR¥T AR¥T

Total equity e 450,685,305 475,586,973
Equity-to-overall financing ratio PRSI B BRE X N/A N/A
TEA ANiiE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remained unchanged throughout the Reporting Period.

AEBEEEHEEAUERAEEAERAE
FERQE  RSEBRERREAN R
RE RO LI - AEE OB ERBENE
(B3R & AR RIS A& -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. RERE/NEeREERSREARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE
The following table shows the carrying amount of financial TRINIRHFLNFTRAENEMEENRARE
assets and liabilities as defined in note 4(h): RBREE :
2022 2021
2022%F 20215
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL: RAFEFABRBHNEMEE :
- Preference shares of an unlisted — I ETIREMEER
investment 4,796,810 5,000,000
- Interests in funds —RNES AR 43,909,000 10,000,000
Financial asset at FVTOCI BRATEFAEMMZEBRALN
TREE
Equity investment RAIEE - 18,003,936
Financial assets measured at REBHERATENERERE
amortised cost:
Accounts receivable FEUBREZX 156,718,961 345,404,447
Other receivables and deposits HEf R IaRIES 8,901,867 3,145,687
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 182,949,195 148,349,236
397,275,833 529,903,306
Financial liabilities EEMeE
Financial liabilities measured at LEHRATEN S RAIE
amortised cost:
Trade and other payables B 5 NE M ENFIE 18,693,222 3,842,093
Deposits from finance lease REMEHERS KRR
customers and suppliers e 21,691,959 58,902,348
Lease liabilities HEEE 8,776,068 1,020,083
49,161,249 63,764,524
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40.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
accounts receivable, deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables, deposits from finance

lease customers and suppliers and lease liabilities.

Due to their short-term nature, their carrying values of cash
and bank balances, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, deposits from finance lease customers and

suppliers and lease liabilities approximate their fair values.

The fair value of finance lease receivables, factoring
receivables and receivables from sale-leaseback transactions
has been determined using discounted cash flow models and
is classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Significant
inputs include the discount rate used to reflect the credit risks

of the borrowers or the Company.

40. REREINERMEERSHERE

ME#)
FRAFEFENEHTA

FEAFEFENEGRTABEBUIEN
e hEMRKREA ReRRTHER &
SNEMEMNFE  BRBERERPRH
e RAERE -

HREEHNE  RERRITES U
KEAMBWGKIE - EHREMRNTIA - &
WREHEEP EREHREAREERARE
MRRE ERKRE N FERS °

BMEHEERUFIR - RIZEUGRIA - EERHE
B3 5 EWFIA 2 A FEDRBUBRBRRSR
BAMEEARDBERATFHEEBRE=E -
EXBAZEBEARNRBARRIERARG
EREBRHREIR K -
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40.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are

determined with reference to quoted market prices.

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
used in determining the fair value measurement of level 2
and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the relationship

between key observable inputs and fair value are set out below.

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices] or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

40.

RERSINEHEEREHMER
BMZEm)

BRAVEFENESHTER

I ABREGR R LR ERE =R BIER
mEEBEZEREERBBZATEDNZE
MISREEE

BEF _ERF-EcRTAZAVEFE
AT AR A ERMEEA TR BRE AR
BEANBAABRG ABBREQFEZ BN
BRREI T »

TRBHAAFEAENSRIARATE
BRADI -

s~ B

FE: HE-BEXBENEEDS

R 2 B8 (CREHAE)

F_E: BEXABZER(BAERE
)M (A ERSH)TE
SRR ARE(RE-—EREREZ
WEASLN) R

ZE: UFRERABEMSHENE
EXREHABER(TASRR
AHIR)

it
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. ZRERE/NEeREERSHEARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued) BEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value BATLEFENERTEE)
[Continued]
2022
2022%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E EE B=E Hst
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETT ARET ARETT AR¥RT

Financial asset at FVTPL RATEF ANIERFHER

- Preference shares of an —JELMIREMELR

unlisted investment - - 4,796,810 4,796,810
- Interests in Zhuhai Huihe — —RINEES Rz - - 13,944,000 13,944,000
- Interests in Beijing — R RIEER R

Shuncheng - - 29,965,000 29,965,000

- - 48,705,810 48,705,810
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. RERE/NEeREERSREARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued) BEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value BATLEIFENERTE(E)
(Continued]
2021
20215
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E B FE=E st
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETT ARETT AR AR¥T

Financial asset at FVTPL RATEF ANIERFA SR

BE
- Preference shares of an — I LTMRENELR
unlisted investment - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
- Interests in Zhuhai Huihe — —RAIREES B - - 6,000,000 6,000,000
- Interests in Beijing — R RIEER R
Shuncheng - - 4,000,000 4,000,000
Financial assets at FVTOCI  RAFEFTAE M2 ER
AR EREE
- Listed ordinary shares —REBRSAMEM
in Shanghai KYMS T = = 18,003,936 18,003,936
- - 33,003,936 33,003,936
There were no transfers between levels during the year. 1) JE AR Fel T A R o
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value rEEETERMEENSREBRZATAE
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives R TREMEEEEZSeREENT
information about how the fair values of these financial assets B2 AL ERA 2 E Rl R A
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and BIZER -

inputs used).
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. ZRERE/NEeREERSHEARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued) BE®)
Financial instruments measured at fair value BATLEFENERTEE)
[Continued)
Fair value as at
A¥E Relationship of
plivys 20 Significant unobservable
W08 01  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques unobservable input o fair value Sensitvity of fair value to
Financial assets NOTES RMB RMB hierarchy  and key inputs inputs] TUEZE g the input(s]
tHEE Wi ARER  ARMn ATEER GERGREEBALE EXTUBEEAZE AVENER DMEHRAERNHRE
Financial asset at FVTPL

BATET B SHEE
- Preference shares of an 1o 4796810 5000000 Leveld  Usingthe optionpricingmodel ~ Marketabilty discount:  The higher marketabilty 5% increasef{decreasel in marketabilty
unlisted investment based on assumptions thatare ~ 158%(2021:198%)  discount, the lowerthe -~ would resultn (decreasel/increase n
supported by the transactionof  Minority discount: value fair value of approximately RMB43,000
preferred stocks inthe investee ~ 245% (2021: 265%  The higher minority discount,  (2021: RMBAb,000)
company the lower the fair value 5% increasef{decrease in Minority
discount would result in (decrease)/

increase in fair value of approximately
RMB74,000 (2021: RMBTS.000]

FErRanER £ FRENGRRALABARRS TAREMNE: nen WAREMTEER TR/ (5 SR
TR EETER (00E:158%)  AFEEE TE(RD)/Emis ARR 0w

DaRERE: u  DakEREEE (021 - AREL600070)
(0 5%)  DTEHE DEUREREEN/ (5B EHD

FA(5D)/ B A R0
(001% : ARET9 0007)
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. IREREsMNEeRESERSRAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

ME#)
BAVEFENESHTRE)

(Continued)
Fair value as at
IE Relationship of
022 2001 Significant unobservable
W0E NE Fairvalue  Valuation techniques unobservable input to fair value Sensitivity of fair value to
Financial assets NOTES RMB RMB hierarchy  and keyinputs inputls) TIEZE ) 8L the inputls)
SHEE Wi ARMn  AR¥R ATEER fEAWRERBARE EXTTRERANE ATENBE AEHBARENSRE
-Interestsin ZhuhaiHuhe 16 13944000 6000000 Level3  Based ontheinvestes's financiel  Marketabilitydiscount:  The higher marketabilty 5% increase/{decrease in marketabily
performance using discounted ~ 15.8% (2021 198%)  discount, the lowerthefair ~ would resultin decreasel/increase
cash flow method Minoriy discount: value infair value of approximately
245% (2001 265%)  The higher minoritydiscount, ~ RMB1,100,000 (2021: RMB24,000)
Discount rate: the lower the fair value 8% ncrease/[decrease) in Minorty
18%(2021:12%)  The higher discount ate, discount would result n [decreasel/
the lower the fair value increase in fairvalue of approximately
RMB157,000 (2021 RMB42,000)
% increase/[decrease] n discount rate
would resultin (decreaselfincrease n
fair value of approximately RMB88 000
and RMB100,000 respectively (2021:
(decreasefincrease RMB142,000 and
RMB162,000]
-NREERES P ARBRENDMRREE.  WRREMEE: e mRREMSRES TmRatEn,/ () EH AT
RRBRRLIEY (ot :108%)  ATEHE B(H2)/EmBARE 000007
DERERE U DERERTES (101 - \RM20007C)
(%-um A JaRERREN/ (R))5HEEHA

BRE (3%

(2001 12%)

PHE(RD) /AR 157 0007
(001 - ARHL20007)
BREEN/ (5D UEERATES
SICHD) /£ ARBB 0007 A
REI000007E (20015 : (0)/%10
NRE1 00T RARE520007)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. ZRERE/NEeREERSHEARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued) BE®)
Financial instruments measured at fair value BATLEFENERTEE)
(Continued)
Fair value as at
IE Relationship of
022 2001 Significant unobservable
W0E 01E Fairvalue  Valuation techniques unobservable input to fair value Sensitivity of fair value to
Financial assets NOTES RMB RMB hierarchy  and keyinputs inputls) TIEZE ) 8L the inputls)
SHEE Wi ARMn  AR¥R ATEER fEAWRERBAZE EXTTRERANE ATENBE AEHBARENSEE
- Interests in Bejing 16 29965000 4000000 Leveld  Basedonthe investee's Financial  Marketabiltydiscount:  The higher marketabilty B%increase/[decrease] in marketabilty
Shuncheng performance using discounted ~ 10.8%(2021: 15.8%]  discount, the lower the fair ~ would result n (decreasel fncrease n
cash flow method Minority discount: Value fair value of approximately RMB34,000
245%(2021:265%)  The higher minoritydiscount, ~[2021: RMB12000]
Discount rate: the lower the fair value 8% increase/[decrease) in Minorty
13%(2021:12%)  The higher discount ate, discount would result n [decreasel/
the lower the fair value increase in fair value of approximately
RMBS3,000 (2021: RMB20,000]
% increase/[decrease] n discount rate
would resultin (decreaselfincrease n
fair value of approximately RMB130,000
and RMB169,000 respectively (2021:
(decrease]/increase RMB3,000 and
RMB33.000)
-RnIERGER £ ARBRENMRHEE KR WRREMEE e mRREMSRES AR,/ (5 )ShER
RRALRER (0m%:1og%)  ATEEE TE(D)/ B ARR007T
DERERE: U5 JBRERRES (20215 - ARE20007)
(0 us%)  ATEHE JURERREN, (5))5hAEHD
BRE 130 HREHR  ATEEE () /ENARBE.00T

(01 : 12%) (021 - ARE2D000070)
BREEN/ (R) W E R AT ES
BICHD) /i AR 150 000 R
ARBI000T(001%E : ()%
MARER 0007 RARE 0007T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. RERE/NEeREERSREARE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued) BE )
Financial instruments measured at fair value BATLEIFENERTE(E)
(Continued)
Fair value as at
IE Relationship of
022 202 Significant unobservable
W0E 1E Fairvalue  Valuation techniques unobservable input to fair value Sensitivity of fair value to
Financal assets NOTES RMB RMB hierarchy  and keyinputs inputls) TIEZE ) HEH the inputls)
SHEE Wi ARER  ARMn OVEER GERGREERANE EXTUEEEARE LVENER DAEHEAENGRE

Financial assets at FVTOCI

BOTEEERA RN

Bk ERAR

- Listed ordinarysharesin -~~~ 17 - 18003936 Leweld  Basedontheinvestee'sfinancial  Marketabilty discount:  The higher marketabiliy % increase/{decreaselin marketabilty

Shanghai KYMS performance and the multiples of il (2021: 30%) discount, the lower the fair - would result in[decreaselfincrease in
comparable companies and using value fairvalue of approximately il [2021:
market aporoach RMB336,000)

- LARAAEN LTRER #E  ANBRELAMEREERTY TARRMRE-E  mARRERRES BB/ (R SRR AT
AR KR (0015 : 30%) APERE (D) 2R (00 : ARY

30007)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and fair value risk.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies and practices described below.
(a) Creditrisk

As at the end of reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which may cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in

the consolidated statements of financial position.

Finance lease receivable, receivable from sale
and leaseback transaction, trade receivables and
contract asset

The Group's concentration of credit risk on the account
receivables and contract asset as at 31 December
2022 included five major counterparties accounting for
92% (2021: 26%) and 100% (2021: nil) of the accounts
receivable and contract asset respectively. The Group
has closely monitored the recoverability of the advances
to these counterparties, ensured adequate collateral is
received from these counterparties and taken effective
measures to ensure timely collection of outstanding

balances.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to contract
asset and accounts receivable, credit limits and credit
terms granted to customers are approved by delegated
officers and follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management of the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
at the end of reporting period to ensure that adequate

impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

248 FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. BEgEMECEIND D ER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YN

AR WIS ML

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Receivables from operating leases

Given the nature of the Group's business, it has
concentration risk for the receivables due from
two customers which are subsidiaries of large
telecommunication operators accounting for 100% (2021:
nil) of the Group's total receivables from operating leases
at 31 December 2022.

To mitigate the risk, the Group timely monitors its
receivables balances and all bills should be paid in
advance as agreed with customers. Due to the 3A or
above credit rating and business reputation, the credit
risks of theses customers are assessed as low. The
Group uses probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default to measure the credit risk from the

customers.
Cash and cash equivalents

Most of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held
in major reputable financial institutions in the PRC, which

management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of geographic
risk on revenue which is generated mostly from
customers located in the PRC. The Group has closely
monitor the business performance of these customers
in the PRC and will considered diversifying its customer

base as appropriate.

41. BIERRERE#)

(a)

EEREEE)
KEHERWRIR

ENAEEMEBMEL - 7R2022912
A318 - ARERREERE(BAEE
EEERNMBLAR) MAHBEAEE
48 H & FE IR B ZE A9 100% (2021
FE) WERRMEREPRIBRFL
SRR -

ARFEERRR - RSB N By B E R
HHRE - B RBERRETPNME
AT - ARZEFEFPNERERS
SASKLAE - BREERY - FUHRE
AR S SERR - NEBEEREQ
BE - 2HRBREENERREERP
MiEERRE o

RERREZEY

AEENABO RS KRS EBYFR
EERERRAARSERERNT
TENBT RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BIRERER®)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =EERKEE)
Lessees of the Group from finance lease and sale- KEMEHERERHALRRZSHHNAER
leaseback transactions are from different industries as AR AR B N RTITE -
follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
Present value of minimum RMB % RMB %
lease payment BREHENHERE ARET % ARET %
Medical BE 27,602,207 26 44,693,757 17
Transportation B 9,348,708 9 17,128,473 7
Electronics Bf 10,107,244 10 28,424,478 11
Fast-moving consumer PRRHE M
goods 30,549,871 29 86,070,965 33
Alternative energy AIEREER 2,842,866 3 3,521,128 1
Machining et T 2,312,654 2 29,884,815 11
Others Hith 23,021,233 22 50,846,146 20
105,784,783 100 260,569,712 100

Less: Provision for finance % : &SRR

lease receivables FERER
and receivables MER 52
E=d
from sale-leaseback FEMR
transaction 4 (41,046,461) (27,166,873)
64,738,322 233,402,839
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BIBRRER#)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERBRE)

Factoring receivables of the Group are from different

industries as follows:

A BRI R E TR A
Eg

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB % RMB %
ARETT % ARETT %
Manufacturing gl 17,088,802 15 14,785,160 13
Medical BE 24,191,598 21 29,200,179 26
Real estate leasing MEHE 13,841,742 12 9,938,965 9
Wholesale and retails HEREE 61,748,658 53 60,081,491 52
116,870,800 100 114,005,795 100
Less: Provision for B RIB R EE
factoring receivables BiE (30,915,587) (11,144,439)
85,955,213 102,861,356

As the customers of the Group are widely dispersed and
are engaged in different industries, and the Group has
closely monitored the market trend of these industries in
the PRC and the business performance of its customers
to ensure the timely collection of the account receivable,
there is no significant credit risk concentration within the

Group.

ERAKENEFOMERZ - BREED
RTT%  AEBCEERZSFTEAR
PEINTSEE MARPHEBRA
ARER K i 1 0 e L AR R - RSB AL
BEEMEXNEERBRSET °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BBEBRER®)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

In accordance with the Guideline for Loan Credit Risk
Classification issued by the CBRC, the Group has
established a loan credit risk classification system
and performs credit risk management based on loan
classification in one of five categories. The Group
classifies loans into the following five categories: normal,

special-mention, substandard, doubtful and loss, of

(a)

FERRE)

REPERESEMNCERRR DR
#aD) - AEECHEEREERR —
ERRNDERBRIETEERRE
2o AEEKEREI D RATHE : IE
w B R AIRERIRR  Hdx
A AREBREERRESTRE

Eon
A °

which substandard, doubtful and loss loans are regarded

as non-performing loans.

The five categories of loan classification into which the AREBRESELEDBEZEWER A
Group classifies its accounts receivable are set out BER BT
below:

Finance lease

receivables and Other financial
Description trade receivables assets
MEHERKIIER
i pu g 5 EWAR HtteMEE
Normal Borrowers can honour the terms of their Lifetime ECL - not 12 month ECL
loans. There is no reason to doubt their credit impaired
ability to repay principal and interest in full
on a timely basis.
E% ERABABITREERGR - MBhER FRABHEEE 12@AEREEEHRE
REIRERBERA T KA BHRES - B-EEERE
Special-mention  Borrowers are able to service their loans Lifetime ECL - not  Lifetime ECL - not
currently, although repayment may be credit impaired credit impaired
adversely affected by specific factors.
bz BEERABRBRNEEEN  BFE— FERAEHGEEES FRABHEEES
LATRE B REETFRENEE - B-EEERE B-EEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BBEBREE®)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERBE)
Contract asset,
finance lease

receivables and Other financial

Description trade receivables assets
BHNEE REHE
W RER E 5 EW

i pu AR HitEmEE

Substandard Borrowers’ ability to service their loans is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in question and they cannot rely entirely credit impaired credit impaired
on normal operating revenues to repay
principal and interest. Losses may ensue
even when collaterals or guarantees are
invoked.

N ERARERENEERE - T2REHE FRAEHEEES FRABHEES
FTERWABLIEREEENRAS B B-EERE B {EERE
MITHR - hAEgER—EE/X -

Doubtful Borrowers cannot repay principal and Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
interest in full and significant losses will credit impaired credit impaired
need to be recognised even when
collaterals or guarantees are invoked.

AJ &R ERABERREEERARES - BMEFAME FRAEREEE FRAEREEES
RRIHTER - BEEBERBABL - B-EERE B—(EERE

Loss Only a small portion or none of the principal Amount is Amount is
and interest can be recovered after taking written off written off
all possible measures and exhausting all
legal remedies.

S FEERERFAA Al BEEVFE M S — VDM BEERIE SRR TR

S
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)]

The Group measures loss allowances for contract asset,
finance lease receivables and trade receivables based
on lifetime ECLs. For factoring receivables, the Group
assessed the loss allowance for receivables that are not
credit-impaired collectively based on 12 month expected
credit loss and lifetime ECL and assessed receivables
that are credit-impaired based on lifetime expected
credit loss. For receivables from sale-leaseback
transaction, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12 month expected credit loss. For receivables
from operating lease, the group measures the loss

allowance equal to 12 month expected credit loss.

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECL
according to forward-looking information and
used appropriate models and a large number of
assumptions in its expected measurement of credit
losses. These models and assumptions relate to the
future macroeconomic conditions and borrower’s
creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default by
customers and the corresponding losses]. The Group
has adopted judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to the
requirements of accounting standards such as criteria
for judging significant increases in credit risk, definition
of credit-impaired financial asset, parameters for

measuring ECL and forward-looking information.

41. BIERRERE#)

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BBEBREE®)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERRE)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for finance
lease receivables, receivables from sale-leasback
transactions, factoring receivables, trade receivables,
contract asset and receivables from operating leases as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

TRIBHARRE N 20224 K 2021412
AEARAmMEHEREGIR &R
HER 5 EKFHIR - (RIZEUGRIR - &
HRWIER - AEERREHERK
FEZEERRMEHEEERER -

Special
Normal Mention  Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
% B R i Bx b
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
31 December 2022 2022512f
318
Finance lease receivables ~ BEHEENTER
and trade receivablesand B ZEWRZR
contract asset EHEE
Lifetime ECL - Simplified ~ ERABHEEEE
approach (973
Expected loss rate BHEER 6.41% 14.29% 33.61% 61.40% -
Provision g 752,132 550,350 529,539 14,880,890 - 1671291
Collectively assessed gross ~ HRIFHEREWE
receivables 11,729,961 3,850,620 1,575,569 24,236,682 - 41,392,832
Receivables from sale- EAEERZEYFE
leaseback transaction
12 month ECL 1208FRHEEERE
Expected loss rate BHEER 1.78% = - - .
Provision bl 797,910 - - - - 797,910
Collectively assessed gross ~ HRIFHAREWE
receivables 44,923,742 - - - - 44,923,742
Lifetime ECL-not credit ERABHEEEE—
impaired BEEHE
Average expected loss rate  TIIBEEER - 0.85% - - -
Provision Bis - 10,213 - - - 10,213
Individually assessed gross  {ERIFHEAE YR
amount - 1,203,771 - - - 1,203,771
Lifetime ECL-credit impaired £RABHEEHE—
EERE
Average expected loss rate  THIBEEER - - - 86.35% -
Provision g - - - 26,428,559 - 26,428,559
Individually assessed gross  {ERIFHEEHIR
amount - - - 30,607,730 - 30,607,730
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BIRERER®)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERKE)
Special
Normal Mention  Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
i) BE s Ik Bx fit
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR%R AR%R AR%R AR%R AR%R ARBT

31 December 2022

Factoring receivables

12 month ECL

Expected loss rate

Provision

Collectively assessed gross
receivables

Lifetime ECL-not credit
impaired

Average expected loss rate

Provision

Individually assessed gross
amount

Lifetime ECL-credit impaired

Average expected loss rate

Provision

Individually assessed gross
amount

Receivables from operating
leases

12 month ECL

Expected loss rate

Provision

Collectively assessed gross
receivables

20225128

318

REEUTE
1287 BRIEBR
BABRE

]
AFFHERENHR

FRABHEERR—
BEERE

FERAEER

B

fERIFHE @SR

FRABHEERA—
FEHE

B

BRI 0R

SERERUE

12EFEREERER
BHERE

B

KR RERE

2.20%
1,819,690

82,786,420

1.29%
14,991

1,162,611

1,819,690

82,786,420

29,095,897

34,084,380

29,093

1,185,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BIRERER®)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERRE)
Special
Normal Mention  Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
i) ):3 R Ik Bx o
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR%R AR%R AR%R AR%R ARBR ARBT

31 December 2021 2021%12A31A
Finance lease receivables ~ BMEHEEKTERES
and trade receivables FEWURR
Lifetime ECL - Simplified ~ FRABHEEFE—H
approach 1tk
Expected loss rate BHEEX 5.25% 10.61% 12.78% 37.12% -
Provision ] 2,460,310 184,594 9,463 11,986,606 - 14640973
Collectively assessed gross RRFHERERFR
receivables 46,866,200 1,760,137 74036 32288567 - 80968938

Receivables from sale- EREERZENTE

leaseback transaction

12 month ECL 1287 BRI BB R

Expected loss rate BHEEE 1.78% - - - -

Provision & 2,693,073 - - - - 2693073
Collectively assessed gross AFHERENHR

receivables 149,845,698 - - - - 149,845,698

Lifetime ECL - not credit ~ FRABHEEHA—HE

impaired FRAE
Expected loss rate BEERX = 16.55% - = =
Provision Riff - 102,059 g - - 102,059
Collectively assessed gross AR RENFR

receivables - 2,428,880 - - - 2,428,880

Lifetime ECL - creditimpaired FRABMEABR 1

B
Expected loss rate BABRE = = = 27.02% =
Provision &ff - - - 100135 - 100135
Collectively assessed gross AR SRR
receivables = = - 37,047,035 - 37,047,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BERBEEE)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERE)
Special
Normal Mention  Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
E% B Rk G Bx @t
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR%T ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Factoring receivables REEUTE
12 month ECL 12EFEREEBE
Expected loss rate BHEEE 1.73% - = = -
Provision Rk 1,290,152 - - - - 129012
Collectively assessed gross R ERAR
receivables 74,516,868 - - - - 74,516,868
Lifetime ECL - not credit FRARHEEB A
impaired FERE
Expected loss rate BHBEER . 4£.39% _ B B
Provision Bt - 274,827 - - - 274,827
Collectively assessed gross KR RERE
receivables - 6,253,892 - - - 6,253,892
Lifetime ECL - creditimpaired FRABREBER—1
Bl
Expected loss rate BRERE = = = 28.82% =
Provision Riff 2 : - 95740 - 9579460
Individually assessed gross fERIFHE B3R
amount - - - 3323503 - 3323503

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO

. LTD. 2 RBERECRIDBEMO AR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AR WIS ML

For the year ended 31 December 2022 EZ2022F 12431 H1FF/Z

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a]

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)]

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term. The management of the Company
is satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the

foreseeable future in the normal course of business.

41. BIERRERE#)

(a)

(b)

=ERRE)

BHEEXENBEIFNERER
REE o AT HERTEAE - URIREW
SF S BB EEALENR - BN
AR 5= [ 4 B Me SRR T8 HARR e P O A

MRNBERZFERER -
RBE TR

AEENBRREETHERERDESR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z22022F 12531 H IF F/Z

260

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 41.

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

BiEERERE &)
(b) RBELRAKE)

The following table details the remaining contractual TRIFVWNAEBRAARSHBENREH
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's ROFIHRELEHBR - ZRENS/MEE
and Company’s financial liabilities. The table has been HARALIRIBE S mE R ANEF LA T A LA
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of NRNRFEEPGRER - ZRBEENE LR
financial liabilities and the earliest date on which Group SIRENRE
and the Company can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted
amount cashflow  Ondemand Within1year  1to2years Over2years
BEHAKT
REE  RERE RER 15/ 122 B2
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR®T AR®T AR®T AR®T AR®T AR®T
At 31 December 2022 12022127311
Trade and other payables BB REMERNFIE 23,077,504 23,077,506 23,077,504 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 8,776,068 9,916,027 - 3,065,875 2,941,502 3,878,650
Deposits from finance lease  REMEREEF R
custorners and suppliers HERHEE 21,691,959 21,691,959 - 19,828,609 1,547,500 315,850
Total liabilities BELR 53,545,531 54,685,490 23,077,504 22,894,484 4,489,002 4,194,500
At 31 December 2021 120215124318
Trade and other payables B HREMERNFE 3842093 3842093 3,842,093 = = <
Lease liabilities BERE 1,020,083 1,063,813 - 1,024,210 19,603 -
Deposits from finance lease  RERERERF &
customers and suppliers  {LERERES 58902348 58,902,348 - 34078397 24823951 -
Total liabilities BR4E 63,764,524 63,788,254 3842,093 35102607 24,843,554 -
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value on future cash flows of financial instruments which
arise from changes in interest rates. Floating interest
rate instruments will result in the Group facing the risk
of changes in market interest rate, and fixed interest rate
instruments will result in the Group fair value interest

rate risk.

Other than cash and cash equivalents (note 24), accounts
receivable [note 20) and lease liabilities (note 29), the
Group does not have any other significant interest-
bearing financial assets and liabilities. Any change in the
interest rate promulgated by banks from time to time is

not considered to have significant impact to the Group.

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the
floating rate cash and cash equivalent. Cash and cash
equivalent expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. Lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value

interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase the Group's loss
for the year (through the impact on the Group's cash and
cash equivalents which are subject to floating interest
rate] by approximately RMB914,746 (2021:RMB741,746).
For a general decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the Group's loss for
the year. No impact would be on other components of
consolidated equity in response to the general increase/

decrease in interest rates.

41. BIERRERE#)

(c)

LB

FEERIEF RSP E RS M T AR
R SR AT EER KBNS o T
B T A B B E Y ISR &
BBORR - TEENETAGERA
EBEYATEFRERR -

RRERREEBY(HE24) B
R (KT E20) R ERE (FHRE29)
S NEE Y EEFMEMEATEEH
BENMAE o RIT TR EAIHF X
BHERTEUAREBEREATE -

AEEWMXRRREEREFBHRE
MRS EEY - FBHNERE LIRS
FEVSASERSRSREN XA
(% - HEABASEEEDFENEXE

B e

M2022% 128318 - {HEtFlEseg
FHo0EEE - MATE HaEHRIFD
ZERAT  AEENFRNEECGERY
REBRZBFNERTEMNReRREE
BYEERZE) KM ARE14,746
TC(20214F « AR¥741,7467T) {7
KEBETESOMEED - MATAHEME
HRBTZELT - BSHAEEFA
EREEEZRERARMFZE - FlkEE
R TRETEEERE Eme E B
FREPDEAFE -
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis as above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at each of reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents the management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the

period until the next reporting date.

The measures to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group for the year and are considered to

be effective.
Currency risk

The Group mainly operates and invests in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in
RMB. All the financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of
the Company and the subsidiaries in the PRC to which
these transactions relate and did not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign

currency exchange rates.
Fair value risk

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
in determined based on discounted cash flow analysis.
The directors of the Company considered that, due to
their short term nature, the carrying amount of the
financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised
cost in the consolidated statement of financial position

approximates to their fair values.

41. BIERRERE#)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 12531 H 1 F/Z

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. BERBEEE)
(fl  Other price risk (f) HttEgRER
The Group was exposed to price risk through its AEERKE FHRATEMERER
investment in listed equity instrument. The Group’s price g - AEEHEREREZESHNRE
risk was mainly concentrated on equity instrument listed B /N ZERR (0 B8R RN R AR AN T
in The National Equities Exchange and Quotations. Ho
42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS L2, HEFEWEE
The Group has two business acquisitions during the year. FR - AREBEITRIEERSEE -
(a) Acquisition of YuanYu (a) WEERF
On 6 January 2022, the Group acquired 51% of equity R2022F 1868 » AEB B —RBBY
interest of YuanYu and its subsidiaries which engaged in EZFWELTFREANE RGN %K
the provision of 5G base stations site space as operating #REAAREIT TFERENE
lease to telecommunication operators in 5G industry ANEEERSCITERNBME SRR
from an independent third party with cash consideration SCEUSHM ERERKLEEE -
of RMB1.
The principal reason for this acquisition was to expand KB EENFEBEHARRAEERRN
the Group’s revenue streams and enhance return on Wasim BRI REE -

Shareholder’s value.
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42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 4L2. ERWEEE)
(a) Acquisition of YuanYu (Continued) (a) WHETF(E)
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the RUEERH - B R rIBREERE
acquiree as at the date of acquisition were determined as BZAVEEBENT :
follows:
RMB
AR
Plant and equipment i K 7kt 1,665,442
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,933,485
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEED 1,490
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b Y FRIA 236,986
Trade and other payables B 5 R E AR RIE (1,925,491)
Lease liabilities HEAE (4,125,248)
Total net liabilities e EFE (213,336}
Less: Non-controlling interest (49%) W FERERRE R (49%) (104,535)
Net liabilities acquired EWEFEEE (108,801)
Cash consideration ReERE 1
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note) WeigE A g (P EE) 108,802
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42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of YuanYu (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition

of YuanYu is as follows:

L2, HEBEWEE)

(a) WETF#E)

ERBBTTZRERESNWT

RMB

AR®T

Cash consideration paid ENRENRE (1)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired PEERe KRR EEED 1,490
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in st AREEFHIR S RERIRE K

cash flows from investing activities WREEBMRAFR 1,489

The transaction cost of the acquisition is immaterial.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in YuanYu at its proportionate share of its

identifiable net liabilities.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities were

determined by the independent valuer.

The book and fair value of acquired trade and other
receivable is RMB236,986 with no impairment loss

recognised on acquisition.

Goodwill of RMB108,802 which is not tax deductible,
comprises the acquired workforce and the value of
expected synergies arising from the combination of the
acquired business with the existing operations of the

Group.

Since the acquisition date, YuanYu has contributed
RMB1,876,989 to the Group’'s revenue and loss of
RMB348,853 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022 upon the completion of the
acquisition. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2022, Group's revenue and loss would have been
RMB1,876,989 and RMB33,973 respectively.

WEER R FUALTENR °

ARERRBEE S (A HHI A EFHEOL
PIEHE R T AV IR -

ARRIEER BN AFETBBLIAER
BT -

B 5 hEMBURENEREERLAFERA
R #236,9867T - W ELURE = IR RERIRIE R

'

AR¥108,802 THI BB NI - BRI
BEPHEPRBEBEASERARLER
BRAELNERBRMENER -

B R EE - TFE AAREEERKEA
R¥#1,876,9897C + WK EHFTRKBRE,
2022512 A31 B IEFEMNERE B8R EE
BAR348,8537T © WUEEFIAE 1 20224F
TATEEA - BIREEH Y REBED 5
BAREE,876,9897T M A RHE33,9737L ©
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42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued) 4L2. ERWEEE)
(b) Acquisition of Ningbo Shanshan (b) WEEZE R

On 11 August 2022, the Group's non-wholly owned R20226F8 /8118 » NEBZIEREMH
subsidiary, Jiangsu Anshi, acquired 51% of equity interest BRABI#HEZKE — BB LE=TW
of Ningbo Shanshan, which engaged in providing energy BEREEI%KRE  REAARE
storage services, from an independent third party with 4,080,0007T © RN EIRHE e
cash consideration of RMB4,080,000. AR 7 ©

The principal reason for this acquisition was to expand W EERTEN 2R R AERAEEN
the Group's revenue streams and enhance return on WS MR FHRRREE -

Shareholder’s value.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the REEERH - B BRI EERE
acquiree as at the date of acquisition were determined as BZRAFEETHT :
follows:
RMB
AR
Plant and equipment S ] 21,460,890
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEEM 444,066
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A W FRIA 883,185
Inventory FE 43,739
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERTRIE (14,854,197)
Total net assets BEEFE 7,977,683
Less: Non-controlling interest (69.4%) R FEIE IR IERR(69.4%) (5,536,512)
Net assets acquired BT EE 2,641,171
Cash consideration ReRE 4,080,000
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note) BB EAREE(HE) 1,638,829
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42. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

(b]

L2, XKW )

Acquisition of Ningbo Shanshan (Continued) (b) WHEERIZAZ(E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition BRAWEBERECE2BESRES TN
of Ningbo shanshan is as follows: I
RMB
AR
Cash consideration paid ENRENRE (4,080,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EiER e RBEEED 444,066
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included :FAREEFSHEERENE S LIRS
in cash flows from investing activities ZEYRLEFE (3,635,934)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities were
determined by the independent valuer.

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivable is
RMB883,185. The gross contractual amount for trade
and other receivables due is RMB1,382,061, with a loss
allowance of RMB498,876 recognised on acquisition.

Goodwill of RMB1,638,829 which is not tax deductible,
comprises the acquired workforce and the value of
expected synergies arising from the combination of the
acquired business with the existing operations of the
Group.

The transaction cost of the acquisition is immaterial.

Since the acquisition date, Ningbo Shanshan has
contributed RMB370,644 to the Group's revenue and loss
of RMBA4,544,875 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022 upon the completion of the
acquisition. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2022, the Group's revenue and loss would have been
RMB2,636,525 and RMB2,859,033 respectively.

Note:

For impairment testing of goodwills, goodwills are allocated
to the Group's cash generating units - provision of 5G base
station site space and provision of energy storage service.
The recoverable amount of CGUs are determined based on
the higher of the fair value less cost of sales of the assets
or its value-in-use estimate. No impairment losses are
recognised for the year.

ARAEERBEZ A FEHBMYG
EENEESE °

PR B 8 5 & Ho b B WK TR A A F B
BAR¥S83,1857 - EEHE H R
HEEUHENRSNEEAARYE
1,382,0617T * AW BERERAR
#498,876 TR B E R o

AR#1,638,829 THI BB AT -
BRERBSH I EAMKEREELR
SERAREXBHESELNTASG
R EREE °

WHIEERZ X PRALTENR °

BB R BERELEAAEE
B Rtk 25 A REE370,644 70 + I A UR
BEHETKERE R 2022912 831
AIEFEENGREBESESEBARE
4,544,8757C ° WU EE S IEE R 20224
THA1EEAE - BIAEEN KD REE
BRI BARE?2636525TE AR
2,859,0337T ° AN [E I £ 7 72 R (B /&S

B
HieE -

BEERENANE  BEISEER
EE ) 2 E A E 7 — 1 HECE UG
ZERRIEHRFERTE - B2 ELEMA
A e o] 2 BE AR 15 2 T B B B EE SH B A AN
EGFHEFEBEME T AREE ME
TE o AFR I FRERBIERA °
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43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to current year's presentation. In particular, the carrying
amount of investments of RMB10,000,000 as at 31 December
2021 was previously included in the balance of financial assets
at FVTOCI and the investments have been shown separately

under financial assets at FVTPL in the current year.

44. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 44.

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the directors on 30 March 2023.
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EemEF

ETUBEFEFUEHDBEUFEAFEE
B2 - LHZ » N2021F12A31BAHA
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